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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (“ELL Environmental” or the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “we” or
“our”), | present the annual report of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2023 (the “Year” or “FY2023").

According to China’s National Bureau of Statistics, China’s gross
domestic product for 2023 was RMB126.1 trillion', representing an
increase of 5.2% as compared to the same period of last year. In
the first year following the lifting of pandemic restrictions, supply and
demand showed steady improvement, employment and prices of
goods were generally stable, and the national economy was back on
track gradually. In recent years, China has made significant efforts
to develop its environmental protection industry. According to the
National Bureau of Statistics, investment in the water management
industry increased by 5.2%?2 in 2023 compared to the same period
of last year. In January 2024, China’s Ministry of Ecology and
Environment released a report on national surface water. Among the
3,641 national surface water assessment sections, the proportion
of sections with excellent water quality (Grade I~Ill) reached 89.4%3,
representing an increase of 1.5% as compared to the same period
of last year. For the seven major river basins, Northwestern Rivers,
Southwestern Rivers and rivers in Zhejiang and Fujian Provinces,
the proportion of sections with excellent water quality (Grade |~Ill)
reached 91.7%?3, representing an increase of 1.5% as compared
to the same period of last year. This highlights that sewage and
environmental issues improved in tandem with the recovery of
China’s economy. Regarding the development and outlook of the
national water management system, the Ministry of Water Resources
officially released the China Water Development Report in June
20234 (2023 E/KFIZERE L)), which fully reflects the effect
of the major projects in the previous years, and establishes six
implementation goals, including enhancement of flood control system

Notes:

1. https://www.stats.gov.cn/sj/zxfb/202401/t20240118_1946691.htm!

2. https://www.stats.gov.cn/sj/zxfb/202401/t20240116_1946620.htm!

3. https://www.mee.gov.cn/ywdt/xwfb/202401/t20240125_1064785.shtml

4. http://finance.people.com.cn/BIG5/n1/2023/0613/c1004-40012238.html
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

in river basins, launch of major projects for the nationwide water
network, restoration of ecological environment in rivers and lakes,
promotion of smart water management technology, establishment
of sound water-saving systems and policies and strengthening of
water management mechanism, laws and regulations. Besides, the
Ministry of Water Resources released the Implementation Opinions
on Deeply Implementing the “Outline of Building a Quality Strong
Nation” for Upgrading the Quality of Water Conservancy Projects
(CRAEREE (mERERZRMB) BRIV IERRRENE
=R 9 in August 2023, which aims to enhance the awareness of
“quality first”. These will continuously improve the construction quality
and management level of water conservancy projects, which will
serve as significant infrastructure for the national economic and social
development. The Group will proactively accommodate and adhere
to the latest national and regional policies to make contributions to
the national environmental governance work.

In addition to pursuing domestic development opportunities in the
Chinese market, the Group is also focusing on the development
in Indonesia, which are the biofuel pellet business and data centre
business in Jambi, Indonesia and the power supply project in
Bangka, Indonesia (“Bangka Project”). The biofuel pellets business
was put into operation in 2021 and has been generating revenue, but
was in a loss-making position for the two years ended 31 December
2022 and 20283. The Board signed a framework agreement for the
disposal of 80% equity interest in the biofuel pellet business on
15 March 2024, which is expected to reduce the level of losses
and improve the overall profitability of the Group. The data center
business is still in its initial stages, and the profit contribution will
gradually become apparent. Construction of the Bangka Project is
currently in its final phase and is expected to commence operation
in mid-2024. The Group has entered into a power supply agreement
with PT Perusahaan Listrik Negara (Persero) and is expected to
supply electricity to its national grid at a fixed price for a period of 25
years starting from 2024.

Note:

5. http://www.mwr.gov.cn/zwgk/gknr/202309/t20230901_1681795.html
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The Group has been endeavouring to seek opportunities to
communicate and cooperate with other power generation plants
and companies, so as to further expand its overseas operation.
The Group expects for further diversify its environmental protection
businesses in the future and keep exploring development
opportunities of other new energy businesses in the environmental
protection industry, thereby consolidating the Group’s business
foundation and allowing the Group to achieve diversified business
and sustainable development.

In terms of the Group’s domestic businesses, it will continue to
enhance its operational efficiency by strictly controlling costs and
improving operational processes, in order to further raise the profit of
the wastewater treatment business. The management will continue
to align itself with national policies and lead the Company towards a
good development path.

For FY2023, ELL Environmental recorded an operating revenue of
approximately HK$113.3 million with a year-on-year decrease of
44.4%. The gross profit was HK$40.7 million, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 21.9%. The net loss was HK$8.1 million. The
decrease in operating revenue and profit was mainly due to the
disposal of the entire interests in Haian Hengfa Wastewater Treatment
Company Limited (“Haian Hengfa”) in July 2022.

The Group, on the one hand, will continuously optimise the
management of existing projects to bring sound growth to the Group.
On the other hand, we will keep a close eye on market changes and
actively explore various potential in the environmental protection
industry, while proactively cooperating with the latest national
and regional policies to further promote the development of its
environmental protection business. The Group contributes towards
national environmental governance, as well as seeks practical
development opportunities with potentials. We believe that only by
adhering to our principles, responding to market changes, investing
in innovation and working with our stakeholders can we achieve
sustained growth and increase our influence in the environmental
sector.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Here, | would like to express my gratitude to my fellow Directors, fEtARNAME(IES - WE([BRE]) - B
shareholders (the “Shareholders”), staff and stakeholders of the T & &#FHE — B LK E) X B 0 %
Company for their constant support. Thanks to the tireless dedication & - BHEEEE N EE T —&H UK T &
of the management and all other staff, as well as the support from 2% - I FEFEMAEZRHEN T - BRIR
our customers and partners, ELL Environmental has been able to RA e ERENESHIBE TEBEEH
overcome various obstacles imposed by such a challenging business B - NEB @B ERFELEHRENKFE A
environment in recent years. The Group will continuously maintain its R ERF#ZZBNEIEBEZR  Ate kiR
high-quality services and close relationship with customers, with the B{EEBEL 0 WAIKREE MR RANEEE -
aim to contribute to the society and environment, as well as create  Z5RK RHEIIZFE MO -

value and generate long-term stable returns for our investors and the

Shareholders.

CHAU On Ta Yuen FE

Chairman BRER

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024 B —E-NF=A=++tH
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The gradual resumption of economic activities in 2023 led to the
steady growth of the national economy, easing the downward
pressure on the overall economy. According to the National Bureau of
Statistics, China’s gross domestic product for 2023 was RMB126.1
trillion', representing an increase of 5.2% as compared to the same
period of last year.

In recent years, the Government has been actively addressing the
domestic water conservancy issue. Focusing on the development
of water governance in the country, the Ministry of Water Resources
officially released the China Water Development Report 2023 ({2023
AR KRB R ER ) )2 in June 2023, and the Implementation Opinions
on Deeply Implementing the “Outline of Building a Quality Strong
Nation” for Upgrading the Quality of Water Conservancy Projects
(CRABECRE (mERBEERME) IBAKNIEZRRENE
M= R))? in August 2023, both of which demonstrate the country’s
determination to strengthen the development of water conservancy
and upgrade the level of water governance in China. Benefitting
from the cooperation and policy coordination among various
departments, data from the Ministry of Water Resources indicated
that the investment and scale of water conservancy construction in
2023 reached a record high, with an annual investment of RMB1.2
trillion4 in water conservancy construction. Secondly, according to
the environmental quality status of national surface water published
by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment in January 2024, among
the 3,641 national surface water assessment sections, the proportion
of sections with excellent water quality (Grade I-1ll) reached 89.4%3,
representing an increase of 1.5% compared to the same period in
the previous year, and the proportion of inferior sections with Grade
V was 0.7%, which was similar to the same period last year. As the
quality-first awareness promoted by the Ministry of Water Resources
is further consolidated, it is expected that the quality of national water
conservancy construction will continue to improve with the relevant
water quality index getting better steadily.

Notes:

1. https://www.stats.gov.cn/sj/zxfb/202401/t20240118_1946691.htm!

2. http://finance.people.com.cn/BIG5/n1/2023/0613/c1004-40012238.html

3. http://www.mwr.gov.cn/zwgk/gknr/202309/t20230901_1681795.html

4. http://bigs.www.gov.cn/gate/bigs/www.gov.cn/lianbo/bumen/202401/

content_6925816.htm
5. https://www.mee.gov.cn/ywdt/xwfb/202401/t20240125_1064785.shtml

BEEENWED

R¥ O

KEEHE_ST_=FELSET T2
BlAE BB IL R - RRR T BB N{THE
7o REERRFHBNEEER —T=-=
FrFEhEBERNEELEAARB12618
B b EFEEERS.2% o

F - BITEG B AKF EE - ST E
RACRIERER @ KFFR_ZT=_=FA
IEFNEEAH 72023 B /K F| B R 3R )2 » W
E-Z_=FNANBCEAEMEE<RE
BEERMESRAKF IRRESRENE
HEER)  HBEREREMNEKFIER - 12
FBIAKFAEKFEERL o ZERZI
A TERBERMIHBA - KA EREIRTE H =
T = FRKFIEREE MRES AL ESE
| 2FEEAKFIERIEE1.28E L -
HX o REBAREBRRESR_ZE-_MF—AR
M2 ERKRELGERN  NREFER
3,641 B Rith K AKEZEEF - KEER
(I ~III4$8)EnmE 5 £89.4%5 » LRI EA S E
1.5% * 4 V*E%EMK1WU%07%>'ﬁtH%
oo BEEKFISHEBMEEFE — BT —

FEEIZE - ﬁﬂ%Xl%*ﬂ@ VEE
kaﬂ R KERSTERHEESM
4f °

it
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2. http://finance.people.com.cn/BIG5/
n1/2023/0613/c1004-40012238.html

3. http://www.mwr.gov.cn/zwgk/gknr/202309/
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4. http://bigh.www.gov.cn/gate/bigs/www.gov.crn/
lianbo/bumen/202401/content_6925816.htm

5. https://www.mee.gov.cn/ywdt/xwfb/202401/
t20240125_1064785.shtml
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

Overall, in addition to the prudent and consistent implementation of
the Group’s operating policies to consolidate its existing businesses,
the Group is also committed to exploring different environmental
business possibilities. In 2022, the Group disposed of its interests
in Haian Hengfa and no longer held a wastewater treatment facility
operated by it, with the related resources to be reallocated to the
wastewater treatment facilities operated by Rugao Hengfa Water
Treatment Company Limited (“Rugao Hengfa”) and the Bangka
Project. After the disposal of Haian Hengfa, the Group continues the
operation of the wastewater treatment facilities of Rugao Hengfa in
China. In July 2021, the Group reached an agreement with the local
administrative committee, increasing water tariffs from RMB2.67 per
tonne to RMB3.43 per tonne, contributing to a more robust result
for the Group. With the increase in water tariffs and improvement in
project efficiency, the management expects that the revenue and
gross profit of the Group will further increase.

The Group has also been actively preparing for the development of
suitable environmental protection projects overseas and two key
projects are currently being developed. The Bangka Project is in the
final phase of construction and is expected to commence operation
in mid-2024. The Group and the local government has agreed on
the sale of electricity and has entered into a power supply agreement
with PLN, and is expected to supply electricity to its national grid
at a fixed price for a period of 25 years starting from 2024. If the
Bangka Project turns out to be a success, we expect that the
relevant operation model can be replicated in other similar regions.
Moreover, the Group will also continue its research on the feasibility
of developing other new energy investment projects in other regions
of Indonesia, while actively promoting the “Build-Operate-Transfer” or
“BOT” investment projects in order to generate greater value for the
Group and bring better cash flows and investment return.

In respect of the biofuel pellets business in Indonesia, such business
commenced the production of wood pellets in 2021 and has been
generating revenue, but had been in a loss-making position. PT
Rimba Palma Sejahtera Lestari (“RPSL”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a framework agreement with
PT Indorama Eco Viridian (the “Purchaser”) for a deemed disposal
of 80% interest in the wood pellets production business on 15 March
2024, which is expected to reduce the level of losses and improve
the overall profitability of the Group. The Group also expected to
enhance the production capacity and efficiency of the relevant
business through cooperation with the Purchaser, with a view to
unleashing the embedded value as soon as possible.

In 2023, the Group commenced the data center business in
Indonesia, where RPSL provided information technology services to
its customers. These services encompass computer system analysis
and technical support.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2023 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OUTLOOK

Despite the downward pressure on the global economy, the
Group has always remained composed in the face of challenges
and carefully assessed the risks and opportunities of different
development projects. Regardless of changes in the external
economic environment, we will continue to adapt to market
fluctuations and capitalise on domestic and foreign opportunities
in accordance with national policies. Sustainable development has
become a global trend and the Group is committed to contributing
to environmental protection. As for wastewater treatment in China,
we will further solidify our existing foundation, provide excellent
services and continue to contribute to the improvement of water
quality in China. With our accumulated experience and expertise, we
are actively pursuing promising environmental projects, continuously
exploring and seizing business opportunities to drive the growth of
our Group, while remaining loyal to our customers and adhering to
a prudent business strategy. We firmly believe that environmental
protection and economic development can be complementary, and
therefore we will continue to endeavour to achieve green growth on
the basis of sustainable development, while promoting the prevalence
of green technology and environmental awareness.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The comparative figures and prior year’s figures presented in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 (“FY2022”) have been restated. The details are highlighted in
note 3 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this
annual report.

REVENUE

Our total revenue decreased by HK$90.4 million or 44.4% to
HK$113.3 million for FY2023 as compared to HK$203.7 million for
FY2022. Such decrease was primarily attributable to (i) the decrease
in construction revenue arising from the construction works of the
Bangka Project during FY2023 as compared to FY2022, and (i) the
disposal of a non-wholly owned subsidiary, Haian Hengfa, in FY2022.

COST OF SALES

Our total cost of sales decreased by HK$79.0 million or 52.1% from
HK$151.6 million for FY2022 to HK$72.6 million for FY2023, primarily
due to (i) the decrease in construction costs arising from the Bangka
Project during FY2023 as compared to FY2022, and (ii) the disposal
of a non-wholly owned subsidiary, Haian Hengfa, in FY2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Our gross profit decreased by HK$11.4 million or 21.9% from
HK$52.1 million for FY2022 to HK$40.7 million for FY2023, primarily
due to the reasons of the aforementioned fluctuation in revenue
and cost of sales. Our gross profit margin increased from 25.6% for
FY2022 to 35.9% for FY2023.

OTHER INCOME AND NET OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Our other income and net other gains and losses decreased by
HK$4.5 million or 95.1% from HK$4.8 million (restated) for FY2022 to
HK$0.2 million for FY2023, primarily due to the foreign exchange loss
in FY2023.

LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

Our loss on disposal of a subsidiary was HK$14.1 million (restated)
for FY2022 compared to nil for FY2023. Such loss on disposal of a
subsidiary for FY2022 was due to the disposal of a non-wholly owned
subsidiary, Haian Hengfa. For details of the disposal as well as the
prior year adjustment in relation to such loss on disposal, please refer
to note 3 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in
this annual report.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED CREDIT
LOSS MODEL

Our impairment losses under expected credit loss model decreased
by HK$1.7 million or 63.1% from HK$2.8 million for FY2022 to
HK$1.0 million for FY2023. Such impairment losses were mainly
attributable to a listed bond subscribed by the Group which defaulted
on its interest payment since FY2022 and its principal payment at
maturity date on 21 February 2024, resulting in the impairment loss
of HK$1.0 million in FY2023 (FY2022: HK$2.8 million).

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Our administrative expenses decreased by HK$4.1 million or 13.3%
from HK$30.5 million for FY2022 to HK$26.5 million for FY2023.
Administrative expenses mainly include staff costs and other
operating expenses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCE COSTS

Our finance costs increased by HK$3.4 million or 36.7% from HK$9.3
million for FY2022 to HK$12.7 million for FY2023, primarily due to the
increase in loan borrowings for the financing of the Bangka Project
during FY2023.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Our profit before tax increased by HK$0.5 million or 329.4% from
profit of HK$0.2 million (restated) for FY2022 to HK$0.7 million for
FY2023, primarily due to the factors mentioned above.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Our income tax expense decreased by HK$6.5 million or 42.5% from
HK$15.3 million (restated) for FY2022 to HK$8.8 million for FY2023,
mainly due to decrease in profit before tax for our PRC subsidiaries.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

Loss attributable to owners of the Company decreased by HK$8.0
million or 49.2% from HK$16.3 million (restated) for FY2022 to
HK$8.3 million for FY2023, primarily due to the factors mentioned
above.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our principal liquidity and capital requirements primarily relate to
investments in our projects, construction and upgrading of our
wastewater treatment facilities, purchases of equipment as well as
costs and expenses related to the operation and maintenance of our
wastewater treatment and electricity generating facilities.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
was HK$30.1 million, representing a decrease of HK$4.5 million or
13.0% as compared with that of HK$34.6 million as at 31 December
2022. As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents of HK$16.1 million, HK$6.5 million, HK$1.6 million and
HK$5.9 million were denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”), Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"), Indonesian Rupiah (‘IDR”) and United States Dollars
(“US$”), respectively (31 December 2022: HK$13.0 million, HK$1.8
million, HK$0.9 million and HK$18.9 million were denominated in
RMB, HK$, IDR and US$, respectively).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2023, the total amount of our utilised bank
borrowings was HK$58.2 million, of which HK$18.0 million was
repayable on demand, HK$22.2 million was repayable within one
year and HK$18.0 million was repayable within two to five years.
All HK$58.2 million of the outstanding bank borrowings were
denominated in HK$ (31 December 2022: HK$38.0 million were
denominated in HK$). Out of the HK$58.2 million outstanding bank
borrowings, HK$18.0 million bore a floating interest rate of 1.4% per
annum over the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate, HK$20.0 million
bore a floating interest rate of 2% below Hong Kong Dollar prime rate
and HK$20.2 million bore a floating interest rate of 0.8% per annum
over the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (31 December 2022:
HK$18.0 million bore a floating interest rate of 1.4% per annum over
the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and HK$20.0 million bore a
fixed interest rate of 2% below Hong Kong Dollar prime rate). We had
HK$28.7 million unutilised banking facilities as at 31 December 2023
(31 December 2022: HK$4.7 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had an outstanding
borrowing from independent third parties of the Group amounted to
HK$23.9 million (31 December 2022: HK$23.9 million), which bore
a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum. The loan was repayable within
one year.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had outstanding amounts
due to related parties of the Group amounted to HK$102.1 million
(31 December 2022: HK$105.5 million), of which HK$52.2 million
bore a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum and HK$49.9 million
bore a fixed interest rate of 6% per annum. Out of the HK$102.1
million outstanding amounts due to related parties, HK$31.7 million
was repayable within one year and HK$70.4 million was repayable
within two to five years. To the best knowledge of the Directors
and management of the Group, all the interest rates of the above
borrowings were determined on arm’s length basis.

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total debt by total equity
and then multiplied by 100%, and total debt includes the interest-
bearing bank borrowings, amounts due to related parties and other
borrowings. Our gearing ratio increased from 57.7% (restated) as at
31 December 2022 to 66.0% as at 31 December 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any charge on
assets (31 December 2022: nil).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the Year. The Board closely monitors the
Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its
funding requirements from time to time. Surplus cash will be invested
appropriately so that the Group’s cash requirements for its strategy
or direction from time to time can be met.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Our capital expenditures consist primarily of expenditures for
construction for our Bangka Project. During the Year, our capital
expenditures amounted to HK$42.2 million (31 December 2022:
HK$106.1 million), which were funded by our financing activities.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Member companies in Mainland China and Indonesia within our
Group have limited foreign currency risk as most of the transactions
are denominated in the same currency as the functional currency
of the operations in which they relate. However, as these principal
subsidiaries mainly carry assets and liabilities in RMB and IDR, any
appreciation or depreciation of HK$ against RMB and IDR will affect
the Group’s consolidated financial position which is presented in
HKS, and will be reflected in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. The
Group minimises foreign exchange exposure by converting its
cash and cash equivalents in other currencies generated from the
operation of its foreign operating subsidiaries to HK$.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2022: nil).
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 176 employees (31
December 2022: 185 employees). Employee costs, including
Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$15.5 million
for FY2023 (FY2022: HK$16.9 million). The remuneration policy for
our Directors, senior management members and general staff is
based on their experience, level of responsibility and general market
conditions. Any discretionary bonus and other merit payments are
linked to the profit performance of our Group and the individual
performance of our Directors, senior management members and
general staff. The Group encourages the self-development of its
employees and provides on-the-job training where appropriate.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 5 September
2014 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
directors and employees of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any other
significant investments, material acquisitions or disposals of assets,
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the Year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group has no plan authorised by
the Board for other material investments or additions of capital assets
as at the date of this report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

M

(i)

On 5 February 2024, Everbest Water Treatment Development
Company Limited (“Everbest”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, received a Notice of Arbitration
issued by the Shenzhen Court of International Arbitration
(“SCIA”) in relation to Everbest’s application to the SCIA for
arbitration against CGN Environmental Protection Industry
Co., Ltd. (the “Arbitration”) requesting for (a) the payment
of the third instalment of the consideration amounting to
RMB13,633,200 under the sale and purchase agreement
dated 21 July 2022 in relation to the disposal of Haian Hengfa,
(b) liquidated damages, exchange rate loss and legal fees of
approximately RMB2.2 million in total, and (c) all costs of the
Arbitration. For further details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 14 February 2024 regarding the
commencement of the Arbitration.

On 15 March 2024, RPSL, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company as the seller, and PT Indorama Eco Viridian,
an independent third party as the purchaser, entered into
the framework agreement (the “Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which RPSL has conditionally agreed to sell, and
PT Indorama Eco Viridian has conditionally agreed to acquire,
the wood pellet production business currently operated and
managed by RPSL (the “Target Business”) at the total
consideration of IDR60.0 billion (equivalent to approximately
HK$30.0 million) in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the Framework Agreement (the “Disposal”). After the
completion of the Disposal, the Company will hold 20%
equity interest in the target company which will be formed
by RPSL as part of the Disposal (the “Target Company”)
and the Target Company will cease to be a subsidiary of the
Company. For further details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 15 March 2024 and the supplemental
announcement of the Company dated 10 April 2024 regarding
the disposal of the Target Business.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group had no material event
subsequent to 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

No final dividend has been recommended by the Board for FY2023
(FY2022: Nil).

BEEEFNWED

REMEER

)

(i)

RZZE-_WNEFE-ARE ARFEES
BB ARERKEERERAG(E
B ) BRI B B B ([ 55R 31| B R A
B DFTENTRZIEBL - RDBR
HERFHTREZIRREEERARME
HRE ([HE]) - EkZF(@REBH
AT - —F+A-+—HEEHED
RF“_ B HA ;A R #513,633,200
T O)ELEES EHEERER
%%%ﬁ%AE%ﬁZﬁ%ﬁ:&UW
HHFEER - BlE—PHFE B2
MARRBHA-Z-_MF-A+WA
EHARRMEERHRE -

RZE-_M&EF=ZA+HHB » AQFH
2 EHBARIRPSLUEAE /) 15
3 % =3 PT Indorama Eco Viridian (1F
Z%/\ji)nT_L$E Bt ([HERWZE])

Bt RPSLE KR E HE &PT
Indorama Eco Viridian & &4 7 = Uk 8
B BT FARPSL &8 [ & 1 Ky N TR & 2=
¥%([BBEK]) - BRERG00EL
[EfE(FBERHB0.08EET) BHE
Eﬁ%@%%%mﬁﬁ&%#ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
EEE]|) - RHEFETNE - ~2

%hﬁﬁﬁ“jﬁﬂmwaﬂ4uﬁﬁ
HEFEN—F5 - [BEAF])20%
f&iE - M BRI T B AR AR
BAF - EZFERELEARF Y
AAE—E_NF=A+ABAER=-ZF =N

FUATHABHERREBNAER
(YN
BRAREMWEEN  R_F_=F+_H
=t RARREEAHREAY - AEEBE
EARER-
KRR R

EZSTEARN T =MBFEHNRY

A2 (

T BIRFE E) e

BERRIZERERD —ECCFER

17



18

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

ELL Environmental Holdings (“ELL Environmental” or the
“Company’, together with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to
as the “Group”, “we”, “us” or “our”) is pleased to present its eighth
Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG”) Report to showcase
the Group’s sustainable development strategy, approach, and

accomplishments during the year.
REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE

Unless otherwise stated, the reporting scope of this Report covers
the Group’s major operations from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023 (the “Reporting Period”) of:

° Operation services of the wastewater treatment facility, the
Rugao Hengfa Facility in Jiangsu Province, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”); and

° Biofuel pellet production business of PT Rimba Palma Sejahtera
Lestari (‘RPSL”) in Jambi, Indonesia.

REPORTING STANDARDS

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the latest
disclosure requirements of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in
Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “HKEX").

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2023 Annual Report

ARAERE

BERWRIERARAB ([BBRRER IHTF
RA ] BEEMBAR - SEAEE Ik
(BRI MABERE) \HERR  HERER
(TESG ) ¥ & (A8, ) - BUREPINAF
EORHEERRE - it MKRE -

REMRMER

BRIERBMAE  ARENREHBEREZEER
—_E_=F—fF—HEZZE-_=%+=AH
=+ —BHREHE DO ETEER - 815

o [URFPEARKME(HE])IHED
IRE KR IR L ERTE - A
&

o (IREIE &M% B PT Rimba Palma
Sejahtera Lestari([ RPSL ) #y 4 ¥)E &

mERE

RRERBEEBHARSGERAG([EB
RS D(ES EMARA EHRA]) ek
C2M(IRIE « (L2 RRERE)([ESGHREE
BRI EERER -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

REPORTING PRINCIPLES BERR

This Report adheres to the following reporting principles outlined in  ZN3R4 R 15 E B 2 5 FIESGER 4 ¥ Fg U 1B
the HKEX ESG Reporting Guide: materiality, quantitative, balance and ~ #{45FR8 - BFEEM - 81 - T - —

consistency:

Reporting Principle

HBERA

MRS -

Our Application
BRMHER

Materiality

B2t

Quantitative
=1t

Balance

F

Consistency

—EE

Through stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment, we identify issues that
are material to our sustainable development, and prioritize the topics covered in this
Report. Please refer to “Stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment” for
further details of our stakeholder engagement approach and materiality assessment.
RBEFNEBEAREERTE  HMABRNEAIHERREANZE - WNARE
BELHIEBRNZEE - F2E[HHEL2E | RIEENTME ] UWETRBMNFD
ESETH REE R

Key performance indicators (“KPIs”), information and other data are presented in a
quantitative manner, where appropriate, throughout this Report.

SEEEENRRUECNTARARE RBERBRENES - EALEMEUE -

We illustrate both positive and negative aspects of our ESG performance including our
achievements, challenges, and opportunities for our principal business activities in this
Report.

BARAREGMIRR HERELGRANTIEREBEEN  SEEHEBHAR
BB -

Unless otherwise specified, we adopt consistent reporting and calculation
methodologies for meaningful comparisons of ESG data over time. Year-on-year
comparison for KPI is also disclosed in this Report.

BRIEREHA - AR —BNERIAESR - UWEHRE - L@ RER/BIERER
BEANLE - ARESHHE T HEBRESIRRALE -
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DATA COLLECTION METHOD

The information presented in this Report is sourced from the Group’s
official documents and statistical data. The Board of Directors (the
“Board”) approved this Report in March 2024.

FEEDBACK

We believe every stakeholder’s opinion is valuable to pushing forward
the Group’s long-term development. Should you have any feedback
on the Group’s sustainable development or this Report, please do
not hesitate to contact us at ell@anli.com.hk.

ABOUT ELL ENVIRONMENTAL

Founded in 2002, ELL Environmental is a one-stop environmental
solutions service provider. Currently, we offer a one-stop approach
to the provision of wastewater treatment services using the “Build
— Operate — Transfer” (or BOT) model. We have one wastewater
treatment facility in operation which is located in Jiangsu Province,
China, treating municipal and industrial wastewater. The Group
is also investing in a biofuel pellet production business in Jambi,
Indonesia and is developing a power supply business in Bunga Island,
Indonesia.

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

40,000 13,100,838
tonnes tonnes
MK MK
daily wastewater wastewater
treatment capacity treated in 2023
HHTEK TECCFRE
AlREs K57k =E
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WASTEWATER TREATMENT

The Group operates a wastewater treatment facility in Rugao County,
Jiangsu Province, China. It is responsible for treating both municipal
and industrial sewage. Equipped with Moving Bed Biofilm Reactor
(“MBBR”) treatment technology, it can treat a total of 40,000 tonnes
of wastewater daily. The diagrams below illustrate the main processes
involved in our wastewater treatment operations:
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Our wastewater treatment facility strictly adheres to local wastewater
treatment standards to ensure that the treated wastewater meets
the required quality standards. The treated wastewater undergoes a
series of procedures, including but not limited to:

1. Filtration

2. Sedimentation
3.  Adjustment

4. Acidification

5. Anaerobic

6.  Sterilization

Our wastewater treatment business is fully dedicated to minimizing
pollution in the surrounding water bodies by ensuring that the quality
of treated wastewater meets the standards set by the Integrated
Wastewater Discharge Standard and the Class 1-A or Class
1-B Discharge Standard of Pollutants for Municipal Wastewater
Treatment Plants (GB18918-2002). We have obtained the necessary
Pollutant Emission Permits as required by the Measures for Pollutant
Discharge Permitting Administration (for Trial Implementation). To
ensure compliance and monitor the effectiveness of our wastewater
treatment processes, we conduct daily water quality monitoring. This
includes recording key parameters such as chemical oxygen demand
(“*COD”), biological oxygen demand (“BOD”), pH value, suspended
solids (“8S”), ammonia (NH3), water content, organic materials, and
sludge pH value in monthly reports. Additionally, we carry out regular
inspections to verify the quality of treated wastewater before its
discharge.

BIOFUEL PELLET PRODUCTION

RPSL, the Group’s subsidiary, is primarily engaged in the biofuel
pellet production business in Jambi, Indonesia. Our primary raw
material for production is wood pellets, which are derived from the
manufacturing of wood products. Our objective is to optimize the
utilization of wood pellets, thereby reducing waste and minimizing
environmental impact. We have constructed a production facility
dedicated to processing wood pellets as our main raw material. Since
mid-2021, we have commenced operations and sales of processed
wood pellets to power plants in Southeast Asia, our primary target
customers. Our aim is to contribute to the development of biomass
power generation and promote the use of biofuel pellets in the region.
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To ensure the quality of our biomass power generation and biofuel
pellet production, we have implemented a comprehensive “Standard
Operating Procedure” (“SOP”). This SOP provides our employees
with standardized and stringent guidelines for daily operations,
ensuring consistent and high-quality results. By adhering to these
established procedures, we maintain a high level of operational
efficiency and product excellence.

OUR MANAGEMENT APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

As a prominent environmental solutions provider in the PRC and
Indonesia, we are dedicated to embedding sustainability into our
day-to-day practices, which complements our efforts to create
sustainable value to our stakeholders.

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE AND BOARD’S
OVERSIGHT

As the highest governance body of the Group, the Board has the
overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting and
provides oversight of ESG issues with an emphasis on the Group’s
long-term development and positioning. Delegated by the Board,
our senior management oversees ESG management approach and
advises the Board on the ESG matters below on a regular basis,
including but not limited to:

° Development and review of our sustainability strategies,
priorities, goals and targets;

° Identification, evaluation, prioritization, review and management
of material ESG-related risks and opportunities (including but
not limited to climate-related risks and ESG risks along the
supply chain);

° ESG-related training on the latest ESG trends, updates and
risk management approach for enhancing the ESG risk
management mechanism;

° Review and formulation of the implementation of ESG-related
policies and practices to ensure compliance with laws and
regulations;

o Monitoring and reviewing our ESG performance and progress
against any targets and goals;
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° Monitoring and enhancing the Group’s stakeholder engagement
channels to ensure effective communication with key
stakeholders; and

° Preparing an annual ESG report on its activities for Board’s
approval.

ESG-RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established risk management and internal control
mechanisms to identify, evaluate, manage, and monitor risks,
including material ESG risks. Our senior management submits an
ESG-related risk assessment report to the Board periodically and the
Board retains ultimate responsibility for oversight of the Group’s risk
management activities. The Board regularly reviews the effectiveness
of the control measures and provides relevant suggestions for
improvement when necessary.
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By referring to the latest market and industry trends, we identified relevant ESG-related risks in the industry and
ESG trends, including climate-related risks and ESG risks along the supply chain.

BRI T5 RITHEBE - BRATERIRBTENIRE @ REQBZEHEARR - BEEAGERNR
R ERIRE e RERRAR

The potential impacts and likelihood of the identified key ESG-related risks were evaluated.

FHEEARRE - HERERRRNEEZEMA L -

Key ESG risks were prioritized by considering their risk level scores in terms of potential impact and likelihood.
ZREANRE LS REQRRAEEZEMAIRLE - BEBKETS - WEHZSRBETELEHT o

To manage the identified ESG risks and minimize their impact on our business, we established corresponding
risk mitigation measures and internal controls, tasking the relevant business departments with the
implementation of such measures.

REBEBRINRE 8 REBRRI G H BN EME
BT  WRIRKIAREEPI B R ©
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The results of the ESG risk assessment, along with any other relevant issues, were reported to the Board by
senior management for discussion and review.

SREERAEFSERRE LS REARRF AR L EMARERE - SAETRRNES
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For more detailed information on the Group’s corporate governance
measures, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report in the
Annual Report.

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH AND STRATEGY

ELL Environmental is committed to conducting sustainable
operations. To fulfil this commitment, we have established the
Environmental, Social, and Governance Policy and other relevant
policies and measures, to guide every department and employee
in integrating sustainable principles into their daily activities. Our
dedication in promoting environmental and social responsibility is
demonstrated through our proactive approach and sustainability
goals stipulated in the four pillars: (i) “Corporate Governance”,
(i) “Creating Green Fortune”, (iii) “Caring Our People” and (iv)
“Contributing to the Community”. We continuously monitor and
oversee progress towards our corporate goals and targets, address
climate change, and improve our performance on key ESG matters.

N7 Corporate Governance

o TN
sy  1EXEEN

BRiE - HEREREWE

EREZRBEXEANAREERTEH - &
EHEBEFHRANTEERRS °

B - REREAS R

BERRBORAIHELE - Atk - FAFIH
FIRE - 2 FMERER AR EMEREEBR
M - BESEIPIME TEIHERRE
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EEMBERITE A BIR AU K S A AT
BRRBE (XSRS () AIEEEH
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B §REE YIRS RMEBRERE
HEMEREEMEM

To maintain a high standard of business ethics and integrity for shareholder’s interest

HREENERENBEEERDE NS
Goal: B :

Upholding sound corporate governance to provide effective management and sound control of the

Company
EERIFODEER  AARIREERNE BRI

Creating Green Fortune

RIERE/ME

@

To deliver high quality environmental protection solutions for a climate resilient future

RESEENRFREAR
Goal: B1Z :

HEFARREERRK

Strengthening climate resilience in our operations and solutions towards a greener future

RITEEMBRT RORIEEM - BRAAEKRK

* Please refer to the section headed “Creating Green Fortune” for our green targets.

TEMNGEER  F2HREKEHME |F6 -
&  Caring Our People
4 a BHEET

To curate a people-oriented workplace for employees
REIEY —AAARTES
Goal: B4 :

Creating a harmonious and safe workplace and respectful, supportive and caring work atmosphere
BUYNMBRZEZNIERE  UREE  XHENMBEEESTHIEL

s Contributing to the Community

M HE=

To be a positive force to the community
RTESREEEE
Goal: B :

Empowering the community through sustainable change and impactful initiatives

VAR FHE R R B A B s R TR B AL 12
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT BhEgn

The Group prioritizes effective communication with stakeholders ZANEBEREFHENEIER @ BiRigE
and actively integrates valuable input and recommendations into our ~ E#E BN A E RS IS o A
ongoing improvement efforts. Our key stakeholder groups include #1F ZiH P EHER|BIEEBRE - REMEE
contractors, shareholders, investors, government authorities, non- % - B/FE B  IEBFELE (NGO ) « B
governmental organizations (“NGO”), environmental protection {RZFFI(TEPD]) -~ HER - RoE B LERART
departments (“EPD”), suppliers, business partners, and the #[@ o H{f:E B E M FRFIETF R EBE
local community. We engage in formal and informal two-way & @ WEEWLFHEHRFILEMA]HER
communication channels to gather feedback from these stakeholders EXRIEHE R, o

on our operations and sustainable development performance.

EMPLOYEES CONTRACTORS SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
&8 AEE REMIREE
° Staff Mailbox ° Interview o General Meeting
BT HH BB REXE
° Meeting ° Meeting ° Telephone Interview
i e Tima
° Training o Company Website
3l NSIEER
. Interview ° Press Conference
ik mERmg
o Intranet ° Announcement
B A8 nE
. Financial Report
BisERE
GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES NGO/EPD SUPPLIERS
BRER BTSRRI fLpER
. Site Visit ® Site Visit * Site Visit
B ER B ER BihE 5
L Interview * Interview * |Interview
BIEA ik Tk
BUSINESS PARTNERS COMMUNITY
RIER HE
° Site Visit ° Social Media (e.g., public account on
B ER WeChat/WhatsApp)
*  Cooperation Meeting HRRES (BlanEE 5 BRP, WhatsApp)
S1Eex ° Company Website
NSIEERI
o Interview
. Seminar
e
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In addition to the aforementioned regular stakeholder
communications, we also enlist the services of an independent
sustainability consultant to conduct an annual materiality assessment.
This assessment involves gathering stakeholders’ perspectives
through an online survey to determine the significance of various
sustainability issues. We believe that the outcomes of this assessment
can assist us in identifying environmental, social, and governance-
related matters that are significant to the Group. This, in turn, enables
us to enhance our sustainability approach and strategies more
efficiently. The materiality assessment process encompasses the
following steps:

1. Identify 28 ESG issues that are of concern to the Group based
on recent and available stakeholder communication findings,
listing requirements and latest sustainability trend in the industry.

2. Invite stakeholders from various sectors to fill in an online survey

by rating the materiality of the issues to the Group.

3.  Carry out materiality analysis based on the collected data and
combine with the assessment of the management.
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The materiality matrix below outlines the results of the materiality LA T&EFIFRE BB EE T HAER o R
assessment. The top 16 issues placed on the top right-hand corner  %EfEA FAM16IEEZB ARE AN ZEE 1§
of the matrix are the most significant issues identified and will be ~ PAZRRE EZHIHFE -

highlighted in this Report.
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Employment
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M|

HERERRE

Most significant issues and relevant section in this Report are shown B AEZEET RPN AREKE RTKE
below: S
ESG Topics Section in this Report Page Number
RE - HEBREREER ARENELH BH
1. Quallity of services Wastewater Treatment P.21-22
R E % H7KBRIE
2. Services safety and health Biofuel Pellet Production P. 22-23
AR5 %2 2 TR M RRRL R A
5. Customer data protection and privacy Privacy Protection P. 39
RIS % P BUR AL BEALRE
7. Anti-fraud and corruption Upholding Business Ethics and Integrity P. 47-48
[ SEBR IR B &S
8. Anti-corruption training
R&E 55
9. Environmental and social performance of suppliers Managing Suppliers P. 38
HEFRRE LT ERIR B rER
10.  Supplier selection process and
tendering management
HERTUERBENBRER
11.  Natural disaster/emergency response and Air, Greenhouse Gas Emissions and P. 31-32
management Use of Energy
RKE B2 EEMERE FER - REREBBEMMELIRERE
14. Trammg and development Employee Development P. 45-46
ol R BT #RE
16.  Occupational health and safety Employees’ Wellbeing P. 44
BEREREL S BIRRE
17.  Air emissions management Air, Greenhouse Gas Emissions and P. 31-32
Use of Energy
REBBEHER FER - RZEREBBEMMEEIRERE
18.  Energy consumption Air, Greenhouse Gas Emissions and p.31-32
Use of Energy
BEIROH#E BER R EREHENEERERE
19.  Climate change Climate Resilience Strategies P. 35-36
IR RIREC R EME
20.  Discharge quality management Wastewater Emissions and Use of P. 33
Water
PMEEREE REIKBE R K FA 7K
22.  Hazardous and non-hazardous waste management  Waste Emissions P. 33
BENERIEEYER REBERL
25.  Green procurement Managing Suppliers p. 38
R EIRE EIRHER
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CREATING GREEN FORTUNE

The Group acknowledges its inherent responsibility to create a
positive environmental impact. Consequently, we have implemented
comprehensive policies and measures in our day-to-day operations.
Simultaneously, we strictly adhere to applicable laws and regulations
in the jurisdictions where we operate, governing our environmental
performance, as well as aspects related to health and safety,
advertising, labeling, and privacy within our environmental solutions
business. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance concerning relevant laws and
regulations.

AIR, GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS AND USE OF
ENERGY

The Group’s air emissions, greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, and
energy consumption mainly stem from purchased electricity, fuel
usage in company vehicles, machinery, and other equipment, as well
as the generation of air pollutants and odors during operations. As
an environmental solutions service provider, we recognize our duty
to mitigate air and GHG emissions and optimize energy utilization in
order to address global warming and climate change. We undertake
various measures to achieve this goal, including:
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RIE - HERERBE

A FIR

Optimizing use of energy

BLREIRIERE

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Managing air emissions o

BEIERER N

Minimizing odor °

2023 Annual Report

Build atmospheric environmental protection zone
surrounding exterior to our wastewater treatment facility
to minimize the negative impact of air pollutants imposed
to the surrounding environment

kKRB REEEERNRRERER - FEMIE
RSADEEEZERNEETE

Conduct regular testing on air pollutants to ensure the
emissions meet industrial and local standards

EITE R BARBERBERATATRRAMIRE

Build deodorization facilities in the wastewater treatment
facilities to absorb odor

KGR R EERRRFE

Adopt biological deodorization technology in Rugao
Hengfa Facilities

TEUNR 15 3% SR i R A AE VI RR R iT

Plant trees around the facilities to absorb odor

& A EREEA - LARRR

Collect and transport waste properly to reduce odor

HERFMERREY - AR EK

Turn off the engines of idled vehicles
AR EREMSIE
Require employees to turn off electrical appliances when
leaving

ERE TR e B ERE
Turn down the air flowrate of blowers according to
the quality and level of dissolved oxygen of incoming
wastewater in the wastewater treatment facilities to
reduce use of energy
RIBARSIOKEMAFERFEREREE - B
RHRE
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WASTE EMISSIONS

We acknowledge that our business operations generate both non-
hazardous and hazardous waste, such as sludge, waste oil, used
batteries, general refuse, chemicals, jerry cans, and oil filters. We
recognize that these waste emissions can have an adverse impact
on the environment. Therefore, we are dedicated to managing them
in a rigorous and responsible manner by advocating waste reduction
at the source and ensuring proper handling of waste emissions. To
achieve this, we have implemented a waste management system
that provides guidance to employees on separating different types
of waste, including non-recyclable waste, recyclable waste, and
hazardous waste. Our wastewater plants are equipped with storage
facilities for hazardous waste, ensuring its temporary storage in a
suitable manner, while chemicals are stored securely to prevent spills.
We have engaged sanitation service providers to collect general
refuse and screener residue, as well as third-party providers with the
necessary qualifications to collect and handle dewatered sewage
sludge generated from wastewater facilities.

Furthermore, we actively promote the concept of a “green office” to
minimize the use of office paper and reduce waste at its source. We
encourage our employees to embrace electronic communication,
adopt double-sided printing practices, and reuse single-sided paper
whenever possible.

WASTEWATER EMISSIONS AND USE OF WATER

ELL Environmental acknowledges the significance of water
conservation and responsible management of water resources.
The Group utilizes both municipal and underground water for its
daily operations and has not encountered any issues regarding
water sourcing. In order to preserve water resources, the Group
actively promotes the reuse of treated wastewater, such as
for equipment cleaning purposes. Wastewater is generated
during our operations, and to address this, we have established
wastewater treatment facilities to treat industrial wastewater before
it is discharged. Additionally, we have constructed a wastewater
treatment facility at RPSL to treat industrial wastewater and septic
tanks to treat municipal wastewater prior to discharge. We conduct
regular inspections of water quality, ensuring compliance with the
requirements outlined in Government Regulation No. 82/2001 on the
Management of Water Quality. The inspection criteria encompass
parameters such as total suspended solids, pH levels, metals, and
phosphate content.
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NOISE EMISSIONS

The Group recognizes that its daily operations, particularly at its
plants, have the potential to generate noise that may negatively
impact the surrounding environment. To mitigate these effects, we
have implemented the following measures:

° Purchase low-noise equipment if possible

o Install vibration absorber and damping base to reduce noise
generated from equipment

° Install rubber damper on windows and doors to absorb noise
o Plant trees or bamboos surrounding the plants to absorb noise

° Conduct regular inspection to ensure equipment are in good
condition without noise from friction or loose parts

MANAGING IMPACT ON ENVIRONMENT AND
NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group is dedicated to identifying and mitigating the environmental
impact of its operations to reduce its carbon footprint and promote
positive environmental outcomes. Specifically, for RPSL in Indonesia,
an environmental impact assessment has been conducted to
evaluate the potential environmental effects of constructing its biofuel
pellet production plant. The assessment report identified emissions,
including waste, air emissions, and wastewater, and recommended
measures to manage and reduce these emissions, thereby minimizing
the environmental impact. ELL Environmental remains committed to
promoting sustainable practices and minimizing its operational impact
on the environment.
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CLIMATE CHANGE AND RESILIENCE

Recognizing the escalating issue of climate change, we are dedicated
to assuming our responsibility in addressing this global challenge.
The Group has incorporated assessments and strategies to address
physical, chronic, and transitional risks associated with climate
change. In doing so, we have utilized the framework provided by the
Financial Stability Board’s Task Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD) to identify climate-related risks and opportunities.
Corresponding risk mitigation measures have been formulated to
address the risks accordingly. We would evaluate the effectiveness
of existing mitigation measures and explore possible areas of
improvement on a regular basis, further strengthening our business
resilience towards climate change.

Climate-related risks

EMHE e

RARAEBA R

R HERERHRE

wmiES LR
ERREECHEVBERE  RMABRSB
BRERUREZECEENELE - AKEDH

[\ BF 4 AN BB e A T B SRUR B E R A
FANSEERE  BEEBMERIERR - &
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Our Responses

Physical Risks
BERER

Acute physical risk

SHERERR

The frequency and severity of extreme weather events,
such as super typhoons or heavy rains and floods have
increased, leading to damage to the Group’s facilities
and manufacturing equipment

fRim R REM - iR Ee RS R IR FE AR
MEREMMNE - EEREERE N EERFEER

Disruption in Supply Chain

{3t P 8 o IR

Due to supply chain disruption caused by extreme
weather events, suppliers are unable to provide
products and services to the Group on time, leading to
an increase in supplier production costs

Rfim R R E SR P A - R EXIRE R
S ERMEm MRS - SR E R £ ARG

Transition Risks

Bk

More ambitious climate policies and regulations to
support national decarbonization efforts, resulting in an
increase in our cost of operation

B R RIRBUR AUE IR A S BB SORBR RS - B3
HAPIEY 2B A IE AN

Increased public attention on environmental protection
and climate issues has increased market demand

for the use of low-carbon equipment and measures,
leading to an increase in raw material prices
ABRERBRENRIEEENB RS - <TI5EE
ﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁﬁ?&ﬁﬂ%ﬁ@ﬁ@%ﬁﬁr% * AIRE S| BURM BHER
=

Regularly inspect and maintain facilities to ensure
normal operation and resistance to severe weather
EHREMEERE  BEEEEETNNEES
KR,

Providing flexible work arrangements with
precautionary measures in place to ensure the
safety of our employees
BN T B IREED 1E ik - LAIRE T
ofoaea

Adopt a diversified supplier selection strategy and
select other suppliers when there is a supply chain
interruption, and reserve raw materials in advance
EMZ b e BE R - AR EET AR S
Hbtrer - BRI ERME

Regularly monitoring the latest government policies,
regulatory updates, and market trends
EHE R SNBAER - BB EHM MM I5EBE

Adopt measures to save energy and reduce
consumption to reduce the carbon footprint of our
business
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We recognize the significance of addressing the opportunities and K fIEZ B EH RIFECEG MEENESE
risks associated with climate change and have formulated the 4 - W #|FEE - HEREARE - EFF
Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) Management Policy, ZRIEE(LERS - R G EIRARBEZ(LE
which incorporates a climate change strategy. The policy strives to B FRIE - AF L EE AREFME - HKFD

enhance our climate risk management and performance. To make  #IIE A N4 B Z -

our operations more resilient towards climate change, we have
established the following green targets:

Our Green Targets

REBRE

22 e Toreduce our Scope 1 and 2

.II ) greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions

Emissions intensity by improving energy efficiency

228 and incorporating energy-saving
measures
FiRIR = AR R R BN A R T ite
A SBEN K2 RERBINEE

@ ° To minimize our waste generation

(] intensity, avoiding unnecessary

Waste consumption

BEEW BERVEEVELTE  BRTUE
HHRE

-‘@'— e To reduce our energy consumption

i 3 . intensity by implementing energy

Energy conservation measures

BEIR FRE R M R REREE

'ﬂ e  Toimprove water consumption intensity

= by implementing water conservation
Water measures
FAK FRE MK - WA A ERE

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2023 Annual Report

Progress

EE

@'s

In Progress

#EITH

@xs

In Progress

#EITH

@fi

In Progress
#EITH

@fb

In Progress

HEITH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRiR - HERERERE

ENVIRONMENTAL KPIS RISRMBENIEE
2023 2022  Unit
—E-= “ToCF Bf
Air Emissions BEREER
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) RELHMINOY 975.11 146146 kg AT
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) REt SOy 7.50 9.33 kg AfT
Particulate Matters (PM) BFER(PM) 13.98 1727 kg AfF
GHG Emissions BERBHER
Total BE 7,990.03 8,860.76  1CO,eq AME—E(LIEE
Direct Emissions (Scope 1) BEREm(EE-) 155.11 89.37 {CO-eq AM_S/LHtEE
Indirect Emissions (Scope 2) R EER(8E =) 7,835.75 502311  1CO,eq RME_S(LHEE
GHG Removal (Scope 1) BERERG(8E-) 0.83 0 tCO-eq AM_S(LERES
Intensity (Scope 1 & Scope 2) BE(GE—-REHE ) 79.75 52.26 kg of CO,e/m?
ATZEREE/FHXk
Hazardous Wastes Generated BEEEY
Total rs 5.69 3.62  tonnes Al
Intensity A 0.06 004 kg/m2 AfF/EHx%
Non-hazardous Wastes Generated BEREY
Total Bws 13,014.50 11,794.11  tonnes M3
General Refuse —RRREY) 6.10 6.10  tonnes’ A
Sludge Ak 13,008.40 11,788.01  tonnesAME
Intensity %E 129.90 17.72 kg2 A/ FH%
Energy Consumption BRERE
Total we 11,855.73 790396 Mwh F{ETEE
Purchased Electricity INEEN 11,304.62 7,78210  MWh TET RE
Diesel Ol 4o 531.99 86.85 MWh FETRE
Unleaded Petrol 3P 19.12 35.01  MWh FETHRE
Intensity nE 118.33 78.89  kWh/m2 TEE/FHk
Water Consumption Ak
Total B 161,356.30 1361870 me LK
Intensity BE 1.61 014  mymSLHXK/Fhk
Remarks: 5t
1. Unless otherwise stated, the calculation methodology referred to “How 1.  BRIFZSEHA  HHEFEZEFTBERHME

to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by HKEX and “EMEP/EEA Air Pollutant Emission

Inventory Guidebook” issued by European Environment Agency.

2. The emission factor for Scope 2 emissions from RPSL adopted from the 2.
latest sustainability reports of the local power companies.

3. Due to business nature, the Group is not involved in the use of packaging 3.

material for finished products.

MO IARREIRE - L e REARE — Mk
= RRHREBIEERSERE)MENRE
E B M EMEP/EEAZ RIS AWM BB B4
BFAH] -

RPSLAYEERBI M A BERA T EHE AT
BT EERRE -

RNEBILE - REENS R AR R BEM
HEM -

BERREREBRLE ZBI=ZFFRK
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MANAGING SUPPLIERS

As at 31 December 2023, we have a total of 43 suppliers. We
mainly worked with local suppliers to minimize the greenhouse
gas emissions generated from transportation. Below shows the
distribution of the suppliers by geographical locations:

ETHMERS

H 1F2023F 12 A31 8 - ANEBE HEA3K
EREATE - R EBEAEEEESE - LA
WO RERELHEEREIN o AT A
FE R IR Do

Distribution of suppliers by locations
HEREIRIE D

B Mainland China
H EIFE

We prioritize managing the environmental and social impacts of
our suppliers. Our Code of Conduct requires suppliers to uphold
environmental, social, and governance principles, and we conduct
regular assessments to ensure compliance. Non-compliant suppliers
may face termination or corrective measures.

Furthermore, we emphasize the quality of our suppliers’ products
and services, as they directly affect the quality of our operations. We
conduct thorough assessments of potential new suppliers, evaluating
their qualifications, product/service quality, pricing, and reputation
to ensure they meet our standards. Likewise, existing suppliers
undergo regular assessments to ensure they continue to meet our
expectations. Our commitment is to maintain high standards of
product and service quality throughout our supply chain, providing
exceptional value to our customers.
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
PRIVACY PROTECTION

As part of our business operations, we deal with confidential
information such as customer data, business information, and
financial information of the Group. To safeguard the privacy of this
information and address customer concerns, we have implemented
stringent measures. These measures include enforcing our personnel
management policy and employee handbook, which prohibit the
unauthorized disclosure of private information to third parties without
prior consent. We also utilize password protection for computers
housing confidential data and store physical copies of sensitive
materials in a secure location equipped with electronic locks and 24-
hour surveillance cameras.

ADVERTISING

The Group complies with applicable laws and regulations when
developing promotional materials. We conduct comprehensive
reviews of these materials prior to publication to ensure that they do
not contain any misleading information that could potentially harm
consumer rights. As our business does not heavily rely on product
labelling, this is not a prominent concern for the Group.

R HERERHRE

EREBN—®D  RMIEREREER
BREFPEMN  SENEBENMMBE
ko RIREBERLE - BREPZL - HM
EEEERER  BRERETETANE
FAERHERETFM  EREREATE
RELEMEE=TKE - HRMTSNHT
BEEHNERREDR  URHEERE
R SR B F SN 24/ N EE PR R
BRERERMM T -

&
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CARING OUR PEOPLE

ELL Environmental places great importance on the contributions
made by each employee towards the sustainable development of
the company. We are committed to creating a healthy and safe
workplace that fosters a supportive atmosphere for all employees. We
are in stringent compliance with labour related laws and regulations.
During the Reporting Period, ELL Environmental was not aware of
any significant violations of relevant laws and regulations in terms of
compensation, dismissal, recruitment, promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, benefits, and
welfare.
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EMPLOYEE OVERVIEW B R#5E

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 133! employees, 2023412 A31H @+ £EE L F133' & B

with 31 in the PRC and 102 in Indonesia. T HEBARFE - 1028 LREE °
By Gender
i3]l
I I By Employment Type
2023 2022 ERLER
m Male
B 116 109
Female 17 17
g3
By Age
Fhe
- [ |
o I - I 2023 2022
2023 2022 m Senior
= 20 or below management 3 4
2085 AT 1 4 SRERE
21-30 Middle
21-30%% o o management 18 24
HARERE
m31-40
31-405 46 41 ® Technical staff
R T 4 67
4 'SOJL 19 18 General staff
41-503% —wET 38 31
51-60
51-605% 6 6
61 or above
B1RREIA L 4 4

1 The number of employee only includes employee of Rugao Hengfa and PT 1 BT ASEZBIENREEMEERPSLAET -
Rimba Palma Sejahtera Lestari.
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BRI - dEREREE

During the Reporting Period, the employee turnover rate? by gender,

age group and geographical region is as below:

By Age
FiR
2023
m 20 or below
20ssp T 300%
21-30
By Gender 01302 21%
1| |
5 m 31-40 2o,
31-40%% ’
l 4150 .
2023 41-507%

m Male 51-60 0
B 16% 51-60%% 1
Female 61 or above
i 6% 615Ra A L 0%

EQUALITY AND WORK-LIFE BALANCE

ELL Environmental is fully committed to fostering a harmonious
workplace and upholding labor rights in accordance with applicable
labor laws, regulations, and standards. We adhere to the principles of
diversity, equality, and non-discrimination in all aspects of our human
resources practices, including recruitment, remuneration, promotion,
and training. Every employee is treated fairly and equally, irrespective
of their gender, age, race, religion, marital status, nationality, or sexual

orientation.

2 Employee turnover rate is calculated by number of employee turnover in a
category divided by total number of employee in that category.
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We provide competitive remuneration and comprehensive benefits
to our employees as a token of recognition for their valuable
contributions. The remuneration package encompasses a basic
salary, allowances, and bonuses. Our remuneration system
undergoes regular reviews to ensure alignment with market levels and
remain competitive. Moreover, we fulfill our obligations by contributing
to various employee benefits, such as social insurance and housing
provident fund in the PRC, as well as pension, health insurance,
work-related insurance, and termination compensation in Indonesia,
as mandated by the respective laws and regulations in each country.

Employee Benefits

BIR - dEREREE

BAAEITREARFNIOHFIER - AKX
BHMNEEER - HFMEREENHH - %
RN RS - HAIMFHMHE S EMETE
L - URERETISCH RS — BRI HF
B e pehh - BFIHLEITES - RIFEED
ME - BMEREIEN  flnhENte
REMEELES  UWRHENERKRE - &
FfRle - TIERRBRBRMEREESS -

ETIEA

° Public holidays ° Medical allowance

o AR o EEER

° Statutory holidays ° Overtime allowance
s JETERH o EBFFHAL

° Sick leave ° Discretionary bonus
e AR o EYIBETEA

° Marriage leave ° Mourning allowance
e R e  Zf®

o Maternity leave ° Religious holiday allowance
e ER o REENERRL

° Compassionate leave ° Meal allowance

o BIMfR o ERERL

° Annual leave

e FR

° Health insurance
s  EBERR

o Company trip

o AFES

° Festive gifts

e ENHEEm
° Heatstroke prevention supplies
o EmfEAL

° Health check
. fEEER

BERRERERDF ZZZ=FFRH
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EMPLOYEES’ WELLBEING

We acknowledge our responsibility to prioritize the well-being of
our employees. The Group strictly adheres to applicable laws and
regulations to ensure the health and safety of our employees. We
have implemented robust occupational health and safety measures
to safeguard our employees, which include:

° Providing Personal Protective Equipment to applicable
employees including gloves, work clothes, masks, ear plug, ear
muff, safety helmet and welding glasses

° Conducting inspections on a regular basis on fire-fighting
equipment, facilities and electrical appliances

° Conducting fire and emergency drills regularly as well as
arranging safety trainings to ensure employees are equipped
with relevant knowledge and skills

o Arranging designated personnel to oversee the safety of the
work area

° Organizing sport and leisure activities
During the past three years including the Reporting Period, the Group
was not aware of any work-related fatalities. There were 2 minor

work-related injuries in Indonesia during the Reporting Period and
resulted in 5 man-day lost.
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EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT

We acknowledge the significance of providing employees with
training and promotion opportunities to support their professional
growth in line with the development of the Group. We are committed
to establishing and maintaining a comprehensive career development
ladder that ensures equal promotion opportunities based on
performance appraisal outcomes. Regular performance appraisals
are conducted to assess employees’ work performance, abilities, and
skills.

In terms of training, we formulate a training plan each year with a
diverse range of training programs catered to employees’ necessary
job skills and personal development goals. In the Reporting Period,
we provided 598 hours of training.

R HERERHRE

RI%RE

BAIRA R E TREEIFNE S IASH
PN FEERREEEERFRE —RNER
o BMPIBH BN E AR R
B ERRBESGHAAEREHRTFENETT
He o BMSTHETER G  FFHET
M TERIR - BENAIBRE

EFFITE - BPIBFHIEZIEE - Y
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RIE - 2 REREE

Training ratio by gender
tzd kbl E bl |

2023
" Female 809
pegi °

Average training hours
completed per
employee by gender
rUEREI SN EEE
TERH) I B8R

2023
mMale
TS e
" Female
2l 208

Training ratio by
employment type
IR EERIZ D XL

2023
= %—e&% ;%z;gagement 33%
- l;'/lji%?lé gzﬁéagement 44%
" o 2%

Average training hours
completed per employee
by employment type
REERMNEIDHELIESR
TERHY I X B 28

2023
m Management
= 2
T E 029
w Technical staff
B8 T 10.97
[ (ie;%nﬁeéallstaﬁ 64.53
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LABOR STANDARDS

We are committed to being a responsible and desirable employer,
strictly adhering to applicable labor standards in all jurisdictions where
we operate, and prohibiting the recruitment of child and forced labor.
Throughout the recruitment process, we verify the personal identity
documents of candidates to ensure they meet the legal working
age, thus preventing the occurrence of child labor. Clear policies on
rest periods, leave, overtime work, working hours, dismissal, and
related arrangements are in place to prevent forced labor. In cases
of staff resignation or dismissal, appropriate compensation is offered
in accordance with relevant labor laws and regulations. Instances of
illegal or forced labor are thoroughly investigated and addressed in
compliance with local laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any instances of
child or forced labor within the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group is dedicated to fostering a fair and transparent business
environment and promoting ethical behavior in all our operations.
We strictly adhere to applicable laws and regulations, prohibiting
corruption, bribery, fraud, money laundering, and other unethical and
unlawful behaviors within the Group. To uphold these principles, we
have implemented an Anti-corruption Policy and Code of Conduct
that requires employees to uphold business ethics and integrity at all
times.
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To encourage a culture of transparency and accountability, we have
also established a Whistleblowing Policy that allows employees and
third parties to report any suspicious cases or misconduct while
ensuring their identities remain confidential. We promptly investigate
such reports and take appropriate actions to protect the rights of the
Group and our stakeholders. We will also arrange trainings from time
to time to raise employees’ awareness of relevant issues.

In the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance relating to corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

CONTRIBUTING TO COMMUNITY

ELL Environmental places a strong emphasis on engaging with and
addressing the concerns of the community. We firmly believe that
achieving a harmonious coexistence between business growth and
community investment is a fundamental aspect of our sustainable
strategy. We prioritize activities such as wastewater treatment and
involvement in new energy initiatives that benefit the community as a
whole.

Each year, we allocate substantial resources to community
investment and actively encourage our employees to participate
in volunteer activities, showcasing our commitment to corporate
social responsibility. During the Reporting Period, our wastewater
treatment facility donated RMB71,000 to a local charity organisation
that raises funds to support the needy in the community. In addition,
biofuel pellet production business in Indonesia donated to people in
need in the community, mainly including necessities, amounting over
130,000,000 rupiah.
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MATERIAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS FEZREBH

Mainland China Indonesia

REIRE Eje

Environmental

EHA B

BIR
Aspect A1: Environmental Protection Law of the PRC Law No. 32/2009 on Environmental
Environment (PEARKEMBIRIBREE) Protection and Management

Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the PRC
(hE ARKEMBIARGEDEZE)

Water Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the PRC
(PRI A R EMBIASTRIFEED

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste
CEBEREY S R BIENAE)

Government Regulation No. 82/2001 on
the Management of Water Quality
5582/2001 SR B /K E E R BT IR0

F32/20095FCRIFREMEIRE)

Government Regulation No. 41/1999 on
Air Pollution Control

BT RS LIS 8925 41/19995R BT
ERR

Government Regulation No. 101/2014 on
Management of Hazardous Waste and
Toxic

ERESLEEMERERY  BBNE
101/201458 BUT A #

Law No. 7/2004 on Water Resources
BRKEIRRZET/200457 %512

Regulation of the Minister of Energy

and Mineral Resources No. 12/2017 on
Utilization of Renewable Energy Sources
for Power Supply of the Republic of
Indonesia

BN AR BERRAEREERRETR
HE RS 12/201 757 s IR K EE B R BP0
£<

BERREREBRLE ZBI=ZFFRK
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EEB1 : EfE

Mainland China Indonesia
RE A ENfe
Social
e
Aspect B1: e Labour Law of the PRC
Employment (REARKEMBELEE)

e |Labour Contract Law of the PRC
(REARKEMBELESHERE)

e Social Insurance Law of the PRC

(PEARAMBEHSREE)

Aspect B2: Health
and Safety

[EmEB2 :
(eI

e Production Safety Law of the PRC e Government Regulation No. 50/2012 on

(REARBEMELZEER) Implementation of Occupational Safety
and Health Management Systems of the
Republic of Indonesia
HEEAEANEERRER2REEE
18 | 5550/201 25k B /A AR

Aspect B4: Labour

e Provisions on the Prohibition of Using

[EmEB7 - RES

Standards Child Labour

[EEB4 : (CEIEFERETIRE)
BT AR

Aspect B6: e Advertising Law of the PRC
Product (REARKEMBESZE)
Responsibility

[EEBS6 :
EmAE

Aspect B7: Anti- e Law of the PRC on Anti-Unfair
corruption Competition

(PEARAMBERMEREHFE)

e  Criminal Law of the PRC
(EE ARFEMBIFE)

e Interim Provisions on Banning
Commercial Bribery

(BERFELAXRBETANETRE)
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RIE - HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE EFEBTH(ER  HERELREE
REPORTING GUIDE INDEX sDAERsI

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration

IEHR - BH  —REEREEENIESR 8- 17

Environmental

A BRI

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA1 : BERY

General Disclosure Creating Green P. 31-37,
Information on: Fortune 49-50

(@) the policies; and gl EiE

(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant FERE LR

impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
Note: Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulated under
national laws and regulations. Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide,
methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur
hexafluoride. Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.

—RRHEE

EHBERMBRERBEHEN - MKRIHHOEES BEREESEEVNELES
Hy :
@ Bx: &

(o) BFTHETABEAZENHBEELROINER

7 BREREERRAENY MY REMZBERERERRIIRE RS
Y o REREBBRIE_SMLIR - Tt - SDR - ERREEY - 2HEHRKE
REUCHE - BEREEMEERROIAAES

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emission data. Environmental p. 37
: - : KPIs
BISRAEN | BEMRDTENE AT HE OIS - -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
FTEHE BFH > —REERERERIES 55, B BEH
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas | Environmental P. 37
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per | KPIs
unit of production volume, per facility). IRIBEREW
. N e e e . . N Ei=tid
MR | BEE(EEN) REpREE(BE2)REREBHME (UBEETE) & "
EiZA12  |(ER)BE(NUESESEN - BBERETE) -
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
BREN |MELAESMELGTEEDES UNE) R(WER)EE
EFA13  |(WABESEA - BIERBHE) °
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
BREN |MELEEEEDRE (U8 R(nER)ZE (IWAEES
BIEA14 | B BIERBTE) ©
KPIA1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve | Creating Green p. 31-37
them. Fortune
. N ) \ N B BliEEiE
FASRAER AT MR E B IR R RE DS L B IR AT ERER Y 205 - -
FEIFA15
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
BRER | HRIRERENBEFEEYN A - MEIPAET S ROREE B 1R
EIFA1.6 | RAEREL B IRATEREE ZH o
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number

IRER EFH - —REBERERENER 8- 10 1 HE

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EHA2 : EREA

General Disclosure Creating Green p. 31-37
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other Fortune
raw materials. s EME

Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in
buildings, electronic equipment, etc.

—RRINEE
BRERER(BIELIR - K REMERME)BIBR -
it BRAAREE  #7F EH - BF  ETREF-

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Environmental P. 37
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per| KPIs
unit of production volume, per facility). RIBEHRE N
£t

BBEN | RERSISNERR SEEER(WE - Reloh) RS (AT
BEA2 | ETERAE)REBEE(WAGEREN - 8AREAE)

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

MEN  |RRKERTEWMNSEEEN §1R
HEIRA2.2

T5) e

ok

i)

.

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken | Creating Green p. 31-37
to achieve them. Fortune

. \ - o PN — BB E
ARSI | AP AREIR(E s BIZ K AE R E L B AR -
EIEA2.3  |BR o

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

BASRAERY | WAUKEUERKR LB AR E - A RPTR] LA Ak ER B
BiRA2.4 | BRRAEDIEL BRI o

BERREREBRLE ZBI=ZFFRK
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
FTEHE BFH > —REERERERIES 55, B BEH
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) Not applicable N/A
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. to the Group’s TiEA
business
BIEH | B RAABKIH AR IR ) R (NER SEERT | famakem
FE1EA2.5 b o O
Aspect A3: Environmental and Natural Resources
BEAS | BER K AL
General Disclosure Managing Impact | P. 34
Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and | on Environment
natural resources. and Natural
- Resources
:ﬂxﬁaa . P SR YIRIEAN
R EIT A IRIE N RAAERERERNTZENBR B RSB 2
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
BRER | EBESHRERRAERNEATEREKNEEFH
EIZA3 | EMTH -
Aspect A4: Climate Change
[EEA4 : RIFZL
General Disclosure Climate Resilience | P. 35-36

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

—RIKEE

BRI R EH DAL REHETAEEAXENEARGHEEENEE -

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.

RAAEN (DN SRETAEATENEARGREEEE - &

BIRAA | EEITH -

Strategies

RIREME M BT
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
TEER - EH - —REBERBRENERE 55,89 HE

B. Social

B. &

Employment and Labour Standards

BREREZEIER

Aspect B1: Employment

EmEB1 : &Ef&

General Disclosure Caring Our P. 40-47
Information on: People

(@) the policies; and MEET

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

—REEE

BT ERE BERSEH - TENE - B - FEKe 2l RE
BAREM B REN

(@ BUR &

(o) BFHETABERTZEMNBEEZERRONER

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- | Employee P. 41-42
or part-time), age group and geographical region. Overview
BEBE

BASHER | HRMER - BRER (NERBEGRE) - FiAER Rt 5 HE
EFEB11 | B4R -

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
region.

BRRAERL  |HMER - FEARI KBS D BB IRKLLE o
FE1EB1.2

BERREREBRLE ZBI=ZFFRK
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance
indicators (“KPIs”)

IRER EFH - —REBERERENER

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

Section/
Declaration

BB

Page
Number

HE

EHEB2: @EHEZE

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

—RIE
ERRHZ2THEREMREREERECHMEGLEEN !
@ BER &

(b) BTHETABEAZENRBEERLROINER -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities in the past three years
(including the current year).

BREN |BE=FREEAFE)BEFAITHMAABKRILE -
151ZB2.1

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.

e |RAIBEKXIERR-
¥E15B2.2

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.

BREN | WAATERANBERERERET2EE - URAAERITRERTE -
1E1FB2.3

Employees’
Wellbeing
BTRE

P. 44
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number

IRER EFH - —REBERERENER 8- 10 1 HE

Aspect B3: Development and Training

FEEBS3 : #EKIEH

General Disclosure Employee P. 45-46
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties | Development
at work. Description of training activities. BT 3%E

Note: Training refers to vocational training, which may include both internal
and external courses paid for by the employer.

—RRIBEE
BRIRTTHE B ETT TIERE M MBS BOR - HWuliEdIEE) -
i IEFIERIERE - AT REMEE N B RIMEIRIE o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).

MEN  |RUAIRESERN(NSRERE PREEE)EONZIIE
¥E1EB31  |BAND °

KPIB3.2 | The average training hours completed per employee by gender
and employee category.

A | RMURIREEERED  BREE KN TFRE -
¥E1%B3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

EEB4 : & T#A|

General Disclosure Labour Standards | P. 47
Information on: & TR

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

—REEE

BRAD I E Taisat|4 TH ¢

@ BX: &

(b) BFHETABEATENRBEEZLROINER -

BERREREBRLE ZBI=ZFFRK
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
FTEHE BFH > —REERERERIES 55, B BEH
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Labour Standards | P. 47
avoid child and forced labour. AL T AR
PRGN | R TR B Pl AR B T RAHIA T -
151EB4.1
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.
BABRE | IR E RIE AR ER A ISP ERERE) 28R o
1E1EB4.2
Operating Practices
ZEEN
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS : ftEHEEE
General Disclosure Managing p. 38
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Suppliers
EIRHER

—RIE

EIRHERNORE NS RBREBUR

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BgER | RtREDHERBE -

1513B5.1

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

BgER | EAEARERES - MERITERIEBAMHERE

#E1EB5.2 | B - URABENMITRERGE -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
FTEHE BFH > —REERERERIES 55, B BEH
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social | Managing P. 38
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and | Suppliers
monitored. BEMER
BSEN (AR HEEESERSNRE g RRNIED - AR
EIEB5.3 | MHERITRERTE -
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.
BRER | EREHERRRE S ARREmKRBEED - AR
E1EB5.4  |FITRERA -
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : ERET
General Disclosure Creating Green P. 31-37,
Information on: Fortune 49-50
(@) the policies; and BliER s
(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant FERENRH
impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of redress.
—MRIREE
BHFRHERNBENREEL S - B  REMMEBEEURERTE
Hy -
(@) BUE: &
(o) BFEETAGEARZENHRBERELROINER
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls Not applicable N/A
for safety and health reasons. to the Group’s T E A
N s business
RGN |EERCEXEREAHPRLTEEZRIPAMALKK B L .
el o - 7 rERRAEE
T EOES

BERRREREBRLA

—Eo=EEH
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
FTEHE BFH > —REERERERIES 55, B BEH
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received No significant N/A
and how they are dealt with. complaints TE A
BRGRAEN | BRI B RBRTS 01 T B B LA R PRS0 o rocalved.
Fif o
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Not applicable N/A
intellectual property rights. to the Group's T EA
PRGN | HOLER R RIS AR E A BB - business
imne 3 THARAEE
' EOES
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. | Not applicable N/A
=E X 443 = = [m] =0 o h ’ ~iE
Mg | ML ERTBRRERDER o the Group’s | T/
1512864 business
TERARARE
EOE
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, Privacy Protection | P. 39
how they are implemented and monitored. BERFLIR &
BRER  |EEBEERMRE RALEEE - A RAARTRERTE -
1E1%EB6.5
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number

IRER EFH - —REBERERENER 8- 10 1 HE

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

EEB7 : RES

General Disclosure Anti-corruption P. 47-50
Information on: RES
(@) the policies; and FEERE LA

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

—RRIEEE
B IEERES - $1R - MFERIEREM ¢
@ BEK &

(b) BFHETAGEAZENRREIENROINER -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the Reporting
Period and the outcomes of the cases.

g

BRI | NEFRBAHETASHEEEREYEELNETH
BIZB7.1  |EE NMFAAER -

AESERED

pal

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

BsER | mabsEEkBERES - UMAEMITRERTA -

HEIEB7.2

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and
staff.

RAgEN  (HmEERETRHNRESE

f51ZB7.3

BERREREBRLE ZBI=ZFFRK
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
FTEER EH - —REBERBRENER 301 B
Community

HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS8 : #HERE

General Disclosure Contributing to P. 48
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the Community
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into R ER

consideration the communities’ interests.

—RE
B R2ERBEREEMEIHERTENEREEREZDEZEBHER S
HVBUR e

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

MBEN | FIERBEIHE  REEE BLIHR BFE X8
#E1EB8.1 | B) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

MgEN | EZISBMPRER(MNSERERE) o

$51ZB8.2
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, aged 76, was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 18 March 2014 and was re-designated as the chairman
of the Board (the “Chairman”) and an executive Director of the
Company on 5 September 2014. He has been the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”)
since 5 September 2014. Mr. Chau also holds directorships in
certain subsidiaries of the Company and is mainly responsible for
business development and formulation of strategies of the Group. He
joined the Group in December 2002 as a director of Everbest Water
Treatment Development Company Limited (“Everbest”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chau is a director of
and owns 90% of the issued shares in Wealthy Sea Holdings Limited
(“Wealthy Sea”), a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Chau obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese language and
literature from Xiamen University (EF9A2) in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) in August 1968. He is currently a member
of the 12th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (FF Bl A RBUA R €:%), a deputy officer
of the Social and Legal Affairs Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (2 BBt € f1;%54|& B €) and
the vice chairman and the secretary-general of the 10th board of
directors of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations (& &
122 EEE). Mr. Chau was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star and
a Silver Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong government in 2010 and
2016, respectively.

Directors’ Biographical Details

ESZEABE

PITES
BAZzEREE
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FRARHATAARRESSERE([£
BDEHNTES -FE-Z—WFNAARA
EB—EHEAEEEWNRERZES([RBEE
SDEF - ALRAENEERRARETHER
FIMEERS  TEZaTAEEMNERER
MRBEFIRT - FR T —_F+-AMNAR
SEEEAQREE2ENB A REZKE
%Eﬁ@ AI([E®])MNEE - BLtEARK
REEEZERFEEEEERAR(EE®
BEXWHEBHDBITRMHAIN0% ©

BRER—NANFNARPEARKNE
([HE)EMASHEBEEEEXEETE
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Directors’ Biographical Details

ESCZBEABE

Mr. Chau has held directorships in various companies listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr.
Chau was the chairman and an executive director of China Ocean
Industry Group Limited (delisted) (previous stock code: 651) from
September 2007 and had ceased to be the chairman from June
2015 and was re-designated as the non-executive director and
appointed as the honorary chairman from June 2015 to December
2019. Mr. Chau has also been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Redco Properties Group Limited (stock code:
1622), Come Sure Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 794), Million
Hope Industries Holdings Limited (stock code: 1897) and Beijing
Enterprises Water Group Limited (stock code: 371) since January
2014, February 2009, June 2020 and April 2021, respectively. Mr.
Chau had also been an executive director of Rosan Resources
Holdings Limited (delisted) (previous stock code: 578) from March
2000 to November 2006, an independent non-executive director
of Hao Wen Holdings Limited (stock code: 8019) from June 2003
to August 2009, GR Properties Limited (stock code: 108) from
December 2008 to September 2010, Leyou Technologies Holdings
Limited (delisted) (previous stock code: 1089) from December 2010
to May 2016 and Hang Pin Living Technology Company Limited
(formerly known as Hua Long Jin Kong Company Limited) (stock
code: 1682) from September 2017 to April 2021. Mr. Chau was also
an independent non-executive director of Good Resources Holdings
Limited (delisted) (previous stock code: 109) from July 2007 and was
re-designated as an executive director from September 2021 until
Good Resources Holdings Limited was delisted in May 2022. Mr.
Chau is the father of Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, an executive Director
of the Company.

Mr. Chan Kwan

Mr. Chan Kwan, aged 41, was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 25 February 2014 and was re-designated as an
executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company
(the “CEQ”) on 5 September 2014. He has been a member of the
Nomination Committee since 5 September 2014. Mr. Chan also
holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company and is
mainly responsible for all major affairs of the Group, including project
construction and operation, business development, marketing and
formulation of strategies. Mr. Chan joined the Group in March 2007
as a director of Everbest. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan was
a database administrator at Panda Restaurant Group, Inc. in Los
Angeles, the United States (“US”), from February 2005 to December
2006.
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Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from the lowa
State University of Science and Technology in the US in December
2004. He currently serves as a member of the 13th Fujian Provincial
Political Consultative Conference (f82%& Ei#Z 8), as a member
of the China Overseas Chinese Affairs Commission (BB Z 8),
a member of the 12th Fujian Province Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (T B A RBUAH E & 3%
Bi2EZ£ 8 9), Hong Kong Election Committee member, President
of the Hong Kong Chinese Overseas Association (B/&ZEGE A
#ea ), Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong Fujian Association
Federation (&8 @Et BB € &2/=E/E). Mr. Chan is also a standing
committee member of the 10th board of directors of the Hong Kong
Federation of Fujian Associations (F/Bt@E Bt E), the chief
supervisor of the 10th Hong Kong Minxi Association Ltd. (B /&R P
&), the vice-president of the 11th Supervision Committee of Lung
Yen Residents Association of Hong Kong Limited (&% #25 [ 46
), and the president of the 2nd Hong Kong Federation of Overseas
Chinese Youth Committee (/8 ZE(E %= A42€). Mr. Chan is the elder
brother of Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, the non-executive Director of the
Company.

Mr. Chan has held directorships in various companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan was an executive director of Wan Kei
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1718) from March 2018 to
January 2022. Mr. Chan has also been appointed as a non-executive
director of DL Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 1709) since
October 2022.

Mr. Chan is the sole director of and holds a 20% shareholding
interest in Everbest Environmental Investment Limited (“Everbest
Environmental”), a controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Chan also owns 20% of the issued shares in Kingdrive Limited
(“Kingdrive”). Kingdrive owned all the issued shares in Carlton Asia
Limited which owns approximately 1.42% of the issued shares of the
Company.
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Mr. Radius Suhendra

Mr. Radius Suhendra, aged 50, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 21 October 2016. Mr. Suhendra is
mainly responsible for all major affairs of an Indonesia-incorporated
subsidiary of the Company, which was acquired by the Group in late
2016. He has been overseeing the construction and operation of the
palm kernel oil mill and the ancillary biomass power plants in that
subsidiary.

He obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration from
Ohio State University, the US, in 1996. He has 15 years of experience
in managing businesses in heavy industries in Asia, including 7 years
in managing ferrous trading business of a ferrous alloy trading firm
between 1998 and 2005 in Singapore. From 2006 to 2010, Mr.
Suhendra was the president director of PT. Indoferro which operates
blast furnace producing nickel pig iron in Indonesia.

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, aged 42, was appointed as a Director
of the Company on 18 March 2014, was re-designated as a non-
executive Director of the Company on 5 September 2014 and was
further re-designated as an executive Director of the Company and
appointed as the deputy general manager of the Group both since
April 2019. He also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chau worked as an international trade
department manager of China Ocean Shipbuilding Industry Group
Limited from February 2011 to August 2013 and a business adviser
at Vodafone Ltd. in the United Kingdom (the “UK”) from November
2005 to September 2008.

Mr. Chau was a consultant of Convoy Financial Services Limited from
August 2012 to June 2017. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in arts
from Manchester Metropolitan University in the UK in September
2005. He is also registered as a technical representative of the
Professional Insurance Brokers Association in Hong Kong. Mr. Chau
has also been an independent non-executive director of Hang Pin
Living Technology Company Limited (stock code: 1682) since April
2021. Mr. Chau is (i) the son of Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, an executive
Director of the Company and the Chairman and (ii) a director of
Wealthy Sea, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian

Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, aged 35, was appointed as a Director of
the Company on 18 March 2014 and was re-designated as a non-
executive Director of the Company on 5 September 2014. He has
been a member of the remuneration committee of the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”) since 5 September 2014. He is also
a director of three subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chan obtained
a bachelor’s degree in communication from Purdue University in the
US in May 2011. Since March 2013, Mr. Chan has been working
as marketing and sales director at PT. Indoferro. He has been
involved in the business of the Group since September 2012 when
he was appointed as a director of Exuberant Legacy Holdings Ltd.
(“Exuberant”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong, which was
intended by the then shareholders of Everbest Environmental to
be used as the holding company for the purpose of the listing of
the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange. While serving
as a director of Exuberant, Mr. Chan was involved in exploring
business opportunities in the environmental-related industry within
the larger Asia region and was also responsible for the setting up and
maintenance of the Company’s information technology system. Mr.
Chan continued to be involved in the Group’s business after he had
been appointed as a Director on 18 March 2014. Mr. Chan is the
younger brother of Mr. Chan Kwan, an executive Director and the
CEOQ.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda

Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company (the “INED”)
on 5 September 2014. She has been the chairlady of the audit
committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) and a member of
each of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
since 5 September 2014.

Ms. Ng has been a director of Linda C.Y. Ng (CPA) Limited
(previously known as Tseung & Ng (CPA) Limited) since April 2012,
prior to which she was the sole proprietor of Linda C.Y. Ng & Co.,
an accounting firm, from January 2008 to April 2013. Ms. Ng has
also been a director of Futurelink Limited since February 2004.
She has been a part-time lecturer in the School of Continuing and
Professional Education of City University of Hong Kong since October
2015 and a part-time lecturer at HKCA Learning Media Limited since
August 2010, and was a part-time lecturer at Accountancy Training
Company (International) Limited from September 2007 to April 2010.
She has been the author of “Financial Reporting in Hong Kong: SME
Edition 2015/16” published in December 2015 and “Practical Guide
to Financial Reporting Standards in Hong Kong” published by CCH
Hong Kong Limited since September 2013. She was a director of
Learning Is Fun Association Limited from June 2007 to June 2012.
Ms. Ng was a staff accountant at Ernst & Young from September
2000 to September 2001, and was promoted to senior accountant in
October 2001 until she left that firm in October 2002.

Ms. Ng obtained a master’s degree in professional accounting
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October 2009 and
a bachelor’s degree in business administration from Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in November 1997. She has
been a certified professional forensic accountant of The Institute of
Certified Forensic Accountants since September 2011, a certified tax
adviser and an associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since
September 2010, a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the UK since October 2005 and a practising member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January
2005.
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Mr. Ng Man Kung

Mr. Ng Man Kung, aged 72, joined the Group on 30 June 2014 and
was appointed as an INED on 5 September 2014. He has been the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee since 5
September 2014.

Mr. Ng studied banking courses at the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He worked in the Hong Kong banking industry for 28
years, holding senior management positions. In 1992, he was
appointed executive director and general manager of Chiyu Banking
Corporation Limited, and in 2001, he was appointed vice chairman
and chief executive officer until his retirement in 2012. Mr. Ng served
as a member of the Council of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
from April 1999 to March 2003 and as a member of the Fujian
Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference from 1993 to 2013.

Mr. Ng served as a business consultant for China Orient Asset
Management (International) Holding Limited from January 2014
to April 2015. From 11 March 2016 to 26 February 2021, he held
positions as an independent non-executive director for Guoan
International Limited (delisted) (previous stock code: 143), from 23
March 2016 to 21 March 2022, as an independent non-executive
director for Renco Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 2323), and
from 25 May 2017 to 11 January 2021, as an independent non-
executive director for Shanghai Zenda Property Limited (stock
code: 755). Additionally, he served as a non-executive director for
Roma Group Limited (stock code: 8072) from 24 August 2017 to 18
December 2017. Currently, Mr. Ng serves as an independent non-
executive director of Fujian Holdings Limited (stock code: 181) from
30 June 2014, the chairman of supervisory board for Macau Well
Link Bank since 31 March 2018, and an independent non-executive
director for Green Future Food Hydrocolloid Marine Science
Company Limited (stock code: 1084) since 25 September 2019.
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Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy

Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy, aged 51, was appointed as an INED with
effect from 15 October 2019. She has been a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee since 15 October 2019.

Ms. Leung graduated from the University of Cambridge in England
with a master’s degree in law in July 1996 and from the University
of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in law in July 1994. After
graduation, from 1996 to 2004, Ms. Leung worked at Clyde & Co.,
where her last position was associate.

Ms. Leung is a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong, England and Wales
and a partner of Leung and Lau, Solicitors LLP which she co-founded
in 2005. She co-founded L.I.M Tech Limited which commenced
operations in December 2018 and Xu Shan Charitable Foundation
Company Limited in July 2019, and has been the major shareholder
and chairlady of California Insurance Company, Limited since 2018.

Ms. Leung is presently a member of the Legal Education Committee
of the Law Society of Hong Kong. She was previously a member of
the Public Education and Publicity Sub-committee under the Steering
Committee on Mediation of the Department of Justice and the
Mediate First Pledge Sub-Group of the Public Education and Publicity
Sub-Group of the Secretary of Justice’s Working Group on Mediation
in Hong Kong. She was previously also appointed as a Deputy
District Court Judge in Hong Kong in 2012.

Ms. Leung served as the non-executive director of New Trend
Lifestyle Group Plc (LON: NTLG) from June 2016 to January 2018.
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The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to the
Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and protecting and
enhancing shareholder value through good corporate governance.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognise the
importance of incorporating elements of good corporate governance
in the management structures and internal control procedures of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) so as to achieve effective
accountability, and to enable our Shareholders to evaluate how the
principles of the CG Code (defined below) have been applied.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
the mandatory disclosure requirements and the applicable code
provisions as set out in the section headed “Part 2 — Principles of
good corporate governance, code provisions and recommended best
practices” of the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix
C1 (formerly Appendix 14) (the “CG Code”) to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
throughout the Year except for the deviation from code provision
C1.6 of the CG Code as disclosed in this report below.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in Appendix
C3 (formerly Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as
its own code of conduct governing the securities transactions by the
Directors. Following a specific enquiry made by the Company on the
Directors, all of them have confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.
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CORPORATE CULTURE

The Board holds the belief that corporate culture underpins the long-
term business, economic success and sustainable growth of the
Group. A strong culture enables the Company to deliver long-term
sustainable performance and fulfil its role as a responsible corporate
citizen. The Company is committed to developing a positive and
progressive culture that is built on its purpose, value and strategy.

During the Year, the Company continued to strengthen its cultural
framework by focusing on the following:

VALUES:
Sustainable development

Sustainable development is one of the global trends — the
Company is dedicated to make substantial contribution
to environmental protection by supporting sustainable
development.

Engagement

The Company prides itself on keeping its Shareholders engaged
in and informed of the markets and communities in which the
Company operates.

Excellence

The Company is determined to deliver high-quality wastewater
treatment services to its customers, creating pristine water
quality domestically in the PRC and develop and actively
implement potential environmental protection-related industrial
chain projects.

Mutual Respect
The Company strives to foster a collegiate environment both

internally and externally based on trust, collaboration and
respect.
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STRATEGIES

1. Pro-actively seeking strategic acquisition, joint venture
establishment and business partnership of other
environmental protection projects in the PRC and
overseas including Indonesia;

2. Upgrading the Company’s facilities in order to meet the
PRC government’s new environmental policies which will
further enhance the Company’s competitiveness; and

3. Continuing to place investments on new environmental
protection projects by leveraging the Company’s previous
excellent track record and good relationships with the
local governments.

The Board sets and promotes corporate culture, expects and
requires all employees to reinforce it. All of our new employees
are required to attend orientation and training programs so that
they may better understand our corporate culture, structure
and policies, learn relevant laws and regulations, and raise
their quality awareness. In addition, the Company will from
time to time invite external experts to provide training to our
management personnel to improve their relevant knowledge
and management skills.

The Board considers that the corporate culture and the
purpose, values and strategy of the Group are aligned.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RESPONSIBILITIES

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is primarily responsible for
overseeing and supervising the management of the business
affairs and the overall performance of the Group. The Board sets
the Group’s values and standards and ensures that the requisite
financial and human resources support are in place for the Group
to achieve its objectives. The functions performed by the Board
include but are not limited to formulating the Group’s business
plans and strategies, reviewing the Company’s financial results and
performance and approving its interim and annual results upon
the review and recommendation of the audit committee of the
Board (the “Audit Committee”), approving the appointment or re-
appointment of the Board members upon the recommendation of the
nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”),
approving the remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management of the Company (the “Senior Management”)
upon the recommendation of the remuneration committee of the
Board (the “Remuneration Committee”), deciding all significant
financial (including major capital expenditure) and operational
issues, developing, monitoring and reviewing the Group’s corporate
governance, and all other functions reserved to the Board under the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of Association”).
The Board may from time to time delegate certain functions to the
Senior Management if and when considered appropriate. The Senior
Management is mainly responsible for the execution of the business
plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to
them from time to time.

COMPOSITION

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should include
a balanced composition of executive and independent non-executive
Directors so that there is a strong independent element on the Board
which can effectively exercise independent judgement.
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Currently, the Board comprises the following eight Directors:

Executive Directors (the “EDs”)

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Kwan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Radius Suhendra

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny

Non-executive Director (the “NED”)
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda

Mr. Ng Man Kung

Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors’ Biographical Details” of this annual report.

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”), is
the father of Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, an ED. He is also a substantial
Shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. Mr.
Chan Kwan, the chief executive officer of the Company (the “Chief
Executive Officer”), is the elder brother of Mr. Chan Pak Lam
Brian, the NED. Mr. Chan Kwan owns 20% of the issued shares
of a controlling Shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company. Save as aforesaid, there was no financial, business, family
or other material relationship among the Directors.

The EDs are responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group’s business development,
formulation of strategies and are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
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The INEDs participate in the Board meetings to bring in an
independent judgement to bear on the issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standards of conducts and scrutinise the Company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives. They are also
responsible for ensuring a high standard of financial and other
mandatory reporting of the Board as well as providing a balance
in the Board in order to effectively exercise an independent
judgement on the corporate actions of the Company so as to protect
Shareholders’ interest and the overall interest of the Group.

Throughout the Year, the Company had three INEDs, which complied
with the requirement of the Listing Rules that (i) the number of INEDs
must represent at least one-third of the Board members; and (i) at
least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
in writing pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board
is satisfied that all the INEDs have been independent and met the
independent guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions against the
Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Any Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailor-made
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and business
and full awareness of the Director’s responsibilities under the statutes
and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements and the Company’s business and governance policies.
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The Company from time to time provides briefings to all Directors
to develop and refresh the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. All
Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses at
the Company’s expense and they have been requested to provide
the Company with their training records. According to the training
records maintained by the Company, each of Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen,
Mr. Chan Kwan, Mr. Radius Suhendra, Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, Mr.
Chan Pak Lam Brian, Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, Mr. Ng Man Kung
and Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy has attended seminars/conference/
forums and/or read newspapers, journals and materials relating to
the economy, general business, corporate governance and directors’
duties and responsibilities.

MEETINGS OF BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES
AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The Board is scheduled to meet four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals with notice given to all Directors at least 14 days
in advance. For additional Board meetings which require discussion
and resolution of significant issues arising from the operations of the
Company, naotice is given in a reasonable time in advance. Before
each Board meeting, a draft agenda is sent to all Directors at least
three days or such other period as agreed in advance in order to
allow the Directors to include any other matters in the agenda that
is required for discussion and resolution in the meeting. To enable
the Directors to be properly briefed on issues arising at the Board
meetings and to make informed decisions, Board papers together
with all appropriate and relevant information in relation to the matters
of the meeting are sent to all Directors three days or such other
period as agreed before each Board meeting. All Directors should
have access to the advice and services of the company secretary
(“Company Secretary”) with a view to ensuring that the Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. The
Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Board meetings
minutes. Draft minutes are normally circulated to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after each meeting and the
final version is open for the Directors’ inspection. According to the
Listing Rules, any Directors and their close associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) with a material interest in the transactions to be
discussed at the Board meetings will abstain from deliberating and
voting on resolutions approving such transactions and are not to be
counted in the quorum of the meetings.
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During the Year, one annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM”), four Board meetings and one adjourned Board meeting
were held. The table below sets out the attendance by the Directors
of these meetings:

RAEE  ERT—RARRBRRBFAE
(RRBFEXE])) HREFEFHEL K
EExgeade TRIVIEFHEZSE

BZER

Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

HESBEIE
FERHEERRE

Board
Name Meetings AGM
HE EEgE3 BRRBFERE
EDs HITEE
Chau On Ta Yuen FAZEIR 5/5 1/1
Chan Kwan RE 4/5 1/1
Radius Suhendra BREZ A 0/5 0/1
Chau Chi Yan Benny AEA 4/5 1/1
NED FHITES
Chan Pak Lam Brian PeR AR 4/5 1/1
INEDs BYEHITES
Ng Chung Yan Linda hER 5/5 1/1
Ng Man Kung St 4/5 0/1
Leung Bo Yee Nancy REZ 3/5 0/1

Apart from the Board meetings, the Chairman met with the INEDs
without the presence of the other Directors during the Year.

Under the code provision C.1.6 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings to gain and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of Shareholders. Mr. Ng Man Kung and Ms. Leung Bo Yee
Nancy, both INEDs, were unable to attend the AGM held on 1 June
2023 due to their respective other engagements.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the nomination committee (or the
board) shall have a policy concerning diversity of board members
and shall disclose the policy on diversity or a summary of the policy
in the corporate governance report. The Company has adopted a
Board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and the policy
specifies that in designing the composition the Board, Board diversity
shall be considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. Al
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

In accordance with the Board Diversity Policy, the measurable
objectives are as below:

1.1 Recruitment and selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
In particular, when identifying potential candidates to the
Board, the Nomination Committee and the Board will, among
others, (i) consider the current level of representation of different
genders on the Board and the Senior Management when
making recommendations for nominees as well as succession
planning to the Board and Senior Management; and (ii) consider
the criteria that promotes diversity by making reference to
the code of practices on employment published by the Equal
Opportunities Commission from time to time.

1.2 The Nomination Committee will discuss and where necessary,
agree annually on the measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board and recommend them to the Board
for adoption. The Company aims to maintain an appropriate
balance of diversity in perspectives of the Board that are
relevant to the Company’s business growth.

1.3 The ultimate decision will be based on merit against objective
criteria and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board, taking into account the corporate strategy and
business operations of the Company.
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1.4 The Board is also committed to having a Board consisting of
more than one gender. The Board should consist of at least
one Director of a different gender who genuinely possesses
the necessary skills, experience and calibre appropriate to the
Company’s business. The Board aims to ensure that there is at
least one Director of a different gender on the Board and that
this is maintained in accordance with the Listing Rules.

1.5 In order to achieve and/or maintain gender diversity, the
Nomination Committee will propose a pipeline of potential
successors to the Board to achieve gender diversity.

The Board considered that the aforementioned measurable
goals have been achieved satisfactorily during the Year and the
Board will continue to review the relevant goals from time to
time to ensure its progress for achieving such goals.

The composition of the Board will be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report every year and the Nomination Committee
will supervise the implementation of this policy. The Nomination
Committee will review the implementation and effectiveness of this
policy on an annual basis, discuss any revisions that may be required,
and recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration
and approval. As at the date of this annual report, the diversity of the
Board is illustrated as below. During the Year, the Board comprises
eight Directors, two of whom are female. The Board targets to
maintain at least the current level of female representation, with
the ultimate goal of achieving gender parity. Further details on the
biographies and experience of the Directors are set out on page 63
to page 70 of this annual report.
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Age Group
Fe4a Rl

30 to 39 40 to 49 50 to 59 60 or above
Name of Director EEng 305% £395% 405% 24955 505% £595% 6055 A £
Chau On Ta Yuen A%z ER v
Chan Kwan = v
Radius Suhendra BREZ A v
Chau ChiYan Benny  EZA v
Chan Pak Lam Brian & #k v
Ng Chung Yan Linda  fh282 v
Ng Man Kung Rt v
Leung Bo Yee Nancy 2R E & v
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Professional Experience

BXLR
Finance/ Wastewater
Accounting Law Banking Insurance treatment  Manufacturing
Name of Director EZE# H S8/ &t VxE3 817 Rl BkER R
Chau On Ta Yuen AZER ’
Chan Kwan RE ’
Radius Suhendra BEA g
Chau Chi Yan Benny BAHA v
Chan Pak Lam Brian PRAEAR 4
Ng Chung Yan Linda mER v
Ng Man Kung R v
Leung Bo Yee Nancy 2EE v
Education Background
YEE=
Accountancy Science Business Law Arts  Communication
Name of Director EEH % et ne [GE Py e R
Chau On Ta Yuen AZER Y
Chan Kwan RE v
Radius Suhendra B2 v
Chau Chi Yan Benny BEA v
Chan Pak Lam Brian PRAEAR 4
Ng Chung Yan Linda BEE 4
Ng Man Kung R Y
Leung Bo Yee Nancy REG Y

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
structure and composition of the Board, and is of the opinion that the
structure of the Board is reasonable, and the experiences and skills of
the Directors in various aspects and fields can enable the Company
to maintain high standard of operation.

RAFE REZESCRIESTTNRE
KAk TRBEFTENREBSIE - ME
FHER T R E B AR R BEE R A AR
NARFFRKEEE

BERREREBRLE ZBI=ZFFRK 81



82

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

GENDER DIVERSITY AT WORKFORCE LEVELS

The gender ratio in the workforce (including Senior Management) for
the Year is approximately Male: Female = 8:2. For further details of
gender ratio of Rugao Hengfa and PT Rimba Palma Sejahtera Lestari
together with the relevant data, please refer to the disclosure in the
environmental, social and governance report of the Company as set
out on pages 18 to 62 of this annual report. Our approach for talent
recruitment and retention is to employ a diverse team that works
together collaboratively and encourage differences and individuality
in employees with respect to equal opportunities, diversity and anti-
discrimination. Notwithstanding this fact, with a view to enhancing
efficiency, we have not set a measurable objective for achieving
gender diversity at the workforce level. The Company is determined
to commit to the meritocratic and diverse approach which provides
equal consideration and opportunities to all qualified candidates
regardless of gender in terms of hiring and promotion process. During
the Year, the Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the Board Diversity Policy and the results were considered to be
satisfactory.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
separated and assumed by different individuals to ensure a balance
of power and authority so that power is not vested in any member
of the Board. Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, the Chairman, is responsible
for business development and formulation of strategies of the Group
while Mr. Chan Kwan, the Chief Executive Officer, is responsible
for all major affairs of the Group, including project construction and
operation, business development, marketing and formulation of
strategies.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each of the Board committees
named above are in line with the Listing Rules and are posted on the
respective websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. It consists of three INEDs, namely
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, serving as the chairlady, Mr. Ng Man Kung
and Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and considering any questions of resignation or
dismissal of that auditor;

o reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

o developing and implementing a policy on the engagement
of an external auditor to supply non-audit services and
reporting the same to the Board, and identifying and making
recommendations on any matters in respect of which it
considers that an action or improvement is needed;

o discussing with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations, and ensuring proper co-ordination where more than
one audit firm is involved;

° discussing problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the external auditor may wish
to discuss (in the absence of the Senior Management where
necessary);

o monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing significant financial
reporting judgements contained in them;

o reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems;
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discussing the risk management and internal control systems
with the Senior Management to ensure that the Senior
Management has performed its duties in establishing and
maintaining effective systems, including matters on adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function;

considering findings of major investigations on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and the Senior Management’s response to these
findings;

where an internal audit function exists, ensuring co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, ensuring that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewing and
monitoring its effectiveness;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor’s management letter, any material
queries raised by such auditor to the Senior Management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and the Senior Management’s response;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference;

reviewing the arrangements that employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters and ensuring that proper arrangements are in place
for fair and independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action;

acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;
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° establishing a whistle-blowing policy and system for employees
of the Company and those who deal with the Company (e.g.
customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence, with
the Audit Committee about possible improprieties in any matter
related to the Company;

° developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations to the
Board;

° reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the Senior
Management;

° reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors;

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in the
Company’s annual report;

° reviewing on-going connected transactions of the Company
and ensuring compliance with the terms of approval by the
Shareholders;

° reviewing the findings of internal investigations and the Senior
Management’s responses in relation to any suspected fraud
or irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringement of
laws, rules and regulations; and

° considering any other topics as determined by the Board.

During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were held whereat
the Audit Committee reviewed, among others, (i) the audited
consolidated financial results of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022; (i) the unaudited consolidated financial results of
the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2023; (jii) the internal
control and risk management systems of the Group; and (iv) the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit function. The attendance of
individual members was set out in the following table.
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The Board had no disagreement with the Audit Committee’s view
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
independent auditor of the Company.

EEHERZ BN AR RIE L AZ AL
B - BB BHIRENBIALERS

Meetings attended/

Eligible to attend

Name HESBRE
HE FEREESRRH
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda hERLZ L 2/2
Mr. Ng Man Kung Rt e A 172
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy REFEL L 2/2

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Man Kung,
serving as the chairman, Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda and Ms. Leung
Bo Yee Nancy, and Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, the NED. The principal
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include:

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and the
Senior Management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing a remuneration policy;

reviewing and approving the Senior Management’s
remuneration proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives;

making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual EDs and the Senior Management and
such packages include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
the NEDs;

considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time

commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;
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° reviewing and approving compensation payable to the EDs and
the Senior Management for any loss or termination of office
or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual
terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

° reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating
to the dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

° ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration;

° reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; and

° reviewing the Group’s policy on expense reimbursements for
the Directors and the Senior Management.

During the Year, two Remuneration Committee meetings were held
whereat the Remuneration Committee reviewed and recommended
to the Board for consideration, among others, the remuneration
packages of the Directors and the Senior Management. The
attendance of individual members was set out in the following table.
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Name HESZRRE
e FEREESBRY
Mr. Ng Man Kung Rt eE 1/2
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda hER L+ 2/2
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian BRAAMRSEAE 1/2
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy REELT 1/2
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. It consists of three INEDs,
namely Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, Mr. Ng Man Kung and Ms. Leung
Bo Yee Nancy, and two EDs, namely Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen and Mr.
Chan Kwan with Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen serving as the chairman. The
principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:

° reviewing the structure, size and diversity (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board;

° assessing the independence of the INEDs;

° reviewing the Board Diversity Policy of the Company and
Directors’ nomination policy, as appropriate; and reviewing the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing
such Board Diversity Policy, and the progress in achieving the
objectives; and

o making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or

re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning for the
Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the chief executives.
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During the Year, two Nomination Committee meetings were held
whereat the Nomination Committee, among others, (i) assessed
the independence of the INEDs; (i) recommended to the Board
for consideration the re-appointment of all the retiring Directors as
Directors at the 2023 AGM; (iii) reviewed the structure, size and
diversity of the Board; (iv) reviewed the Board Diversity Policy; and (v)
considered the renewal of service agreement or appointment letter of
certain Directors. The attendance of individual members was set out
in the following table.
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Meetings attended/

Eligible to attend

Name HEEERE
HE FEREESRRH
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen A&EREE 2/2
Mr. Chan Kwan PREES A& 2/2
Mr. Ng Man Kung Rt A 1/2
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda mBER Lt 2/2
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy REELT 1/2

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which aims to:

- set out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of Directors;

- ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company; and

- ensure the Board’s continuity and appropriate leadership at
Board level.
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CRITERIA

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:

character, reputation and integrity;

- qualifications, experience and accomplishments, including
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate
strategy;

- willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
a Board member and other directorships and significant
commitments;

- requirement for the Board to have independent Directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates
would be considered independent by reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

- Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted
by the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the
Board;

- any other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s
business and succession plan and where applicable, may be
adopted and/or amended by the Board and/or the Nomination
Committee from time to time for nomination of Directors and
succession planning; and

- such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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NOMINATION PROCEDURES

(A) APPOINTMENT OF NEW DIRECTOR

M

(i)

(i)

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the
proposal on appointment of the new Director and the
biographical information (or relevant details) of such
candidate, evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out in above paragraph of “CRITERIA” to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates
to provide additional information and documents, if
considered necessary.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee shall rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the Company (including
but not limited to ensuring that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives) and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee shall then recommend
appointment of the appropriate candidate for directorship
and the candidate shall provide his/her written consent
(i) to be appointed as a Director, and (ii) to the public,
disclosure of his/her personal data on any documents or
the relevant websites for the purpose of or in relation to
his/her standing for election as a Director.

For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder
for election as a Director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee shall evaluate such
candidate based on the above paragraph of “CRITERIA”
to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship and where appropriate, the Nomination
Committee and/or the Board shall make recommendation
to the Shareholders in respect of the proposed election of
Director at the general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for
election at any general meeting.
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(B) RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTOR AT GENERAL MEETING

(i) Retiring Directors are eligible for nomination by the
Board to stand for re-election at a general meeting of the
Company.

(i) ~ The Nomination Committee shall review each of the
retiring Director’s overall contribution and service to the
Company, including his/her attendance of Board meetings
and, where applicable, general meetings, and his/her level
of participation and performance on the Board.

(i)  The Nomination Committee shall also review and
determine whether the retiring Directors continues to
meet the criteria as set out in the above section headed
“CRITERIA”.

(iv)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then
make recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of
the proposed re-election of the Directors at the general
meeting.

(v)  The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for
re-election at any general meeting.

REGULAR REVIEW

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on (i) the
effectiveness of the Nomination Policy to ensure that it remains
relevant to the Company’s needs and reflects both current regulatory
requirements and good corporate governance practice, and (i) the
structure, size and composition of the Board and where appropriate,
make recommendations on changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy and business needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company has adopted the code provisions stated in the CG
Code and the Board has delegated its responsibilities to the Audit
Committee to perform the corporate governance functions of the
Company as set out in code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.
The Audit Committee has, amongst other matters, reviewed this
corporate governance report in discharge of its corporate governance
functions, ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the NEDs (including INEDs) has entered into an appointment
letter with the Company for the term of three years in respect of their
appointment as NED or INED (as the case may be).

None of the Directors has or is proposed to have a service
contract or letter of appointment with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries other than contracts or letters of appointment expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

All the Directors, including the INEDs, are subject to retirement by
rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles
of Association. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) will retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director will be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall retain
office until the close of the meeting at which he/she retires and shall
be eligible for re-election thereat.

According to the Articles of Association,

(@)  the Board shall have power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall
hold office only until the next following AGM and shall then be
eligible for re-election at that meeting; and

(b) the Company may by ordinary resolution in general meetings
elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the existing Directors. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office only until the next following AGM and
shall then be eligible for re-election.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out in
note 11 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this
annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees charged by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited (“Baker
Tilly”) in respect of the auditing services for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$1,060,000 and in respect of the non-auditing
services for the Year amounted to approximately HK$160,000. The
non-auditing services rendered related to the performance of agreed-
upon procedures on interim financial report of the Company for the
six months ended 30 June 2023.

Both the Board and the Audit Committee have agreed to recommend
the re-appointment of Baker Tilly as the Company’s independent
auditor for the ensuing year at the 2024 AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements for the Year, which give a
true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash
flows for the Year and are properly prepared on a going concern
basis in accordance with the applicable statutory requirements as
well as accounting and financial reporting standards. The Directors
were not aware of any material uncertainties which may affect the
Group’s business or cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

In addition, Baker Tilly has stated in the independent auditor’s report
its reporting responsibility on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledged its overall responsibility to ensure that
sound and effective risk management and internal controls are
maintained, while the Senior Management of the Group is charged
with the responsibility to design and implement an internal controls
system to manage risks. A sound system of risk management and
internal controls is designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. The Group has established a risk management and internal
control systems. Different functions and procedures of the systems
are responsible by the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee,
the management of the Group and the internal control review team.
The system monitors risks of the Group including, but not limited to,
operational, financial, reporting and compliance risks. The system
also aims at covering Environmental Social and Governance (“ESG”)
related risk factors in order to govern the identified ESG risks to the
businesses and provide a robust monitoring system in all aspects.
We strive to constantly enhance the system and expand the coverage
of the risk factors in a feasible way.

Our Group has established an enterprise risk management (the
“ERM”) framework in order to implement effective risk management
efforts. Our ERM framework comprises two key elements, namely
risk management structure and risk management process. It
defines a simple and clear risk management structure as well as the
responsibilities as below.
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RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has a duty to ensure the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group (the “ERM
system”). The Board oversees the ERM system, assesses and
evaluates the Group’s business strategies and risk tolerance. The
Board reviews, with the assistance of the Audit Committee, at least
annually the effectiveness of the ERM system and monitors the ERM
system in an on-going manner.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has the primary responsibility for risk
management and internal control after the Board. It assists the
Board in overseeing the Group’s ERM system by providing support
and advice, including on-going monitoring of the execution of risk
management processes, reviewing the Group’s risk register as well as
reviewing and approving the internal control review plan and results.

MANAGEMENT

The management of the Group (the “Management”) is responsible
for identifying and monitoring the risks relevant to the Group during
daily operations, including strategic, operational, financial, reporting
and compliance risks. The Management reports to the Board and
the Audit Committee on the risks identified and their changes. The
Management is also responsible for developing appropriate internal
control measures to mitigate the risks, and identify and resolve
material internal control defects.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has established the internal audit function and the scope
of work includes reviewing the effectiveness of the ERM system. The
scope of the risk management and internal control review is risk-
based and is reviewed by the Audit Committee. The internal audit
function is able to communicate with the Audit Committee directly
regarding the results of its review.
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RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Our ERM framework defines the procedures for identifying, assessing,
responding and monitoring risks and their changes. Through regular
discussions with each operating function, the Group strengthens
the understanding of risk management such that all employees can
understand and report various risks they have identified in a timely
manner. It enhances the Group’s ability to identify and manage risks.

Assess risks
identified
S E R R R B

Define risks
universe
FE R E

Identify
risks
E Rl

To identify and prioritise material risks throughout the Group, the
Management communicates with each operating function, collects
significant risk factors that affect the Group from bottom to top,
including strategic, operational, financial, reporting and compliance
risks. After identifying all relevant risks, the Management assesses the
potential impact and possibilities of the risks and prioritises the risks.
Appropriate internal control measures are then developed to mitigate
the risks identified and the changes of risks are monitored in an on-
going manner.
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MAIN FEATURES OF OUR RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

MAINTAIN AN EFFECTIVE INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
(OPERATIONAL LEVEL)

° Establish clear internal control policies and procedures, and
clearly define the responsibilities, authorities and accountabilities
of each key position;

o Establish code of conduct and explain the Group’s requirements
on integrity and ethical value to all staff;

° Establish a whistle-blowing mechanism and encourage
employees to report incidents of misconduct or fraud;

° Establish appropriate level of information technology to assess
rights and avoid the leakage of price-sensitive information; and

° Establish inside information disclosure policy, including reporting
channel and responsible person of disclosure, unify response to
external enquiries and obtain advice from professional financial
adviser or the Stock Exchange if necessary.

During the Year, the Board had reviewed the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control policies and procedures, including
those related to financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance. The
Board has considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions during the review of the
effectiveness of the ERM system.

ON-GOING RISK MONITORING (RISK MANAGEMENT LEVEL)

Based on the ERM framework and risk management policies
established by the Board, the Management communicates with each
operating function, and collects significant risk factors that affect
the Group from bottom to top. The Group has established a risk
register to record the risks identified, and the Management assesses
the potential impact and possibilities of the risks and develops
appropriate internal control measures to mitigate the risks identified.
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During the Year, the Management conducted an evaluation of the
Group’s risk management structure and procedures and submitted
a risk assessment report to the Board and the Audit Committee,
including a three-year internal control review plan, to enable the
Board and the Audit Committee to effectively monitor the major risks
of the Group and understand how the Management responds to and
mitigates the risks.

INTERNAL CONTROL DEPARTMENT

During the Year, the Group had not established an internal control
department internally. Instead, the Group engaged an external internal
control consulting company, Conesgo Consulting Group Limited,
to conduct an assessment and evaluation on the effectiveness of
internal control measures and systems of the Group. Certain internal
control enhancement suggestions have been identified and the
Management has established action plans for improving the internal
control effectiveness accordingly. An internal control review report
has been provided to the Audit Committee which has also been
reported to the Board about the findings and improvement measures.

No material internal control deficiency has been identified during the
Year and the Board considers the ERM system to be adequate and
effective.
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MAJOR RISKS OF THE GROUP TREZEERE

HPMEREEREDERIAER ZATE
2R R HEEE

Our risk management process has identified the following as major
risks of the Group and their changes.

Risk Description Key Risk Mitigations Changes
=1 it TERBERFEE 21t
New investments in The Group has invested in the development 1. Carry out thorough Decreased
Bangka, Indonesia of a new biomass power plant in Bangka, feasibility studies on the

Indonesia with a capacity of 10 megawatts Bangka Power Plant B

EIEAMERNHKRE

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(the “Bangka Power Plant”) to generate
electricity for sale to PT PLN (Persero), an
Indonesia government-owned corporation.
The construction of the Bangka Power
Plant may not be completed successfully
or may not meet the expected standard.
The operation of the Bangka Power Plant
may not be successful due to the potential
insufficiency of biomass raw material,
incapability of the new staff in the Bangka
Power Plant or other unknown factors.

AEEREANSRERE —BEEE
BIOKEAFENELEH((BNSRE
B AHEENZHERAQRPT PLN
(Persero) ° BIMEEEMAERZ R VAEHN
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project

1. HANSHERAEET
ZEM AT

2. Monitor closely the
construction progress by
industry experts

2. MIREXRENEREL
EE

3. Hiring professional
consultant to monitor the
operation and conduct
training for new staff

3. EREXERERLER
AR AT 8 TIRAUE

4. Negotiate with local
suppliers to enter into long-
term purchase agreements
to ensure sufficiency of the
biomass raw material

4. BREEEBEL] LRHE
Bl - BREMERY
eSS

The new power plant in
Bangka, Indonesia has
entered the final preparatory
stage. It is making good
progress despite the delay
caused by the pandemic.
The Group has reached

a consensus about the
electricity sale with the local
government. The Bangka
Power Plant is expected to
provide electricity to the state
grid at a fixed rate for a 25-
year term starting from 2024,
according to the power
supply agreement with PT
PLN (Persero).
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Risk Description Key Risk Mitigations Changes
a2t it TERBERRET 21t
Biofuel business in The Group’s biomass power generation 1. Control production cost Decreased
Jambi, Indonesia business in Indonesia is temporarily to increase product
suspended. The Group is commencing the competitiveness B

ENFEAERR R £ AR
E3

Credit

[l
\
/

biofuel pellet/wood pellets manufacturing
business for export in Asian countries
such as Indonesia and Korea. Since the
relevant business is in its initial stage, the
relevant business transformation may not
be successful.

AEBERHEREENEREXHER R
NEEIRAE o A5 E IEFREYIREER
B RBHLERD  LREHE - BEE
PHEREO - AREERBERTER
£ HENEBER SR TR o

Customers or counterparties of the Group
are local government authorities. Payment
from them could be longer than the

credit period granted to them due to the
complexity of their internal administrative
procedures. The Group might suffer from
a financial loss or liquidity difficulty in the
case of delay in payment.

SENEPIHTH AEWBNEN - A
RERBITREA 2B - ®REZAH
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ANFIERRX A EEELRDE SR -

1. EBIEERAK - EER
BN

2. Proactively promote
biofuel pellet/wood pellets
products to Indonesia and
other Asian countries

2. TammEHekEMEEE
EEYIREIRE /R
Em

1. Frequently communicate
with customers to follow
up the outstanding balance

1. RREARPEE
REEHE

AR

2. Maintain sufficient cash
flow to avoid liquidity
problem

2. #BRENRERENE
RRBDETHE

3. Regularly perform
impairment review to
assess the recovery of
account receivables
and provide sufficient
impairment to avoid over-
statement of balance

3. EHETTREmE NS
FEAUR TR 2 AT E X
H R SRR E R AR
2yBE&H

ERRFRERBERAT

Biofuel pellet operation in
Indonesia commenced its
wood pellet production
business in 2021 and has
been generating revenue
since 2021.
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Risk Description Key Risk Mitigations Changes

a2t it TERBERRET 21t

Pricing and cost The Group operates the wastewater Negotiate the water tariffs ~ Decreased

recovery treatment facilities at a pre-determined tariff with the local government
rate specified at the time the Build, Operate to compensate the DR

TERKAEE and Transfer (BOT) agreement is entered increased costs of
into. The circumstances of tariff adjustment operation The Group has reached
have also specified that the Group has an agreement with the
only limited ability to change/renegotiate REHMBFIREKELAE  Administrative Committee
the tariffs. The increase in operating costs B2 A IE N of Jiangsu Province, China
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due to an increase in utilisation of the
wastewater treatment facilities might not
be fully compensated, and the Group could
suffer from loss or decrease in profitability.
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On-going cost control
to avoid unnecessary
spending
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Negotiate with supplier to
minimise the increase in
costs

SR
ik

in July 2021 for an upward
adjustment to the water tariffs
of Rugao Hengfa facilities to
compensate the increased
costs of operation.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong
and the Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside
information should be announced promptly when it is the subject of
a decision. The procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information are as follows:

° the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by
the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June
2012;

o the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of
information to the public through channels such as financial
reporting, public announcements/circulars and its website;

° the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information; and

° the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so
that only the EDs and the Company Secretary are authorised to
communicate with parties outside the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tung Wing Yee Winnie (“Ms. Tung”) was appointed as the
Company Secretary with effect from 30 October 2021.

Ms. Tung was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services (HK)
Limited (“Boardroom”) to act as the Company Secretary and
Boardroom has been providing certain corporate secretarial services
to the Company pursuant to an engagement letter entered into
between the Company and Boardroom. The primary person at the
Company with whom Ms. Tung has been contacting in respect
of company secretarial matters is Mr. Chan Kwan, the ED or his
designated representative.

Ms. Tung had complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing the Shareholders to make proposals
or move resolutions at the general meeting under the memorandum
of association of the Company and the Articles of Association (the
“M&A”). Shareholders who wish to make proposals or move a
resolution may, however, convene an extraordinary general meeting
(the “EGM”) to do so in accordance with the “Procedures for
Shareholders to convene an EGM” set out below.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EGM

Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association stipulates that:

General mestings shall be convened on the written requisition of any
two or more members of the Company deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists hold as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company, which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
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General meetings may also be convened on the written requisition
of any one member of the Company, which is a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist holds as
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company, which carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself/themselves
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be
convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to him/her/them by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO SEND
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for publicly
available information and provide comments and suggestions to the
Directors or management of the Company. Such questions, requests
and comments can be addressed to the Company by mail to its
principal place of business in Hong Kong, presently at Unit 2304,
23rd Floor, Westlands Centre, 20 Westlands Road, Hong Kong or by
email to ell@anli.com.hk.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
or change of correspondence address or dividend instructions by mail
to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Boardroom
Share Registrars (HK) Limited at Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric
Road, North Point, Hong Kong, which has been appointed by the
Company to deal with Shareholders for share registration and related
matters.
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POLICY ON OBTAINING INDEPENDENT VIEWS
AND INPUT

With effect from 1 January 2022, the Company has adopted the
policy on obtaining independent views and input. In accordance
with this policy, the Board, Board committees or individual Directors
may seek such independent professional advice, views and input as
considered necessary to fulfil their responsibilities and in exercising
independent judgement when making decisions in furtherance of
their Directors’ duties at the Company’s expense (the “Mechanism”).
The Mechanism is established to ensure independent views and input
are available to the Board and should be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report of the Company.

Independent professional advice shall include legal advice and advice
of accountants and other professional financial advisers on matters of
law, accounting, tax and other regulatory matters.

In the event that independent professional advice, views and input
are considered necessary, the Board, Board committees or individual
Directors shall communicate with the Company Secretary to start
the Mechanism, providing background and details of the relevant
incidents and/or transactions, and the issues involved which would
require independent views and input. They may direct any questions,
queries, concerns or specific advice to be sought to the Company
Secretary who will then contact the Company’s professional
advisers (including, but not limited to, legal advisers, accountants,
independent auditor, internal control adviser) or other independent
professional parties to obtain such independent professional advice
within a reasonable period of time.

Any advice obtained through the Mechanism shall be duly
documented and made available to other members of the Board.

Despite having obtained any information or advice from the Chairlady/
Chairman and/or any independent professional advisers through
the Mechanism, the Directors are expected to exercise independent
judgement in forming their decisions.

Also, the Senior Management of the Company are, from time to time,
brought into formal and informal contact at Board meetings and
other corporate events. The Board has full access to all information
provided by the Senior Management of the Company it deems
appropriate for the purposes of fulfilling its role.

The Company has reviewed and considered the implementation of
the Mechanism to be effective during the Year.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication policy
(“Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) with the objective of
enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Company’s business performance and strategies.

Information about the Company will be communicated to the
Shareholders and the investment community mainly through
the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports),
announcements and circulars, the AGMs and the EGMs that may be
convened, as well as by all the published disclosures submitted to the
Stock Exchange and its corporate communications made available
by the Company on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Shareholders’ Communication Policy is summarised as below:

° The Company will assign dedicated employee(s) to be in charge
of ensuring effective and timely dissemination of information to
Shareholders.

° The Company will provide Shareholders with ready access to
understandable information about the Company.

° The Company will take steps to solicit and understand the
views of Shareholders and other stakeholders.

° The Company will facilitate Shareholders’ participation in annual
general meetings and make available the chairmen of the
board committees and advisory panel(s) (if any), appropriate
management executives, auditors at annual general meetings to
answer questions from Shareholders.

° Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, communicate
their views on various matters affecting the Company, request
for publicly available information and provide comments and
suggestions to directors or management of the Company
through the prescribed channel mentioned below.
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In accordance with the Shareholders’ Communication Policy, the
Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its Shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.
These include (i) the publication of interim and annual reports
and/or dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements;
(i) the AGM or EGM providing a forum for Shareholders to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board; (i) updated and
key information of the Group available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company; (iv) the Company’s website offering a
communication channel between the Company and its stakeholders;
and (v) the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong serving the
Shareholders in respect of all share registration matters. Having
considered the multiple channels of communication mentioned above,
the Company is satisfied that the Shareholders’ Communication Policy
has been properly implemented during the year of 2022 and such
policy remains effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the Year.

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
published its M&A on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2023 (the “Year” or “FY2023") .

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are the provision of wastewater
treatment services in Jiangsu Province, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and the generation of electricity by biomass
power plants in Jambi, the Republic of Indonesia (“Indonesia”). The
principal activities and other particulars of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 40 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the
Group as at 31 December 2023 are set out on pages 144 to 295 of
this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY
OBJECTIVES

The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”) aims
to set out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to
apply in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution of its net
profits as dividends to the Shareholders.

PRINCIPLES AND GUIDELINES

1. The Board adopts the policy that, in recommending or declaring
dividends, the Company shall maintain adequate and sufficient
cash reserves for meeting its working capital requirements and
future growth as well as its shareholder value.

2. The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio.

3.  The Board has the full discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders, subject to the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), all
applicable laws and regulations and the factors set out below.
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4.  The Board shall also take into account the following factors of
the Group when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends:

o financial results;

° cash flow situation;

° business conditions and strategies;

o expected future operations and earnings;

o capital requirements and expenditure plans;

° interests of Shareholders;

° any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

° any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

5.  Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and
the Group and the conditions and factors as set out above,
dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a
financial year or period as follows:

° interim dividend;

o final dividend;

° special dividend; and

° any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate.

6. Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to the
Shareholders’ approval.

7. The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or

scrip or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.

8.  Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert to the
Company in accordance with the Articles of Association, and all
applicable laws and regulations.

REVIEW

The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to
time.
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DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid or declared for the six months ended
30 June 2023 (2022: Nil).

During its meeting held on 27 March 2024, the Board has resolved
not to recommend the payment of any final dividend for the Year
(2022: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and the
potential future development of the Group’s business is set out in
the Chairman’s Statement on pages 5 to 8 and in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 9 to 17 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this report, no important event affecting the
Group has occurred since the end of the Year and up to the date of
this report.

The performance analysis of the Group for the Year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 11 to 17 of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS OF THE GROUP

A discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group, together with the Group’s internal control, is set out on pages
95 to 102 of this annual report. The financial risks are covered in
note 33 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this
annual report. A more comprehensive analysis of the Group’s risk
factors (excluding the operation of the palm kernel oil mill and the
ancillary biomass power plants by a subsidiary of the Company in
Indonesia, which the Group acquired in late 2016) is set out on pages
29 to 46 of the prospectus of the Company dated 12 September
2014 (the “Prospectus”). The risk factors relating to the operation
of the palm kernel oil mill and the ancillary biomass power plants in
Indonesia are set out on pages 35 to 37 of the Company’s circular
dated 24 August 2016.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS THAT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT
ON THE GROUP

The Group operates its business mainly in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Indonesia.

During the Year, save as disclosed in the rest of this annual
report, as far as the Company is aware, there was no breach of or
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations of Hong Kong,
the PRC and Indonesia by the Group that has a significant impact on
the business and operations of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Details of the environmental, social and governance of the Group
are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
pages 18 to 62 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

An account of the Group’s key relationships with its stakeholders
are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
pages 18 to 62 of this annual report.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past
five financial years is set out on page 296 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements of
the Group for the Year.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will hold its annual general meeting on Monday, 3 June
2024 (the “2024 AGM”), the notice of which will be published and
dispatched to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the 2024 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 29 May 2024 to Monday, 3 June 2024 (both
dates inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be effected. In order to qualify for attending and voting
at the 2024 AGM, the non-registered Shareholders must lodge all
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Boardroom
Share Registrars (HK) Limited at Room 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric
Road, North Point, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 28 May 2024.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the Group’s revenue was mainly attributable to two
customers in Indonesia and a customer which is a local government
authority in the PRC for the wastewater treatment business. They
jointly accounted for 95.3% of the Group’s revenue, where the two
customers in Indonesia accounted for 45.3% and 11.1% of the
Group’s revenue, respectively, and the local government authority
in the PRC accounted for 38.9% of the Group’s revenue. The
purchases attributable to the largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for 15.2% and 33.7%, respectively
of the Group’s total purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (who, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the number of the issued Shares) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 29 to the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$198.7
million (31 December 2022: HK$215.8 million). This amount included
the Company’s share premium account of HK$391.9 million as at
31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: HK$391.9 million), which
may be distributed provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

DIRECTORS

The following are the Directors during the Year and up to the date of
this report:

The EDs

CHAU On Ta Yuen (“Mr. Chau”) (Chairman) N
CHAN Kwan (“Mr. Chan”) (Chief Executive Officer) N
Radius SUHENDRA

CHAU Chi Yan Benny

The NED
CHAN Pak Lam Brian (“Mr. Brian Chan”) ?

The INEDs

NG Chung Yan Linda (“Ms. Ng”) ~"N

NG Man Kung (“Mr. Ng”) ~##N

LEUNG Bo Yee Nancy (“Ms. Leung”) ~"N

A = member of the Audit Committee
R = member of the Remuneration Committee
N = member of the Nomination Committee

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Chau, Mr. Chan
and Mr. Brian Chan shall retire at the 2024 AGM and all of them,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INEDS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, namely
Ms. Ng, Mr. Ng and Ms. Leung, an annual written confirmation of
his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As
at the date of this report, the Company considers all of them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 63 to
70 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming 2024 AGM has a service contract or an appointment
letter with the Company that is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in this annual report, none of the Directors or
an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group, to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party, subsisted during or at the end
of the Year.

CHARITABLE DONATION

During the Year, the Group has made charitable donations amounting
to RMB0.071 million in the PRC and IDR130 million in value of
necessities in Indonesia (2022: RMBO0.4 million in the PRC and nil in
Indonesia).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 5 September 2014, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) to enable the Company to
grant options to the eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.
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The Share Option Scheme took effect on 26 September 2014. During
the Year, no options were granted, exercised or cancelled, 500,000
options were lapsed and as at 31 December 2021, no options were
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of the options granted
by the Company under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes must not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000
Shares (representing 10% of the Shares in issue immediately upon
completion of the Share Offer (as defined in the Prospectus) and
approximately 7.22% of the Shares in issue as at the date of this
report).

The options granted to a former employee shall vest over a period of
three years commencing on the date of grant. The closing price of the
Shares immediately before the date of grant was HK$0.50 per Share,
as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange.
Those options are exercisable from 14 April 2017 to 13 April 2026.
All 500,000 options of such a former employee were lapsed on 31
October 2021 due to his resignation on 30 September 2021.
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The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out as

follows:

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to Eligible Participants (as defined
in paragraph 2 below) as incentives or rewards for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

ELIGIBLE PARTICIPANTS

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine to any full-time or part-time employees, potential
employees, executives or officers (including executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive directors) of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any suppliers,
customers, agents and advisers who, in the sole opinion of
the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries (the “Eligible Participants”).

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR
ISSUE

The maximum number of Shares in respect of the options
granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes must not in aggregate exceed
80,000,000 Shares (representing 10% of the Shares in issue
immediately upon completion of the Share Offer (as defined in
the Prospectus) and approximately 7.22% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of this report).

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH PARTICIPANT
UNDER THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The maximum number of Shares comprising in the options that
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme to any Eligible
Participant shall not, when aggregated with

(@) any Shares issued upon exercise of options under the
Share Option Scheme or options under other schemes
which have been granted to that Eligible Participant;
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(b) any Shares which would be issued upon the exercise
of outstanding options under the Share Option Scheme
or options under other schemes granted to that Eligible
Participant; and

(c) any cancelled Shares which were the subject of options
under the Share Option Scheme or options under other
schemes which had been granted to and accepted by
that Eligible Participant,

in any 12-month period up to the offer date, exceed 1% of the
number of Shares in issue on the offer date. Any further grant of
options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to:

() the issue of a circular by the Company to the
Shareholders, which shall comply with the Listing Rules;
and

(i)  the approval of the Shareholders in a general meeting at
which that Eligible Participant and his/her/its associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) shall abstain from voting.

Where any grant of options to a substantial Shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or an INED, or any
of their respective associates, would result in the Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant (i) representing in aggregate
over 0.1% of the Shares in issue on the date of such grant; and
(i) having an aggregate value, based on the official closing price
of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, in excess of HK$5.0
million, such further grant of the options shall be subject to the
approval of the Shareholders with such person/entity and his/
her/its core connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules)
abstaining from voting in favour at the general meeting.
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Any grant of options to any Director, chief executive or
substantial Shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company, or any of their respective associates under the Share
Option Scheme is subject to the prior approval of the INEDs
(excluding the INED who is the grantee of an option).

PERIOD WITHIN WHICH THE SECURITIES MUST BE
EXERCISED UNDER AN OPTION

Unless otherwise provided in the respective grantee’s offer
document, each of the grantees to whom an option has been
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to
exercise his/her/its option in the following manner:

(@ up to 33% of the Shares that are subject to the option so
granted to him/her/it (rounded down to the nearest whole
number) at any time during the period commencing on
the first anniversary of the date on which such option is
granted (the “Commencement Date”) and ending on the
expiry of the period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee (the “Option Period”), within which the option
may be exercisable provided that the Option Period shall
not exceed a period of ten years commencing on the
Commencement Date;

(b) up to 66% of the Shares that are subject to the option so
granted to him/her/it (rounded down to the nearest whole
number) at any time during the period commencing on
the second anniversary of the Commencement Date and
ending on the expiry of the Option Period; and

(c) upto 100% of the Shares that are subject to the option so
granted to him/her/it (rounded down to the nearest whole
number) at any time during the period commencing on the
third anniversary of the Commencement Date and ending
on the expiry of the Option Period.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2023 Annual Report

RIBBEEEMARREAIES &
BITBRABRETERR(EER LR
A M ER BN EMBER AR DER
B AEAKBEIFRTES(T
BREARG BBREAR ANIEILIEMTT
BEE)HE-

EFYRAEMRAREBRETE

BRIFSARANBHOXHERITRE * &
ARIR AR A AT S T R AR A &
BAEBEATINI A TREBEE

(@ RELEEREZB(TRABRAEM])
ME-BFEEEESHEMNEEK
BARITTERERAEN IR ([BR
REFARR |) i /s LE O EAFE] (HERBAX
EHRAMMBERETERB T
FINEMAERE - ARABETH
BRSPS Ko Bt MY AR % 33% (1Y
BAAZREAMNER)

b)) RFABABNE BFEERK
R HA PR Je i A LE ) A FR] PR (AT By
B ARAER T OEBRER Y
KA B 8 %66% (iR A AE &
BOMEH) &

) RPARBBEMNE-BAFTREZER
T 2R PR = 4 L B B R P A 1) B
M AR ANER TR ERE TS
MERMERERZ100% (HERAR
REANEE) -



VESTING PERIOD

There is no minimum period (i.e., vesting period) for which an
option granted must be held before it can be exercised unless
otherwise imposed by the Directors.

PERIOD FOR AND CONSIDERATION PAYABLE ON
ACCEPTANCE OF AN OPTION

An offer for the grant of option must be accepted within the
time period specified in the relevant offer document. A sum of
HK$1.00 is payable as consideration upon acceptance of the
offer.

BASIS OF DETERMINING THE EXERCISE PRICE

The exercise price in relation to each option offered to an
Eligible Participant shall be determined by the Board (or its
committee) in its sole discretion, save that such price shall not
be less than the highest of:

(@) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange
is open for business of dealing in securities (the “Business
Day’);

(b) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange
for the five Business Days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and

(c) the nominal value of a Share.
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9. REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years commencing on 26 September 2014.

As at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023, 80,000,000 and
80,000,000 share options respectively may be granted pursuant to
the scheme mandate and the service provider sublimit.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option granted with details set out under the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report, the Company
has not entered into any equity-linked agreements that (i) will or may
result in the Company issuing Shares; or (i) require the Company to
enter into any agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing
Shares during the Year and no such agreement subsisted at the end
of the Year.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

Save as disclosed above in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme”, at no time during the Year or at the end of the Year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable a Director to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of the Shares or any shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts (except for the executive Directors’ service contracts)
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company or its subsidiaries
were entered into or existed during the Year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals with
the highest emoluments for the Year are set out in notes 11 and 12,
respectively, to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in
this annual report.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the
“SFO”)), which were required: (i) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (jii) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Interest in the Company’s ordinary Shares of HK$0.0001 each
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Notes:

(1) By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen is deemed to be interested in
225,000,000 Shares, including (i) 70,000,000 Shares beneficially owned
by Wealthy Sea which is owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr. Chau On Ta
Yuen, an executive Director and the chairman of the Board, and Ms. Wong
Mei Ling, the wife of Mr. Chau, respectively, and (i) 155,000,000 Shares
charged by Everbest Environmental in favour of Wealthy Sea in order to
secure the obligations of Everbest Environmental under a loan agreement.

(2)  Everbest Environmental which held 492,500,000 Shares was owned as to
50%, 30% and 20% by Ms. Wong Shu Ying (“Ms. Wong”), Ms. Judy Chan
and Mr. Chan, an executive Director and the CEOQ, respectively. Mr. Chan
is the sole director of Everbest Environmental. Ms. Wong is the mother of
all of Ms. Judy Chan, Mr. Chan and Mr. Brian Chan, the NED. Mr. Chan
also owns 20% of the issued shares in Kingdrive Limited which in turn owns
100% of the issued shares in Carlton Asia Limited (“Carlton Asia”). Carlton
Asia held 15,700,000 Shares and is accustomed to act in accordance with
the directions of Mr. Chan.

(8) Al the above Shares were held in long position.

(4)  The calculation is based on the total number of 1,107,300,000 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares, or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which had been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange or entered in the register referred to in the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
the following entities or persons (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) had or were deemed or taken to have
an interest and/or a short position in the Shares or the underlying
Shares, which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which was recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO.
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Interest in the Company’s ordinary Shares of HK$0.0001 each RN B IR EE0.0001 A TR EEAY D 2
2
Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
Number of Interest in the
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Held Total Company®
RN RRE
BREREE /AR B/ RRME FisROHE st CEER b
Everbest Environmental Beneficial interest 492,500,000t 492,500,000 44.48%
Batn
Ms. Wong Beneficial interest 18,915,0001
Fat BaER } 526,080,000 47.51%
Interest in controlled corporations 507,165,000
Rt E R
Mr. Chan Chun Keung Interest in a controlled corporation 14,665,000@
s RS } 526,080,000 47.51%
Interest held by spouse 511,415,000
[ TiEse 3oy
Wealthy Sea Beneficial interest 70,000,000@
bS] gy } 225,000,000 20.32%
Security interest in Shares 155,000,0008!
RiDE ML
Ms. Wong Mei Ling Interest held by spouse 225,000,000@ 225,000,000 20.32%
IERTLE [EliEse 3y
Morgan Top Trading Co., Ltd. Beneficial interest 143,300,000 143,300,000 12.94%
Notes: BiE -
(1) Each of Everbest Environmental and Hightop Investment Limited (“Hightop”) ~ (1) Everbest Environmental & i 1% #% & G R &

is owned as to 50% by Ms. Wong and therefore, Ms. Wong is deemed to
be interested in the 492,500,000 Shares and 14,665,000 Shares held by
Everbest Environmental and Hightop respectively pursuant to the SFO.
Also, Ms. Wong is beneficially interested in 18,915,000 Shares.

(2)  Hightop is also owned as to 50% by Mr. Chan Chun Keung, the husband  (2)
of Ms. Wong. Therefore, Mr. Chan Chun Keung is deemed to be interested
in the 14,665,000 Shares held by Hightop, 492,500,000 Shares deemed
to be held by Ms. Wong through Everbest Environmental and 18,915,000
Shares beneficially owned by Ms. Wong pursuant to the SFO.
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(8)  Wealthy Sea is owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr. Chau, an executive
Director and the Chairman, and Ms. Wong Mei Ling, the wife of Mr. Chau,
respectively. Everbest Environmental has charged 155,000,000 Shares
in favour of Wealthy Sea in order to secure the obligations of Everbest
Environmental under a loan agreement. Ms. Wong Mei Ling is, therefore,
deemed to be interested in the 225,000,000 Shares held by Wealthy Sea
controlled by Mr. Chau pursuant to the SFO.

(4) Al the above Shares were held in long position.

(5)  The calculation is based on the total number of 1,107,300,000 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors
were not aware of any entities which or persons (other than a Director
or the chief executive of the Company) who had, or were deemed
or taken to have interests or short positions in the Shares or the
underlying Shares, which had been disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or were
entered in the register kept by the Company under the SFO.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES/PENSION SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
485 of the laws of Hong Kong) for employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s operations in the PRC are required
to participate in the central pension schemes operated by the local
municipal governments, the assets of which are held separately from
those of the Group. Contributions are made by the Group based on a
percentage of the participating employees’ salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the central pension schemes. The employer contributions vest fully
with the employees once made.
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Under the Indonesia Labour Law, companies are required to
pay separation, appreciation and compensation benefits to their
employees if the conditions specified in the Indonesia Labour Law are
met. The Company’s subsidiaries in Indonesia estimate their liability
for employee service entitlement benefits in order to meet and cover
the minimum benefits requirement to be paid to employees under the
Indonesia Labour Law. For further information, please refer to note 35
to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual
report.

No forfeited contributions were incurred during the Year. For further
information, please refer to note 35 to the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in this annual report.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.17 and 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

As disclosed in the announcement dated 2 November 2023,
Everbest Environmental entered into a deed of share transfer (the
“Share Transfer Deed”) as purchaser with Wealthy Sea as vendor,
pursuant to which Wealthy Sea has agreed to sell and Everbest
Environmental has agreed to purchase 155,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company (the “Sale Shares”), at an aggregate consideration
of HK$26,350,000 (the “Consideration”), representing HK$0.17 per
Sale Share (the “Acquisition”). The Consideration shall be satisfied
by way of assignment of a loan (the “Shareholder Loan”) owing by
the Company to Mr. Chan Chun Keung by him in favour of Wealthy
Sea in an aggregate amount equivalent to that of the Consideration.

In connection with the Acquisition and the assignment of the
Shareholder Loan, Everbest Environmental entered into a deed of
share charge (the “Share Charge”) as chargor with Wealthy Sea as
chargee, pursuant to which Everbest Environmental agreed to pledge
all of the Sale Shares acquired by it under the Acquisition in favour of
Wealthy Sea, as security for the Shareholder Loan to the Company in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$26,350,000. The Sale Shares
that were pledged under the Share Charge represent approximately
14.00% of the total issued share capital of the Company. For details,
please refer to the announcement dated 2 November 2023.

Save as disclosed above, the Company does not have other
disclosure obligations under Rules 13.17 and 13.21 of the Listing
Rules.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
adequate public float (i.e. at least 25% of the issued Shares being
held by the public) during the Year and up to the date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the ordinary
course of business by the Group during the Year are set out in note
38 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this
annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had not conducted any “one-off
connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
(as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) which is
subject to reporting and annual review requirements under the
Listing Rules. Save for disclosed in note 38(a) and (b) to the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual
report, the transactions disclosed in note 38 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report as related
party transactions did not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) or are fully exempt continuing
connected transactions under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Ms. Judy Chan, Mr. Chan (an ED and the CEO), Ms. Wong,
Everbest Environmental (a company owned by Ms. Wong, Ms.
Judy Chan and Mr. Chan as to 50%, 30% and 20%, respectively),
Mr. Chau (an ED and the Chairman) and Wealthy Sea (a company
owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr. Chau and his wife, respectively)
(collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) executed a deed of
non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of
the Company on 5 September 2014. Pursuant to the Deed of Non-
Competition, each of the Controlling Shareholders has unconditionally
and irrevocably agreed, undertaken to and covenanted with the
Company (for itself and for the benefits of other members of the
Group) that it/he/she would not, and would procure its/his/her
associates (other than members of the Group) not to, directly or
indirectly, either on its/his/her own account or in conjunction with
or on behalf of any person, firm or company, among other things,
carry on, participate or be interested or engaged in or acquire or
hold (in each case whether as a shareholder, director, partner, agent,
employee or otherwise, and whether for profit, reward or otherwise)
any activity or business which competes or is likely to compete,
directly or indirectly, with the business of operating wastewater
treatment facilities in the PRC by the Group as described in the
Prospectus and any other business from time to time conducted,
carried on or contemplated to be carried on by any member of the
Group or in which any member of the Group is engaged or has
invested or which any member of the Group has otherwise publicly
announced its intention to enter into, engage in or invest in (whether
as principal or agent and whether undertaken directly or through any
body corporate, partnership, joint venture, or other contractual or
other arrangement).

The Company has received from each of the Controlling Shareholders
an annual written declaration as to the compliance with the terms
of the Deed of Non-Competition during the Year. The INEDs had
reviewed the compliance by each of the Controlling Shareholders with
the Deed of Non-Competition and were not aware of the occurrence
of any adverse event, confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders
had not been in breach of the Deed of Non-Competition during the
Year.

Directors’ Report
EEERE

AP

PR ~ RIECE(RITESFRITEBED) -
T Z =+ - Everbest Environmental (— X i £
Tt REZETRREEDRIHEES S
30% K 20% A E]) ~ FLEE(RITESFR
FE)RBEE(—KBBRLEEREEZFHRIE
BFI0% K10%H) AR (REERER]) &
BER-ZE—NF LA RAARARRFZEET
I PAHFRIBE(TFABRBREE]) - BETEHESF
24 ERERESEEGGRTIEE R
B RARA(BEAGRASEEEMKE
RNAMN ) FEREH  HAgheRF
HEBA(REBERKEARIRIN T2 EES
Ml A E BRI RERA
T @S A E (AR edE) T - 28 i
= WENSEEEMEZREEEBRER
FI7 it 7N £ B 7 A B 45 & /)5 7K BE FR RR b 3
% ARAREBEERKE R TRLE -« &
Tk EETR A EEE MK E AR B
B AREBERKE AR EARAEMEER
FN 0 MEHERE(THmeEUEFT AR
BAGDETHESEERBEBREMEAE
A% AEARIREMEHEMLHE
ET) AR EMERRF KA ERFNT
BB EFRINEPHEERE (ESEIE
MTITHELCUARE - EE - A8A - RE
A EEREMHH R THAEF - 2E
Ha=) o

RAFEER » NABIDERESEBRIRLE
TTBRFRBETNFEETDZER K - B
FNEFCDEH SRR RE T IHFRIE
ZERRARGEEM AR EHELE - W
EHERIER RN A FE W EE R A5 F 2
& e

BERRERERDF ZZZ=FFRH

129



130

Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors is considered to have interests in a business (apart from
the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group and has
any other conflicts of interest, as required to be disclosed under the
Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above and in note 38 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report, no controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance (whether for the
provision of services to the Group or not) to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director
in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which
judgement is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is acquitted.
In addition, proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions
against the Directors’ liability has been arranged. The relevant
provisions in the Articles of Association and the Directors’ liability
insurance were in force during the Year and as at the date of this
report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If
the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any
rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 176 employees (31
December 2022: 185 employees). Employee costs, including
Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$15.5 million
for FY2023 (FY2022: HK$16.9 million). The remuneration policy for
our Directors, senior management members and general staff is
based on their experience, level of responsibility and general market
conditions. Any discretionary bonus and other merit payments are
linked to the profit performance of our Group and the individual
performance of our Directors, senior management members and
general staff. The Group encourages the self-development of its
employees and provides on-the-job training where appropriate.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 5 September
2014 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
directors and employees of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During FY2023, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the principal corporate governance policies and practices
adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 71 to 108 of this annual report.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in compliance
with paragraph D.3 of the Corporate Governance Code contained
in Appendix C1 (formerly Appendix 14) to the Listing Rules for the
purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s
financial reporting process, risk management and internal controls.
As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three
members, namely Ms. Ng (who is also the chairlady of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Ng and Ms. Leung, all being the INEDs. The Audit
Committee has reviewed with the Company’s management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and the
annual audited consolidated results of the Group for the Year.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, there has been no
change in Directors’ information since the date of the 2023 interim
report of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have
been audited by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited (“Baker Tilly”), the
independent auditor of the Company, which will retire and, being
eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming 2024 AGM.
Having been approved by the Board upon the Audit Committee’s
recommendation, a resolution to re-appoint Baker Tilly as the
independent auditor of the Company and to authorise the Directors
to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming 2024
AGM. There has been no change in auditors of the Company in any
of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Chau On Ta Yuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ELL
Environmental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 144
to 295, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERNETNAUHAREN S RETRE

Revenue from construction services and imputed interest income on receivables under service

concession arrangements

KEBRBIBHIEERAUR RIS 1FFELHE T HIE LB FFE WA

Refer to notes 4, 5 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

B2 R E B RERN 4 > 517

The Group recognised revenue from construction
services of HK$41,943,000 and imputed interest income
on receivables under service concession arrangements
of HK$17,293,000 during the year ended 31 December
2023.
EEERREE T _=F+-_A=1T—HILFEXE
AR RIS R & U A 41,943,000/ T A M RIS Hr P iE L
BET R FE MR HE B N B U A17,293,000/ 7T ©

Our procedures in relation to recognition of revenue
from construction services and imputed interest income
on receivables under service concession arrangements
included:

B ER KB RGN ERRA R REFTELR
RN RN TR HE B R RUASREREVIZ B4

° Examining the related BOT agreements entered
into between the governments and the Group
to assess the appropriateness of the related
accounting treatment adopted by the Group;
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMOEtNAHRARETSHETERE

Revenue from construction services and imputed interest income on receivables under service

concession arrangements (Cont’d)

KEBRBHEHEFUAUR BRI RELHE T HIER S BREFE LA ()

Revenue from construction of biomass power facilities
under the terms of build-operate-transfer (the “BOT”)
arrangement are estimated on a cost-plus basis
in which the construction margin is estimated with
reference to a prevailing market rate of gross margins
of market comparable at the time of construction.
Revenue from construction services is recognised using
the percentage-of-completion method measured by
reference to the proportion of costs incurred to date to
the estimated total cost of the construction contract.
RIFERER — K& —BR([BOT) RHHET R B 2R EY
B BRIEHEFZWAABRINBOE ST - MEREN
KTHBERRER A E LB RITMISERMEMET o 2K
BREREHNEZRARKATIAES L ARR - k2
B SEEENRERES WK ABLLL OIS -

Imputed interest income from wastewater treatment
and biomass power facilities under the terms of the
BOT arrangements is recognised from time to time on
receivables under service concession arrangements on
an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
discounting the estimated future cash receipts over the
service concession period at the estimated effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition.

PRI S EF L T EIGRIR T & B E R A FER
RETEEERBOTRHHER MK REMEEER
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MR RIS R AR R (A E T AR RIR & WA BRIR o
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Understanding the Group’s estimation of the
construction margin, the available industry and
market data of market comparables at the
time of construction and the involvement of an
independent valuer appointed by the Group for
the revenue from construction services;
;TEAXEL SARISHE A - TR BEEEY

JEMER GG - BERASEAE LR TISH
ﬁ%éﬁ‘ﬁ%%@fﬁ& EEELENE L HERDAY
S

Evaluating the independent qualified valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectives of the
exercise and assessing its valuation methodology;
B AERMMEMNER - e RARKER
Bt Mt R ER A

Assessing the reasonableness of the percentage-
of-completion measured by reference to the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the
estimated total cost of the construction contract;
FHE2 B S EEEKNEREES QLT AR
WP EMNT TE LA IR |

Verifying the construction costs incurred during
the year by examining the contracts, invoices,
completion reports and other supporting
documents on a sample basis;
FRMEEEELH  BFE  TIWRENEMEZER
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMOEtNAHRARETSHETERE

Revenue from construction services and imputed interest income on receivables under service

concession arrangements (Cont’d)

KEBRBHEHEFUAUR BRI RELHE T HIER S BREFE LA ()

The Group engages an independent qualified valuer to
access the prevailing market rate of gross margin of
market comparables and the effective interest rate for
service concession arrangements as mentioned above.
SEBEEFE LA ERMEMTE Lir EL BTSN
BITTISERNE LRGSR BRI X -

We identified recognition of revenue from construction
services and imputed interest income on receivables
under service concession arrangements as a key audit
matter due to the above significant estimation made by
the Group’s management.
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Evaluating the estimated total cost of construction
contract by reference to the signed contracts and
approved budgets; and

Z2EZERI AN ETRE T HEES VNG
FHBRAS ¢+ }

Evaluating the reasonableness of estimated
effective interest rate for the imputed interest
income on receivables under service concession
arrangements by benchmarking against market
data.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMOENAHRARETSHETERE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

WH - BB RREIBIETE

Refer to notes 4 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements

BB E BRI 4516

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipments of the Group was
HK$65,204,000.
W_ZE_=F+"HA=+—8"
=R BRE (B 465,204,000/ 7T ©

BEEEYE - BE &

Management’s impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment is highly judgemental and is
dependent on certain key assumptions including the
discount rate, growth rates, budgeted sales and gross
margin, which are affected by expected future market or
economic conditions, particularly those in the Republic
of Indonesia (“Indonesia”).
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment included:

B - BB R ERRENERROEF 2

o Understanding the Group’s impairment
assessment process, including the impairment
model, preparation of the cash flow projections
and involvement of an independent qualified
valuer appointed by the Group;

s  TH BEHEEREMEHER(BEFBERR
RenBRANGEEEL EXEBZENBYAE
BAGERE) 28

° Evaluating the independent qualified valuer’s
competence, capability and objectivity and
assessing its valuation methodology;
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMHESNAHRARETSRETERE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

W¥ ~ BERREHN#ETE ()

An independent qualified valuer is engaged to assess
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(“CGuU”).

BEEEEF 2B YA ERGLEMNGREELEML
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We identified impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment as a key audit matter due to the
significant judgements made by the management in
assessing the recoverable amount of the CGU, which is
derived from value in use calculations using discounted
cash flow model.
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° Evaluating the appropriateness of impairment
model applied by the management;
s HMEEREERRMEREMNEEMT

o Comparing the budgeted sales and gross margin
against historical performance in respect of the
CcGy;

e MREELABMME  HREEHEREMNEMER
ERBVEITHR

° Evaluating the accuracy of the management’s
cash flow forecasts by comparing the actual
results of the CGU to the previously forecasted
results;

s FRAPRSELBEMNERARENAITRASLER
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E

U Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs or
assumptions (including growth rates and discount
rate) applied in the impairment assessment; and

o FHERRERTAEANEREABIESER(E
BERXEMBER)NGET &

U Evaluating the sensitivity analysis performed by
management on the key assumptions as stated
above and assessed the potential impacts of a
range of possible outcomes.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Yam Yung.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 March 2024

Cheung Yam Yung
Practicing certificate number PO8299

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

melEmRk
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF
NOTES 2023 2022
LbEs —B-=F —EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
(restated)
(#e8%1)
Revenue EEWA 5 113,279 203,659
Cost of sales SHE KA (72,609) (151,599)
Gross profit EA 40,670 52,060
Other income and net other gains and ~ E 4l A A K2 H b U262
losses B8R R 7 234 4,772
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HENRB A RHER 36 - (14,060)
Impairment losses under expected FEHEEBEEATH
credit loss model REEE 9 (1,023) 2,772)
Administrative expenses THRHX (26,471) (30,539)
Finance costs RUE AN 8 (12,710) (9,298)
Profit before tax MR AR 10 700 163
Income tax expense FrigBiFsZ 13 (8,818) (15,335)
Loss for the year FNFHE (8,118) (15,172)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: LA & HEEERN(EER),
w A
Owners of the Company FiN/NEIEZE N (8,265) (16,261)
Non-controlling interests FEERR A RS 147 1,089
(8,118) (15,172)
HK cent HK cent
AL (il
(restated)
(&=75)
Loss per share HFREE 15
— Basic —HAK (0.75) (1.47)
— Diluted — e (0.75) (1.47)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meBEaRkHMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

2023 2022
—E=-= T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(restated)
(ggE5)
Loss for the year FAEE (8,118) (15,172)
Other comprehensive expense Hit2 M
Item that will not be reclassified to T BB D EEBmmEE -
profit or loss:
Actuarial (loss)/gain of defined benefit REBFRNEIZBE(ER),
retirement plan Wz (5) 28
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently F&1& AJ5EE R 4B 218 as BB H -
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINEBEEZERZRE
translation of foreign operations (3,360) (41,051)
Reclassification of cumulative exchange FBTHEN B AR 2T E K
reserve to profit or loss upon REEFTIEEER
deregistration of a subsidiary (34) —
Reclassification of cumulative exchange FHRHERB AR RTE A
reserve to profit or loss upon REETOHEEES
disposal of a subsidiary - (3,693)
Net fair value loss on debt instrument FREMEEWEIEARE
at fair value through other FFENEBIAZ AREEBRE
comprehensive income R (502) (1,429)
Impairment loss for debt instrument FREMEERRRANE
at fair value through other FrENEBIAY
comprehensive income included BEEER A=
in profit or loss 997 2,381
Other comprehensive expense for the year, FERHEMEERY
net of nil income tax MBRZFTEM (2,904) (43,764)
Total comprehensive expense forthe FR2EEXAEE
year (11,022) (58,936)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for A TEHEEERNZE (L),
the year attributable to: WesfazE -
— Owners of the Company —ARREHEE A (11,147) (57,335)
— Non-controlling interests —SEYEfR R 125 (1,601)
(11,022) (58,936)
BERRERBRAT ZE=FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R
As at 31 December 2023 R —E - =F+_-H=+—H
NOTES 2023 2022
[irs —EC-=E —E-_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(restated)
($eE5)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE NS 16 65,204 64,129
Receivables under service concession  ARFSIFEFRELHE N FELR
arrangements WIE 17 336,599 298,498
Debt instrument at fair value through FEREMEEWREZARE
other comprehensive income FFENEBIA 18 - 583
Other financial assets at amortised cost 1% #6 $5K NS 2 &) E Aty
TRIEE 19 - -
Prepayments and other receivables TER FRIE K E A MR IR 20 316 312
402,119 363,522
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 5,430 4,417
Trade receivables 2 5 W IR 20 3,670 414
Receivables under service concession  ARTGAFEFREZHE T B FELUR
arrangements A 17 28,182 28,327
Prepayments and other receivables TERTFRIE K E A R MR IR 20 29,064 80,477
Debt instrument at fair value through FEREMEEWREZEARE
other comprehensive income FTENEBIA 18 81 —
Other financial assets at amortised cost 1% #6 s S 2 &9 E Aty
TRIEE 19 - —
Restricted bank deposits R HIERITIF X 21 27,480 5,405
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 21 30,075 34,611
123,982 153,651
CURRENT LIABILITIES REIEE
Trade payables B S FIR 22 2,970 5,466
Other payables and accruals Hib I R g B A 23 14,786 10,126
Amounts due to related parties JE A< BE s 5 R IR 24 31,676 90,977
Borrowings B 25 64,067 41,867
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 451 438
Income tax payable FERT TS HR 3,377 6,081
117,327 154,955
NET CURRENT ASSETS/ B EFE
(LIABILITIES) (BEFE) 6,655 (1,304)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBDAME
LIABILITIES 408,774 362,218

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
I|V_\éﬂjﬁ%ﬂﬁ 5Ri.‘=2

As at 31 December 2028 R —E - =F+_-_H=+—H

NOTES 2023 2022
g —ET=HF T CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
(restated)
($eE5)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRH#E
Share capital R 29 111 111
Reserves s 30 284,272 295,419
Equity attributable to owners of the RAFHE AEERER
Company 284,383 295,530
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR 2 (5,483) (5,608)
TOTAL EQUITY i 278,900 289,922
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Amounts due to related parties FE < BABSE 5 A 24 70,389 14,567
Borrowings =N 25 18,000 20,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 290 557
Deferred tax liabilities EETIE A& 27 24,963 22,891
Provision for major overhauls BAGEEE 28 15,088 13,352
Retirement benefit obligations RIKEFIET 35 1,144 929
129,874 72,296
408,774 362,218

The consolidated financial statements on pages 144 to 295 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27

March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chau On Ta Yuen

BA=RER
Chairman
FE

F144E 205 B A B RREEETSHN —
ToMFE=A -+t B ERFETE I
B TNIATRERESE

Chan Kwan
PR
Executive director

BITEE

BERRREREBRLA

—B-=FEH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

At 31 December 2023 R —ZFE =+ _-H=+—H

Attributable to owners of the Company

RDAREAEL
Investment  Accumu- Non-
Share Share Other ~ Exchange  General revaluation [ated controlling
capital  premium feserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
ke ROEE EbRE  EXRE  -HRE REEMER  ZEE Nt FERER &3t
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
TRn TEn  TEn  TEr TR 0 TEBn  TER  TEn  TEr  TEn
(note 30(A)) (note 30(B))
(&E30(A)) (W&30))
At1 January 2023 N-E-=E-f-H
- As previously reported  ~1BA 2R 11 391,851 (31476 (30,778 25,736 (000  (46,749) 308,500 (5,008) 302,892
- Prior year adjustment -~ BAFEEE
(Note 3.2 (its2) - - - - - - (12010 (12970 - (12970
A1 January 2023 (restated)  H=E-=F-A-H
(mE5)) 11 391,851 (31476) (30,773 25736 (00 (9719 295530 (5,008) 289,922
(Loss)proftfortheyear  ER(EHE) /& - - - - - - (8265 (8,265) iy (8,119)
Other comprehensive EREMEE(EY)/
(expense)/income for W& IRERER
the year, net of
nilincome tax - - - (3372 - 495 () (2,882) (22) (2,904)
Total comprehensive ERRE(REY)/
(expense)/income for hiaggE
the year - - - B - 95 8210)  (11,14) 15 (1102
Aopropriation of general - EAZ—REE
f6S61Ve - - - - 1,683 - (1,683) - - -
At 31 December 2023 R-B-zE
tZA=+-R 11 301,851 (31476) (34145 21,419 295 (69672 284,383 (5483) 278,900

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREEHR

At 31 December 2023 R —ZFE - =F+_-_H=+—H

Attrioutable to owners of the Company

LYNE PN
Investment Accumy- Non-
Share Share Other  Exchange  Generdl  revaluation lated controling
capiial ~ premium resene resenve resenve reserve losses  Sub-fotal  interests Total
Rex  ROEE  AtEE  EXRE  REE REEMEE  Z0BE NG HmEs a3t
HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000 HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000
Thn TR TR TEr TEn TEn Thn  TEr TR TEn
(note 30(A)) (note 308))
(Hta0m) (x30m)
At 1 January 2022 R-F-Z5-A-H M 391851 (31,476) 11,281 27,652 (1152 {45402 352,865 30,200 383,065
(Loss)/proftfor theyear  ER(EE) /£
(restated) (&ma7)) - - - - - - (16,261) (16,261) 1,089 (15,172)
Other comprehensive EREHERTEER)/
[expenselincomeforthe Wiz - RERER
year, net of nil income tax - - - (42,054) - 992 28 (1,074) (2,690) (43764)
Total comprehensive En2E(RY)/
(expense)/income haeg ()
for the year (restated) - - - (42,054) - 952 (16283 (57,339 (1601) (58936
Appropriain of general  EEZ e
resene - - - - 1650 - (1,650 - - -
Disposalof asubsiciary ~ HEHERT]
(note 36) (H3t36) - - - - (3,566) - 3,566 - Bam e
M31December 202  W-E-CF
(restated) +2R=t-H
(&) "1 8 [BI48 BT 25736 Q0 FITI9 295530 (A0S 289922
BRRRIEREBRLAGE —ZT=FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #F —E - =%+ =+—HIFEZF

2023 2022
—E-=H —E- 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
(restated)
(geE5)
Operating activities KESES
Profit before tax BRAA AT A 700 163
Adjustments for: AT RIBEL A
Interest income FILEMA (799) (1,483)
Finance costs BRE AR 12,710 9,298
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENERETE
equipment 5,812 5,968
Impairment losses on prepayments A RIEREE R 420 -
Impairment losses under expected credit ~ FEEZEEEER T
loss model BEEE
— other receivables — H At fE YR IE 26 374
— other financial assets at amortised cost  — IR EK At ENEMERMEE - 17
— debt instrument at fair value through —ERAMEARSIEARERE
other comprehensive income rES A 997 2,381
Provision for major overhauls ERREEE 1,325 1,868
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEH B AR EE - 14,060
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary Ex-SPNEI L6 (347) —
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of FEMOR, (B EIHUR)
inventories 812 (897)
(Gain)/loss on disposal on property, plant  HEYE « BKE KB ES (W),
and equipment E518 (23) 14
Gain on lease modification AE B - (10)
Defined benefit costs recognised in profit B2 FERE S ER AL A
or loss 327 13
Operating cash flows before movements Rt EE S HEATHK L
in working capital REnE 21,960 31,766
Increase in inventories FEEN (1,794) (1,9095)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 U GRIBIE 1N (3,297) (366)
Increase in receivables under service BRAG TR L HE T B FE MR IR S N
concession arrangements (41,969) (119,279)
Decrease in prepayments and other TR ERIE K E A R BGRIE R
receivables 6,872 10,202
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables Z S ENZIECRD), /1B (2,585) 3,864
Decrease in retirement benefit obligations iR {RIEFI & (EF 4 (126) (31)
Increase in other payables and accruals HAth & B K FEET B R0 5,011 5,942
Cash used in operations REFMANRE (15,928) (69,807)
Income taxes paid BATFTEH (8,821) (10,740)
Net cash used in operating activities & ZEFFANRE TR (24,749) (80,547)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2023 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

2023 2022
—E-=HF T -F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(restated)
(Fe=%1))
Investing activities RETE
Interest received BYFIE 37 720
Proceeds on disposal of property, MEYE - BEMERENFIEHIE
plant and equipment 44 —
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BB W% - = L& E (5,909) (3,943)
Placement of restricted bank deposits TR R BRI TR (22,005) —
Withdrawal of time deposits IREUE BiF K - 11,642
Proceeds on disposal of a subsidiary BEFEHENBRRIMNMERIE
in prior year 44,524 -
Net cash outflow of disposal of a subsidiary HEMBATALER SR
(note 36) (Ff13E36) - (37,269)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZRBES (FRAINERLFHE
investing activities 17,025 (28,850)
Financing activities mMEEE
Interest paid ERFLE (12,284) (6,013)
Repayments to related parties By (3,120) -
New loan from related parties RE R B R - 73,131
Repayments of borrowings BEBN - (20,240)
New borrowings raised FTiEfER 20,200 38,000
Repayments of lease liabilities BEMEARE (475) (513)
Net cash generated from financing AEITBHEENRESFEE
activities 4,321 84,365
Net decrease in cash and cash RERBESEEYRL FE
equivalents (3,403) (25,032)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—HBERERBELZEY 34,611 65,054
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HINGE [ R EF B R R E (1,133) (5,411)
Cash and cash equivalents at RT-A=+—BRERBEELZEY
31 December 30,075 34,611

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS:

FTEHFRERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a close family member
of a director assigned a portion of a loan to the Group amounted to
HK$26,350,000 to a shareholder.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a close family member of
a director provided a new loan of HK$9,000,000 to the Group. This
loan was subsequently assigned to an independent third party and
was included in other borrowings as at 31 December 2022.

BE-_S_=F+-_A=+—HIEE  —
FZEENARBRAEBIRENLHER
26,350,000/ TTEE T — B R o

BE_ZT_—F+-_A=1+—RLFE —
HEE I M A& B 24t —289,000,000
BITHHFEN  ZEREGEET 2B
=/ - WR-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—H%t
AEMFERR o

BERRERERDF ZZZ=FFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

GENERAL INFORMATION

ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands. The principal place of business of
the Company is Unit 2304, 23rd Floor, Westlands Centre, 20
Westlands Road, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
40.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2023 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 January 2023, for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the October 2020 and
February 2022 Amendments to HKFRS 17)

2.

& A

BRMBHRELENFITR(BE_Z_TFTAK %=

—E - —F - ARBYEREENFE17RUERTA))

Amendments to HKAS 8
EEGFERIESHE (BRI A)

Amendments to HKAS 12

BREMIIEEMEREEN( &F
RMBEWEEN ) REETE

REFEBHNENZHITRIEEBTE
R EEEER

RAFE » KRB REWMEB AR (5
AIAEE ) EXEMATIHBELER
CIPNIGR- ¥ N - DR Vv i)
REETEEMHREEN (AR =-F
—=%—A—BRRNAEEFEHRE
SRR - ARESAR A SRR

Insurance Contracts

Definition of Accounting Estimates

SEHERTAER

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities

arising from a Single Transaction

ERGFERFE125(EFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 12
BB ERFE125F (1BRTA)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BAGFEE1H B BB R EER B ERE2R
CEHEN)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

HE-QFEANEENREABRELERIE

International Tax Reform-Pillar Two model Rules

BIFR IR E — I — SR RIS A

Disclosure of Accounting Policies
BTN

BRI X P ESN - MAFE RAFETE &
RIEFT B AT MRS R AN R EARE
BN BEFENMBIRERR R, 3
SERAMERRAABABELEEX

27 488
e

BERREREBRLE ZBI=ZFFRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

2.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
(Cont’d)

IMPACTS ON APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKAS
1 AND HKFRS PRACTICE STATEMENT 2 DISCLOSURE OF
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
is amended to replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related
transactions, other events or conditions, even if the amounts
are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information
relating to material transactions, other events or conditions
is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must not
obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate
how an entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to
accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether information
about an accounting policy is material to its financial statements.
Guidance and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial positions and performance but has
affected the disclosure of the Group’s accounting policies set
out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

2023 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
(Cont’d)

APPLICATION OF THE HKICPA GUIDANCE ON THE
ACCOUNTING IMPLICATIONS OF THE ABOLITION OF THE
MANDATORY PROVIDENT FUND (“MPF”) - LONG SERVICE
PAYMENT (“LSP”) OFFSETTING MECHANISM IN HONG
KONG

In June 2022 the Hong Kong SAR Government gazetted the
Hong Kong Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
“Amendment Ordinance”), which will come into effect from
1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Once the Amendment
Ordinance takes effect, an employer can no longer use any of
the accrued benefits derived from its mandatory contributions to
mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF scheme”) to reduce
the LSP in respect of an employee’s service from the Transition
Date (the abolition of the “offsetting mechanism”). In addition,
the LSP in respect of the service before the Transition Date
will be calculated based on the employee’s monthly salary
immediately before the Transition Date and the years of service
up to that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications
of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong” that provides accounting guidance relating to the
offsetting mechanism and the abolition of the mechanism. In
particular, the guidance indicates that entities may account for
the accrued benefits derived from mandatory MPF contributions
that are expected to be used to reduce the LSP payable to an
employee as deemed contributions by that employee towards
the LSP.

The application of the above accounting guidance has had
no material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

BREMIIEEMEREEN( &F
RMBEHEEN ) REETE
()

REFEBHNENZHITRIEEBTE
RMEHREERF)

EREBET M AN (E BB RS
oA DERMEBE (R
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2185l

RZZFZ_FXA  FERTHRER
I =T = — FRE SR IRFENES
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TIE - E¥BE - Z-hFaA—H(HE
BB AR - (ERTIRBIERIZ - BE
BiEE A ENMSBERERIEAR
SR EI(REEETE ) 2 @b AT
BRI AR 2 2R R A R 1R B R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FRAMIIEEMBREEN(E
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BUERSERN ) REETE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d) (#&)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET CREGERREMZEETEEME
EFFECTIVE REER

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to ANEBIWEIZRIER T2 BMAE
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective: REM 2 LIS BB FRELER
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture!

RV BREENFE105E LB B S ERIFE285 REEERABMENRNAECELHNEEREITE

(f&3T74%)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

AN BHRE LA FE 169 (BT ) ERMARMNEER B2

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)2

%fi E%E‘I'—'— J 15)i<{|KAT$) H—JE1$/_\£E7E',’r//lh@_j@”5/m@J//\&%/%‘%%mkk5’iﬁz
BB (ZEFF)?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

BERGERE1RERIAR) BB R R R FERE A 152

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements?

ARG EAETRRE BV RELERETHR AR Bl & ke

(fB5TA)

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

BEARAGERE215% (BRI A) TRZ A s

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 1 RISETH B sk 2 B FEH EE B

determined. HK o
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. 2 R-IE-_NF—A—HskZBFAKBZE
[E AR
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. 3 R-_TE-_RF—A—B 2 ERBZE
S BRI AE R -

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of RARIEFTEHEAELET BB

these amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on Vﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ'JﬂﬂT\ﬁE—Jﬁ*Xﬁ,m/\ 2

the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future. BRREEEATE
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3.1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases (‘HKFRS
16”), and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

3.

3.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group disposed
of its entire 70% equity interest in a subsidiary, Haian Hengfa
Wastewater Treatment Company Limited (“Haian Hengfa”).
Pursuant to the relevant sale and purchase agreement (the
“Agreement”), the fair value of the consideration transferred
for the disposal at the disposal date was assessed to be
RMB68,166,000 (equivalent to HK$76,065,000), which was
reported in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the course of preparing the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, the
directors of the Company revisited the terms of the Agreement
and, taking into account the advice from the Company’s lawyer
in The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), reassessed that
the fair value of the consideration transferred for the disposal
at the disposal date was RMB55,888,000 (equivalent to
HK$62,364,000).

Further details of the disposal of a subsidiary are included in
note 36.

Accordingly, the prior year figures in the consolidated financial
statements in relation to the disposal of a subsidiary have been
restated. The following tables show the restatement made to
the relevant line items in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year ended 31 December 2022 and consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022 as
previously reported for the year ended 31 December 2022. Line
items that were not affected by the restatement have not been
included.

3.

3.2
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BEFERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. GEAHMERRZENEE - BE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR FEABREXEHBREH
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING (&)

POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)
3.2 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT (Cont’d) 3.2 BEFEERESE)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND BE-ZE-F+-A=+—HLEHFE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND NWEeBEaRkRFEBERRAEM2EK

160

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2022 (EXTRACTYS)

As previously

=k (k)

reported Adjustment As restated
BEERK ik BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
Consolidated statement of meBEk
profit or loss
Other income and net other gains E A YA A R B U 2
and losses NMEEFE 4,942 (170) 4,772
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEHBRARREER (359) (13,701) (14,060)
Profit before tax BREE AT @ A 14,034 (13,871) 163
Income tax expense FTSTA X (16,236) 901 (15,339)
Loss for the year FAEE (2,202) (12,970) (15,172)
Loss for the year attributable to KAEHER NG
owners of the Company FAEE (3,291) (12,970) (16,261)
Loss per share (Basic and diluted BREE
(HK$ cent)) (AR R#EECEMWL)) (0.30) (1.17) (1.47)
Consolidated statement of profit #&iE8% R Hi
or loss and other comprehensive 2 MHUkZ &
income
Loss for the year FREE (2,202) (12,970) (15,172)
Total comprehensive expense for FRLERT 425
the year (45,966) (12,970) (58,936)
Total comprehensive expense for RARHEE ABEFA
the year attributable to owners of HEFRZ B
the Company (44,365) (12,970) (57,335)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

(#)

POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT (Cont’d)

e MBEmRME
P CE_CFEf A= —HIFFE

REMBRRCENEE  BE
FEREREXEHBREH

3.2 BEFHREH)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS N-B——&E+—F=+— AMalE
ARk (%)

AT 31 DECEMBER 2022 (EXTRACTYS)

As previously

reported Adjustment As restated
BAEESR ik TEY
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FAET FAET
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables  TE{< %18 [z B fth fE U 3018 94,360 (13,883 80,477
Current liabilities REEE
Income tax payable FERTFTISRR 6,994 913) 6,081
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEERE
(BEFHE) 11,666 (12,970) (1,304)
Total assets less current liabilities 2&ERREEE 375,188 (12,970) 362,218
Capital and reserves BERR#E
Reserves i 308,389 (12,970) 295,419
Equity attributable to owners of RATRIHRE AEEER
the Company 308,500 (12,970) 295,530
Total equity R 302,892 (12,970) 289,922
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE BE_ZE__F+-A=+—HILLFEE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 (EXTRACTS)

As previously

MERERERER ()

reported Adjustment As restated
BIE2R A =5
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Operating activities KSR
Profit before tax BR A AT 14,034 (13,871) 163
Adjustments for: HATEIBEEHFAE -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEH B A RHEE 359 13,701 14,060
Decrease in prepayments and other  FE1: 318 % B 4th g U
receivables IER A 10,032 170 10,202
BERRERBRAT ZE=FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3.

3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

2023 Annual Report
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —F — =+ - H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Cont’d)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

CHANGES IN THE GROUP’S INTERESTS IN EXISTING
SUBSIDIARIES

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3.

3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

CHANGES IN THE GROUP’S INTERESTS IN EXISTING
SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a

bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

2023 Annual Report
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.3
(Cont’d)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (Cont’d)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

U the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Further information about the Group’s accounting policies
relating to contracts with customers is provided in note 5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3.

3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

LEASES
DEFINITION OF A LEASE

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed. As a
practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial statements
would not differ materially from individual leases within the
portfolio.
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

LEASES (Cont’d)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component
and are accounted for by applying other applicable standards.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

3.3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

LEASES (Cont’d)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Cont’d)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant and

equipment”, the same line item within which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.3
(Cont’d)

LEASES (Cont’d)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Cont’d)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

3.3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

LEASES (Cont’d)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Cont’d)

Lease liabilities (Cont’d)

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

LEASES (Cont’d)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Cont'd)

Lease liabilities (Cont’d)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised

discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial

discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on

the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3.

3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

LEASES (Cont’d)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Cont’d)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease
incentives receivables, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

2023 Annual Report

REMBRRCENEE  BE

FEREREXEHBREH
()

EXERREH ()

HE(#E)

AREEERAA (E)

HEENH

fHHIRA TSR - AEEKHEEEIE

RABNTEE AR

o  ZRENMCEBEEMER—IANZ
HHBEEMNENEAMEESR
P R

o HEREMNENSHEAENLE
R e RSB B AR S R RS
ERNBRAMEBLERETH
EEEFHE

ARER— B HEARNEE RS
mE - ANREEBE RIS ERE N
ISR IR R BIRERTRENR - &%
RETHENEMENTEHERER
EfEEEEES -

AR ERB Y AR REE EETTHE
HE - BHERENENTEETES
BRI - ERERINAHNBEHERD &
— A ZEEMEE I FHER I
AEESREHERDWRLEELER
NIFHER D WAEE L ERKEER A
HRENEZEEEERS -



3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of
the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3.

3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Cont’d)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income and net other gains and losses”.
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plan are
recognised as expenses when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end
of each annual reporting period. In determining the present
value of the Group’s defined benefit obligations and the related
current service cost and, where applicable, past service cost,
the Group attributes benefit to periods of service under the
plan’s benefit formula. However, if an employee’s service in later
years will lead to a materially higher level of benefit than earlier
years, the Group attributes the benefit on a straight-line basis
from:

(@) the date when service by the employee first leads to
benefits under plan (whether or not the benefits are
conditional on further service) until

(b) the date when further service by the employee will lead
to no material amount of further benefits under the plan,
other than from further salary increases.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and
the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial position
with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in accumulated losses and will not be reclassified
to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3.

3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont’d)
RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS (Cont’d)

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period
of a plan amendment or curtailment and a gain or loss on
settlement is recognised when settlement occurs. When
determining past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement,
an entity shall remeasure the net defined benefit liability or
asset using the current fair value of plan assets and current
actuarial assumptions, reflecting the benefits offered under the
plan and the plan assets before and after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, without considering the effect of asset
ceiling (i.e. the present value of any economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan).

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at
the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. However, if the Group remeasures the net defined
benefit liability or asset before plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement, the Group determines net interest for the remainder
of the annual reporting period after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement using the benefits offered under the
plan and the plan assets after the plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement and the discount rate used to remeasure such
net defined benefit liability or asset, taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefit liability or asset during the
period resulting from contributions or benefit payments.
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont’d)
RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS (Cont’d)
Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

° service cost (including current service cost, past service
cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

o net interest expense or income; and
o remeasurement.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the actual deficit
or surplus in the Group’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus
resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of
any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the
plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

TERMINATION BENEFITS

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier
of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer
of the termination benefit and when it recognises any related
restructuring costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3.

3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont’d)

SHORT-TERM AND OTHER LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE
BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3.

3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred
income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the
time of the transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

TAXATION (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3.

3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

TAXATION (Cont’d)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the lease liabilities and the
related assets separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax
asset related to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised and a deferred tax liability
for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress
described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Land rights are not depreciated and are measured at cost less
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Equipment and machine in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management, including costs of
testing whether the related assets are functioning properly
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3.

3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented within “property, plant
and equipment” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified
as “property, plant and equipment”.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets,
other than land rights and properties under construction, less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are allocated
to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which
the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3.

3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Cont’d)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUSs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of CGUs,
with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group
of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS
CONSIDERATION GIVEN BY THE GRANTOR

A financial asset (receivable under service concession
arrangement) is recognised to the extent that (a) the Group
has an unconditional right to receive cash or another financial
asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction
services rendered; and (b) the grantor has little, if any, discretion
to avoid payment, usually because the agreement is enforceable
by law. The Group has an unconditional right to receive cash
if the grantor contractually guarantees to pay the Group (a)
specified or determinable amounts or (b) the shortfall, if any,
between amounts received from users of the public service
and specified or determinable amounts, even if the payment
is contingent on the Group ensuring that the infrastructure
meets specified quality of efficiency requirements. The financial
asset (receivable under service concession arrangement) is
accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for “Financial
instruments” below.
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3.

3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)
OPERATING SERVICES

Revenue relating to operating services are accounted for in
accordance with the policy for “Revenue from contracts with
customers”.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS TO RESTORE THE
INFRASTRUCTURE TO A SPECIFIED LEVEL OF
SERVICEABILITY

When the Group has contractual obligations which it must fulfill
as a condition of its licence for operating concession, that is (a)
to maintain the infrastructure to a specified level of serviceability
and/or (b) to restore the infrastructure to a specified condition
before they are handed over to the grantor at the end of the
service concession arrangement, these contractual obligations
to maintain or restore the infrastructure are recognised and
measured in accordance with the policy set out for “Provisions”
below.
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather
than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management. Such overdrafts are presented as short-
term borrowings in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Bank balances for which use by the Group is subject to third
party contractual restrictions are included as part of cash unless
the restrictions result in a bank balance no longer meeting the
definition of cash. Contractual restrictions affecting use of bank
balances are disclosed in note 21.
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ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
cost necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the
sale include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale
and non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to make
the sale.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (‘HKFRS
15”). Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

3.3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Cont’d)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3.

3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Cont’d)

M

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Cont’d)

(i)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method, and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of these
debt instruments are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. Impairment allowances are recognised
in profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to other
comprehensive income without reducing the carrying
amounts of these debt instruments. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3.

3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, other receivables, receivables under service
concession arrangements, debt instruments at FVTOCI, other
financial assets at amortised cost, restricted bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents) which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect assessment changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

3.3

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

()  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3.

3.3

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

()  Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfill its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of “investment grade” as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3.

3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR

ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

(i)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

3.

3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or

loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL
on trade receivables using a provision matrix taking
into consideration historical credit loss experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

\)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont’d)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward-looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont’d)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception of
trade receivables, other receivables, receivables under
service concession arrangements and other financial
assets at amortised cost where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account. For investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve without reducing the
carrying amount of these debt instruments. Such amount
represents the changes in the investment revaluation

reserve in relation to accumulated loss allowance.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.3
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated
in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.
Specifically:

° For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other
income and net other gains and losses’ line item (note 7) as
part of the net foreign exchange gains;

° For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI that are not
part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences on the amortised cost of the debt instrument
are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other income and
net other gains and losses’ line item (note 7) as part of
the net foreign exchange gains. As the foreign currency
element recognised in profit or loss is the same as if it was
measured at amortised cost, the residual foreign currency
element based on the translation of the carrying amount (at
fair value) is recognised in other comprehensive income in
the investment revaluation reserve.
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3.

3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual cash
flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets (Cont’d)

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified,
the Group assesses whether the revised terms result in a
substantial modification from original terms taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative factors.
If qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the Group considers
the terms are substantially different if the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees
paid net of any fees received, and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the
discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the
original financial asset, after reducing gross carrying amount
that has been written off.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial assets will be calculated at the present value of the
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial
assets’ original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees
incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial assets and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial asset is
recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.
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3.

3.3

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CLASSIFICATION AS DEBT OR EQUITY

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

EQUITY INSTRUMENT

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instrument issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST
Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables and
accruals, amounts due to related parties, lease liabilities and

borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (Cont’d)
FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS AND LOSSES

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency
and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each
reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are
determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments.
These foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
‘Other income and net other gains and losses’ line item in profit
or loss (note 7) as part of net foreign exchange gains for financial
liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging relationship.
For those which are designated as a hedging instrument for
a hedge of foreign currency risk, foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in a separate component of equity.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated
at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial
liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange
component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is
recognised in profit or loss for financial liabilities that are not part
of a designated hedging relationship.
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ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PRIOR YEAR
ADJUSTMENT AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (Cont’d)
DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

DEPRECIATION OF LAND RIGHTS

The Group classified the land rights held by a subsidiary,
PT Rimba Palma Sejahtera Lestri (“RPSL”), in the Republic
of Indonesia (“Indonesia”) as right-of-use assets because
the management considered that substantially all risks and
rewards are transferred to RPSL, even if at the end of the lease
term, titles do not pass to RPSL. Indonesian land rights are
granted for a stated period of time, with an extension option
at an immaterial cost. Land rights are also renewable after
the extended period term expires. Given the fact that land
rights can be extended at RPSL’s option, the management
considered that the term of land rights is sufficiently long to
indicate the transfer of risks and rewards from the government
to RPSL and the government’s interest in the residual value
of the underlying land is considered as insignificant. Also, the
management considered that RPSL has the ability and intent
to renew the land leases in perpetuity, the useful life of the land
rights is in perpetuity and hence are not depreciated.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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4.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT RELATED TO BUSINESS OPERATION IN
INDONESIA

Determining whether property, plant and equipment is impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGU
to which the property, plant and equipment has been allocated,
which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less costs
of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which results
in downward revision of future cash flows, further impairment
loss may arise. During the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022, no impairment loss was recognised after assessing the
recoverable amount of CGU which is principally engaged in the
sales of biofuel business in Indonesia.

The management’s assessment of property, plant and
equipment impairment is highly judgemental and is dependent
on certain key assumptions including the discount rate, growth
rates and budgeted sales, and gross margin, which are affected
by expected future market or economic conditions, particularly
those in Indonesia. An independent qualified valuer is engaged
to assess the recoverable amount of the CGU.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Group entered into the build-operate-transfer (the “BOT”)
arrangements in wastewater treatment and biomass power
facilities. The Group concluded that the BOT arrangements
are service concession arrangements under HK(IFRIC)-Int
12 Service Concession Arrangements, because the local
government controls and regulates the services that the Group
must provide with the infrastructure at a pre-determined service
charge. In addition, upon expiry of concession right agreement,
the infrastructure has to be transferred to the local government
at nil consideration.

Revenue from the construction of biomass power facilities
under the terms of a BOT contract is estimated on a cost-
plus basis in which the construction margin is determined with
reference to a prevailing market rate of gross margins of market
comparable at the time of construction, and is recognised using
the percentage-of-completion method, measured by reference
to the proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated
total cost of the relevant contract. During the year ended
31 December 2023, the Group recognised the revenue of
approximately HK$41,943,000 (2022: HK$114,389,000) from
the construction of biomass power facilities.

Imputed interest income is recognised from time to time on
receivables under service concession arrangements on an
accrual basis using the effective interest method by discounting
the estimated future cash receipts over the service concession
period at the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition.

The relevant effective interest rate is determined with reference
to the yield of corporate bonds of comparable infrastructure
companies in the PRC and Indonesia.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS OF WASTEWATER
TREATMENT FACILITIES TO A SPECIFIED LEVEL OF
SERVICEABILITY

The Group has contractual obligations (a) to maintain the
wastewater treatment facilities it operates to a specified level
of serviceability and (b) to restore the facilities to a specified
condition before they are handed over to the grantor at the
end of the service concession arrangement. These contractual
obligations to maintain or restore infrastructure, except for any
upgrade element, are recognised and measured in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets (‘HKAS 377), i.e., at the best estimate of the expenditure
that would be required to settle the present obligation at the
end of each reporting period. The estimation of the expenditure
requires the Group to estimate the expected future cash outlays
on major overhauls of the wastewater treatment facilities
over the service concession periods and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The amount of the provision for major
overhauls carried as a liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023 was approximately
HK$15,088,000 (2022: HK$13,352,000). Further details of the
provision for major overhauls are set out in note 28.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

PROVISION OF ECL AND IMPAIRMENT OF RECEIVABLES
UNDER SERVICES CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Group individually calculates ECL for the receivables under
services concession arrangements. Such assessments are
based on internal credit rating, customers’ ageing and historical
default rates and are adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available with undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the internal credit rating and historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. The provision of ECL is sensitive to
changes in estimates. The information about the ECL is set out
in note 33.

CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, the PRC
and Indonesia. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications
of its transactions in accordance with prevailing tax regulations
and makes tax provision accordingly. However, a judgement
is required in determining the Group’s provision for income
taxes as there are many transactions and calculations of
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, the differences will impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provision in the periods in which the determination
is made. Details of the deferred tax liabilities are set out in note
27.

4.

PR & FIER R (45t ARARAE R
HERRIF(HF)

At BB E R EERIE(F)

AMEEERRERRBSTEZHT
HY FE SR IR R B

RSB AR P R T B T YRR
BRIt EFREEEEE - ARSI
NEMEER AR - BRI MBEENX
REE - WHLEFR N H B EHRA
L HENAIS R VAT M ERHE L T -
REERE RS - EFFEAEERT
RPBEBRNEBNE - WD EEATHE
HERNEE - BRHEEBENEES
REFTOEHTE - FHEEEBENE
FLEUPEESS

BN EAB 18 AR SE R TR

REBREE - HELEEAHNG
B o REBBEFGRTHIGROIEE
R 5 BB 0 8 I AR e b o HR AR TR
o AR - REEAKEMEHERS
RZRIEL FIE - SRR BB X RET
REEEREEE R BHMRTHIAN R Z M
AEEEES - ERMEENSKRNGE
ERBEVIBARBIE - AIZEREEY
LT HRAHE AP ST ROE T AR
B o B IR B ERFFISHNHE27 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5.

(i)

e KRR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF
REVENUE 5. BEEKA
DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS () REEFSHHEREKASEE
WITH CUSTOMERS
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Types of goods and services B REER
Wastewater treatment facilities V57K R PR 5% e 5 AR 7S
operation services 36,165 52,126
Biomass power construction Y BB R ER R
services 41,943 114,389
Sales of biofuel THE EYRE 14,190 18,886
Information technology services BB RS 3,688 —
Revenue from contracts with REBEPAHMEZEIA
customers 95,986 185,401
Imputed interest income on BRI FFETRE L HE T A FE UG IR
receivables under service HEFBWA
concession arrangements 17,293 18,258
113,279 203,659
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Timing of revenue recognition WA TR B,
A point in time RE R 2, 50,355 71,012
Over time & B[] 45,631 114,389
Revenue from goods and services SIS e ON 95,986 185,401

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(i)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

REVENUE (Cont’d)

DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS (Cont’d)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts
with customers with the amounts disclosed in the segment
information.

5. ERWBAH)
() REEFRSVHERBASEHE)

UM REEEPEKMEREARD B
BRTRE SRR -

2023
—E-=F
PRC Indonesia Total
A e et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET FET
Wastewater treatment facilities  J57K B2 IR 35 1h 2 18
operation 36,165 — 36,165
Biomass power construction A% 35 B HE R RS
services — 41,943 41,943
Sales of biofuel SHE VIR - 14,190 14,190
Information technology services & &R+ fR 7% - 3,688 3,688
Revenue from contracts with KBRS LIL A
customers 36,165 59,821 95,986
Imputed interest income on RRISFFETRE L HE T /Y
receivables under service FEGRIEHEE R B UL A
concession arrangements 7,925 9,368 17,293
Total revenue EEWABTE 44,090 69,189 113,279

BERREREBRLE ZBI=ZFFRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

5.

(i)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

REVENUE (Cont’d)

DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS

WITH CUSTOMERS (Cont’d)

EREA ()

() REEFRSVHERBASEHE)

2022
—E-F
PRC Indonesia Total
H e wEt
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
TFHT T FHT
Wastewater treatment V5K R IR RS b
facilities operation 52,126 - 52,126
Biomass power construction A #)E 3 ERE R RS
services — 114,389 114,389
Sales of biofuel SHE EWIRE — 18,886 18,886
Revenue from contracts with K EE P AL E WA
customers 52,126 133,275 185,401
Imputed interest income on RIS FFETRE L HE T /Y
receivables under service FEMGRIBHEE FI S U
concession arrangements 13,721 4,537 18,258
Total revenue EELONES 65,847 137,812 203,659
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(ii)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

REVENUE (Cont’d)

PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS AND REVENUE RECOGNITION
POLICIES

BIOMASS POWER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

Revenue from provision of construction services of biomass
power plant facilities are derived from long-term contracts with
customers. Such contracts are entered into before the services
begin. Under the term of contracts, the Group is contractually
required to perform the services at the customers’ specified
sites that the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the
total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depicts the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITIES OPERATION
SERVICES

Revenue from operating income from wastewater treatment
facilities under service concession arrangements is recognised
at a point in time when the wastewater treatment service is
rendered.

SALES OF BIOFUEL

The Group sells biofuel to the wholesale market. Revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has been transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the wholesaler’s
specific location. Transportation and handling activities that
occur before customers obtain control are considered as
fulfilment activities. Following the delivery, the wholesaler has full
discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell the
goods, has the primary responsibility when on selling the goods
and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the
goods.

5.

(ii)

EREA ()

EFRSHVHNBHRERERBKA
TR R

EYEREBRERRSB

R|EEVEEEHRIEERMENEE
WAKRBEBEPIIMNEIEL - ZF
BHNRGFREATRI L - RIEA KK
K AEBARAHNEPIEEERE
HRTS - MASBENEOEEL MER
—IHEE - EDNRBRAETE - AR
BASESETRAEEMTHERA
(HEERFERERITARBEOEENR
RAERWA - A RERRASE
ERERE M RISE IR B R
I o

TFKERIERR S B AR

KB RRF R L PR N5/KREE R
REWA R & E W ARRFS K IE AR
B R — SRR -

REE AR BT GHE LR - 22X
WARE iz HlEEBE (g mEX
SR EH AR )R - REP
JEISTRGIRE AT 3 A B0 B B S KA B
BREXER - P& - fHEFHT2
REEmMANDHT A LHEER - ©
HEEMRAETESE  WAHAEERS
an B B RBRE AR KM AR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

5.

(ii)

(iii)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

REVENUE (Cont’d)

PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS AND REVENUE RECOGNITION
POLICIES (Cont’d)

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES

The Group provides computer system analysis and technical
support services to customers. Such services are recognised
as a performance obligation satisfied over time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as the Group performs.

TRANSACTION PRICE ALLOCATED TO THE
REMAINING PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION FOR
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group has elected to apply the practical expedient under
HKFRS 15 for not to disclose the information of remaining
performance obligations which are part of a contract that
has an original expected duration of one year or less; or
from satisfaction of which the Group recognises revenue in
the amount, which the Group has the right to invoice, that
corresponds directly with the value to the customers of the
Group’s performance completed to date.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in the construction and operation of
wastewater treatment facilities, construction of biomass power
plants, sales of biofuel business and provision of information
technology services. Information reported to the executive
directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM?") for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on geographical
locations of its manpower and customers, including Hong
Kong, the PRC and Indonesia. No operating segments have
been aggregated in arriving at the reporting segments of the
Group.

2023 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRME
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. DWHEEGE)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS DEBEARES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results REEAEHRMLES D AW AR ELE
by reportable and operating segments: DN :
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-E-=€+-BA=+—HILEE
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
B8 B e @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FERT FET FET
Segment revenue— DEA —INEBIHE
external sales - 44,090 69,189 113,279
Segment profit/(loss) DERE A, (EE) (19,830) 20,295 235 700
Unallocated expenses RAOERAX -
Profit before tax BRI AT 2 A 700
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-—B-—H+-A=+—HiItEE
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
B H EIFE 1
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
(restated) (restated)
(&eES) (5ES)
Segment revenue — D EA —
external sales SNEREHE — 65,847 137,812 203,659
Segment profit/(Ioss) DEpE A (&) (35,865) 28,165 7,863 163
Unallocated expenses ROBEMEAX -
Profit before tax RT3 AT A 163

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit earned by/loss from
each segment. This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.

LD ERH E FT BUOR S MY FES Pl Y AR
EWMEFBEER - DEEN,(BE)

& BRATIRELZ A /FEZEE’ETE °
W E RSB M RRF TR EE
RBANER 2 SHEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. DEEEHE)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SHEERAR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities REERAIZHREBEDHEI D 2 BE
by reportable and operating segments: LEEAITOT :
As at 31 December 2023 R-E-_=F+=HA=+-—H
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
BE H Z1)=1 #st

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000  HK$’000
FET FET FET FET

Assets ﬁE
Segment and total DEEEEEM
consolidated assets \f:x\ BEMAE 26,798 219,276 280,027 526,101
Liabilities aE
Segment and total 5 Ep4 */\%ﬁ
consolidated liabilities SfaEHE 188,743 34,926 23,532 247,201
As at 31 December 2022 R=-ZB-ZZF+=ZRA=+—H
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
BA s ENfe HeEt
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAT FHAT FAT FAT
(restated) (restated)
(g&E5) (geE5)
Assets EE
Segment and total DEEZEBER
consolidated assets IR BEME 68,246 209,834 239,093 517,173
Liabilities afE
Segment and total DEfIRE BB R
consolidated liabilities e aEeE 175,579 35,487 16,185 227,251
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and BERSHARBARRDBzEDEE
allocating resources between segments: R
e all assets are allocated to operating segments; and e FIABEHIREELENE &
e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments. o FEABHARERLHIL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRME
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. DWHEEGE)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION Hfth 8B E
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or SADENR RS BRSO HBEEZ S
segment assets: #
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_E-_=F+-A=t+—HLEE
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
B8 B e @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FERT FET FET
Additions to non-current assets A& IERENE &=
(note) (F5E) - 14 6,121 6,135
Depreciation of property, plant  #1% « /5 & 54
and equipment e 343 245 5,224 5,812
Impairment losses under FEEEEEBEEXT
expected credit loss model HYR (B R 997 26 - 1,023
Impairment losses on AR RIEREEE
prepayments - 420 - 420
(Gain)/loss on disposal of HEME - BER
property, plant and =EE (s ) BB
equipment - 21 (44) (23)
Write-down of inventories FERHUE - - 812 812
Interest income from m—R%=H{EH
advance to a third party AR T 2 A - 139 - 139
Bank interest income ERITH B ULA 131 325 204 660
Finance costs & Bk A 11,914 789 7 12,710
Income tax expense FriSfiF S 291 5,410 3,117 8,818

BERREREBRLE ZBI=ZFFRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. SEEHEE)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) Htt 38R E(F)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE—_E-_—_+-_A=+—HLtEE
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
EB ey ENfe &5

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TATT TATT TETT TETT

Additions to non-current assets JREIERBIEE

(note) (BfF3E) 1,029 308 3,838 5175
Depreciation of property, plant  ¥1% - = & 54

and equipment e 443 508 5,017 5,968
Impairment losses under FEHEEEEEXT

expected credit loss model EopEREY 53! 2,381 374 17 2,772
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  KE &

plant and equipment B EE - 14 — 14
Reversal of write-down of FEE O

inventories - - 897 897
Interest income from m—R%E=H{EH

advance to a third party BHREFEWA — 600 — 600
Bank interest income H|ITHEHA 4 492 197 693
Finance costs BERA 8,211 1,087 — 9,298
Income tax expense FT8HiR Y 4,895 6,480 3,960 15,335
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical locations of
the assets are detailed below:

6.

SWBEE ()
1 3 55 ¥

AEEREEZRED ZIERDEE
ES IV

2023 2022

—EC=E —E-_F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET AT

Hong Kong BB 514 857
PRC Fh 394 662
Indonesia ENfE 64,296 62,610
65,204 64,129

Note: Non-current assets excluded receivables under service concession
arrangements, debt instrument at FVTOCI, other financial assets at
amortised cost and prepayments and other receivables.

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years

et IERBVEE T BIERB R T
JEYFOR - FEBE M EERRR DA E
FENEBTA  REHERAENE
1t 2 % LA B TR R B L A YR
b=

FHREEEFHEH

MREFEHARE L RWAEFEI0%IA

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as EORPEZEWRALT
follows:
2023 2022
—EC=HE —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Customer A from the Indonesia e S = FA N/A*
segment 12,579 RiE B
Customer B from the PRC segment  EH Z% FB 44,090 46,201
Customer C from the Indonesia ENfen & FC
segment 51,311 118,926

*

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group.

* HEEXRAEREE S ERALEDT
HiB10% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

7.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

OTHER INCOME AND NET OTHER GAINS AND 7.

2-F =

Ft_A=1—HIFFE

H e A LLR B il &3 B G5 4R 79

LOSSES &
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&TT
(restated)
($E5)
Bank interest income HRITHEHA 660 693
Interest income from advance to M—HRE=FIELBZRE
a third party FLEHA 139 600
Interest income from debt instrument  FiBHM 2 EEIZ AL EAED
at FVTOCI B TAEMFIEWA - 190
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain HNE (B518) Wt g5 (1,352) 1,945
Government grants (note) BRAT 5 B (BT ) 23 97
Refund of value-added tax BEFRT - 1,046
Impairment losses on prepayments  TE{ 3R IE A E R (420) -
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWE - BEKEENRE
plant and equipment (E8) 23 (14)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary 3T #5H1 8 A T & YEs 347 —
Gain on lease modification HEERm - 10
Others HAb 814 205
234 4,772

Note: Government grants represented immediate financial support granted

B EE

by the local governments. There were no specific conditions attached
to the grants and the amounts were recognised in profit or loss upon

the receipt of relevant grants.

2023 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

FINANCE COSTS 8. MBERE
2023 2022
—E-=5F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Interest on borrowings B RF S 4,244 2,518
Interest on loans from related parties % B @@FE T BB F B 7,655 5,676
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 26 22
Increase in discounted amounts of FR A B R 87 T /2 AR Y EE K AR
provision for major overhauls arising &84 IR £ 28I AN (F5128)
from the passage of time (note 28) 785 1,082
12,710 9,298
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED 9. FARIEHEBREXTHRKESR
CREDIT LOSS MODEL
2023 2022
—=E_= —E- 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Impairment losses recognised on:
— Other receivables
— Other financial assets

TS IEERRREEE
— H eI ERIE 26 374
— B HEN AT ENENeREE

at amortised cost - 17

— Debt instrument at FVTOCI —FREMEEBERR AR ENTEN
BEF TR 997 2,381
1,023 2,772

BERREREBRLE ZBI=ZFFRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # = —ZF — =

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Ft_A=1—HIFFE

10. BRIRATEF

BBADENE %R, GEA) |

2023 2022
—EC-=H —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Staff costs (including directors’ BTIXA(BRESHE) :
remuneration):
Salaries, allowances and benefits e 2R REYREF
in kind 14,060 14,298
Discretionary bonus BYIBTEAT 471 800
Defined contributions retirement FAEHFCRIRGT 8
plan (note (a)) (M43 (@) 1,278 1,819
Less: Amount capitalised B RFEENMER IR
in inventories (277) (39)
15,5632 16,878
Depreciation of property, plant Y - R NMGRIEITE
and equipment 5,812 5,968
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories J, : ATF & &AL #IFIE (241) (28)
5,571 5,940
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S 37 B
— Audit services ZEIRTS 1,060 1,060
— Non-audit services — BT 160 540
1,220 1,600
Cost of construction services FERR BRTG A AN 37,034 100,910
Cost of wastewater treatment facilities 24t 57K B IR 25 5 2 & AR TS H A A
operation services rendered 16,571 32,229
Cost of biofuel operation (including HEYDIREL TS S B R A
write-down of inventories of (BIEFEMIES12,000/8 T
HK$812,000 (2022: reversal of (ZE=—=F : FEELEM
write-down of inventories of 897,000 7)) (Bd5E(b))
HK$897,000)) (note (b)) 15,772 18,460
Cost of information technology services & £ RHE AR 7S K 2~ 3,232 —
Provision for major overhauls BARIEEE 1,325 1,868
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont’d)

11.

Notes:

(@)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to reduce its contributions to the retirement benefits scheme
in future years (2022: Nil).

Reversal of write-down of inventories of HK$897,000 has been
recognised and included in cost of sales during the year ended 31
December 2022 due to an increase in the estimated net realisable

10. FRIRAUAFI(4F)
BisE -

@ RIZF-=Ft+-A=t—H T&H
RO WA R AT D AR 2R A AR AR
BAFTEIZHR(ZTZZF : ) -

b)) BEZTE-_—_F+-A=+—HLHF
€ ARG EIRREE N - DR
175 % @ #UR 897,000/ T At A Sl &

value.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS

11.

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

PRAH o
EFRRSITHRARTH
RIFEA LHRAREEAF GO B

B2FANEERE{THA S ZFB
N

Salaries, Defined
allowances contributions
and benefits Discretionary retirement
Fees in kind bonus plan Total
e EZHR RN
Be ENER B RRHE wam
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TAR TET TEx TART TEx
Year ended 31 December 2023 HZ—Z_=F+_-§
=+-ALEE
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen BAZERLE 120 840 - - 960
Mr. Chan Kwan (Chief Executive) ~ FREE 454 (1TH8H) 100 460 18 12 590
Mr. Radius Suhendra BEALE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny ABALE 100 - - - 100
420 1,300 18 12 1,750
Non-executive director FHITES
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian BEmEE 100 311 26 23 460
Independent non-executive BV FHTES
directors
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda BBt 120 - - - 120
Mr. Ng Man Kung RHEA 120 - - - 120
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy 2EELL 100 - - - 100
340 - - - 340
860 1,611 44 35 2,550
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. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

1. EERBRETHRARTH )

EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)
Salaries,
allowances Defined
and benefits ~ Discretionary  contributions
Fees in kind bonus  retirement plan Total
e 2ER TR
ik BN FETEAL RIETE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TEL TEL TEL TEL
Year ended 31 December 2022 HZ—-F—-—&+—FH
=t-HLFE
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen BRERLE 120 907 - - 1,027
Mr. Chan Kwan (Chief Executive) BB 24 (1725, 100 471 19 10 600
Mr. Radius Suhendra HEALE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny BARALE 100 - - - 100
420 1,378 19 10 1,827
Non-executive director FHITES
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian BREmEE 100 410 26 - 536
Independent non-executive ~ BIUFHTEE
directors
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda hiEB Rt 120 - - - 120
Mr. Ng Man Kung RHE A 120 - - - 120
Ms. Leung Bo Yes Nancy 2EELL 100 - - - 100
340 - - - 340
860 1,768 45 10 2,703
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive director’s emolument shown above was for
his service as director of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emolument shown
above were for their service as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included three (2022: three) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2022: two)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

11.

12.

EEREETHRARTMAE)

BiHiTEEME R SR EE IR
RRBRAEBEBEE 2 RIE 2 F
B -

L IERITE RIS IR ERA DT
S E B AR 2 BRI RS < Fr
A -

BB IFRTEEME IR BEER
AR EEPTIR MRS < FrE -

FALBEEEHREHTHABRENLF
BIREE MMz 28 -

LEmEHMESR

FRAEEREZRRTHNEERE=S
(ZE-—F  ZR)BF HFMzF
BN L X1 - FRBRTHAZ
(ZE2ZZF : MABIBIERRFEST
FREITRAB ZREHMNEES 2 FHM
HEHEIIT

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Salaries, allowances and e R NEWMER
benefits in kind 1,371 1,809
Discretionary bonus BB TEAL 67 169
Defined contribution retirement plan  F 2B FGE K2 74 57
1,512 2,035

BRIRRIERERAT ZEBEI=FFR
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eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF
12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Cont’d)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

12.

hEmEHMER (&)

HHBN L THEFALAEENSS
R R MBE T -

Number of employees

EEEE
2023 2022
—EC-=H —E-—4F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7C £ 1,500,000 7T - 1
2 2

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as a compensation for loss of office.

REE-ZE-_=—FRk=_FT-_F+=A4
=+—HIEFE  AEESERERE
EX AR =T ME B S E A BE
BIEFEEMARE B/ BB BB

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FAifSRFAX
2023 2022
—=E_= —E- 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET AT
(restated)
(re&:75)
Current tax: BNERTLIE -
Hong Kong B 5 5
PRC Enterprise Income tax RS 6,303 12,169
6,308 12,174
(Over)/under provision in prior years:  B{EEE (GRREREME),BETR :
Hong Kong B (6) (51)
PRC Enterprise Income tax RS (36) 196
(42) 145
Deferred tax (note 27) EERIA (MisE27) 2,552 3,016
8,818 15,335

232 ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2023 Annual Report



13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z — & — =

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The withholding tax on distributable profits is calculated at the
rate of 5% (2022: 5%) on total dividend distributed from the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the withholding tax on
disposal of the Group’s subsidiary is calculated at the rate of
10% on consideration receivable less investment cost.

No provision for Indonesian income tax had been made as
the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in
Indonesia during the year (2022: Nil).

13.

e T RRME

=F A= —AIEE
FRiGIRBASZ (#F)

REFSHEMEBREZEHS(KBE
ZEB DRAKER - NEEBERH
EREREBREZEEHMEMAME
B o

EEFE m&ﬁm¢r2@#7&mm
FE16.5%( ZFE==F 116.5%)5THE

BEFBRCEMGSHRA(LEMER
ED R EMSBAEIEIEG - RN
BRARMHERMEFEY E25% °

Ao B M TR0 AR 2N 55 [ B /B
NAD IR EEFERS%( T —F :
5%>Z%E%n+§ °

HE-_Z-_—_#F#+-_A=+—HILF
E - HEREBWEQRNFBINFILE
R AB R =R E K AR 10% 2 T R &5t
= o

AR AR BN F AL BN EEE S EM

AIRFREN( ZFZZF - &) - R
sHRENEAT{S i ki o
BWEBRERARAT —B-=FFH
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eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d) 13. FRSMBAX(##)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the FERTER R EBGA B RABRTRT

profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss AR ¢
as follows:
2023 2022
—EC-=4F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET AT
(restated)
(FEE5)
Profit before tax fx B A Vas A 700 163
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 1% B NS5 E25% (T — —4F :
25% (2022: 25%) (Note) 25%)FT E KB IE (PisE) 175 41
Tax effect of expenses not deductible NA[FNFHF % 7 TR £
for tax purpose 5,421 7,040
Tax effect of income not taxable for ~ HERHWA Z TR G E
tax purpose (637) (4,961)
(Over)/under provision in respect of B 5 GHREEEUE ) BHET 2
prior years (42) 145
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERFHIEEIE 2 i THT £ 3,798 9,955
Utilisation of tax losses previously BB LRI AR IER T IAE R
not recognised (15) (24)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RIERAHIR R =kE v &
difference not recognised (212) (690)
Tax concession HIEER - (568)
Effect of different tax rates of REAMREREREE 2B AF
subsidiaries operating in other MEAR &
jurisdictions (427) (543)
Effect of withholding tax on the TE 075 6 2 5 B R B S A )
dividend distributed from the BB 8
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC 554 582
Effect of withholding tax on the MR AR EEPEME AT
undistributed profits of the Group’s AOBaA 7 2
subsidiaries in the PRC 203 (232)
Effect of withholding tax on the disposal FEF0%: % H & 7 £ & i 5 i & A &)
of the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC VR 2 - 4,590
Income tax expense for the year REFEFTESFH X 8,818 15,335

Note: The domestic tax rate (which is PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate)
in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group is substantially
based is used.

Mt - RAAEEEEL EMAEREERNE
AR (BIRBEREMAEREE) -
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14. DIVIDENDS

15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

14.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholder of
the Company during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022, nor has any dividend been proposed since 31 December

20283.

LOSS PER SHARE

15.

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

B2

MEpEsE ST _=—Ex T

T A=+ —BHUIFERAQGEEBR
BRENSERRGRE B2 ==
F+ - A=+ —BRIPEEZZRMNIM

BB °
BREBR

RATHEAANEIEERERERNAE
ERN 58 -

LLoss for the purposes of
basic loss per share

REREAERNS 2ER

Number of shares

R BE

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose of
basic loss per share

MEREREIEN S Z
BB S8

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FET
(restated)

(&=5)

(8,265) (16,261)
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
’000 000

T T
1,107,300 1,107,300

The diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss per
share for both years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 as
there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for both years.

HREBEE ST _—FK_ZFT_-—
+oA=t+—HIMEFEHRED R
TEELTAR  WZMETESRE
SEEEREGRENEEER -

BERREREBRLE ZBI=ZFFRK
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 1% - REREH
Equipment
Construction Leased  Landand and Office Motor
inprogress  Landrights  properties  buildings ~ machines  equipment vehicles Total

kIR R ERNX  IHRET  REREE  BOERE nE 3t
HK§ 000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK§ 000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK§ 000
T TEL TET TRL TR TAT TETL TEL

COST A
At1 January 2022 R-E-—F-F-H 5,622 5,48 1,629 11,332 158,374 1,941 114 185,497
Exchange adustments EfEE (377 {4 - 094 (18.777) (184) (99 (15.908)
Adaltions AE 2,136 - 1,029 5 42 0 217 5,175
Disposals ik - - (1629 - - (136) - (1,765)
Disposalof a subsicary (note 36] it EMBA I (H13£36) - - - - (304 (1,369) 472 (2,144)
Transfer : (4892) - - 102 4790 - - -
At 31 December 2022 and N-E-ZFtCR
1 January 2023 ZT-BRCE=
E-A-H 3,089 5,008 1,029 1049 149,508 963 760 170,855
Exchange adjustments ERdE 19 64 - 127 1,770 i) @ 1977
Addltions E 1438 - - 514 3,569 332 282 6,13
Disposals ik - - - - 97) (40) - (097)
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=£+2R
=t-f 4,546 5,072 1,029 11,139 153,890 1,254 1,040 177,970
DEPRECIATION AND FRRRE
IMPAIRMENT
At1 January 2022 R-5--F-A-H 5,622 2,924 1,178 5138 96,313 1,344 888 114,007
Exchange adisiments 352 034 0% - (489 88%) (11 Mo 100
Provided forthe year ENEE - - 3 59 4621 250 125 59668
Eliminated on dlsposals HERHE - - (1,448) - - (122) - (1,570)
Eliminated on disposal of HERBARENR
asubsidiary (note 36) (H3x36) - - - - (74 (03) (£29) (1,637)
Transfer s (4,89) - - 102 4790 - - -
At 31 December 2022 and R-B-ZFtCR
1 January 2023 “T-RRZEC=Z
E-A-H 49 2,628 173 5,880 96,617 42 507 106,726
Exchange adjustments ERaE 6 40 - 62 1,100 ) 2 1204
Provided for the year FnkE - - 343 523 4591 184 171 5812
Eliminated on dlsposals HERHE - - - - (939) (39) - (976)
At 31 December 2023 RIEZZE+ZR
=t+-f 502 2,668 516 6,465 101,370 565 680 112,766
CARRYING VALUES HEE
At 31 December 2023 RIEZZE+ZA
=t-f 4,044 2,404 513 4,674 52,520 689 360 65,204
At 31 December 2022 Sl S
=1-A 2,593 2,380 856 4618 52,891 538 263 64,129
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, after taking into account the residual
values, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum:

Land rights 0%
Leased properties Over the term of lease
Land and buildings 5%-10%
Equipment and machines 6%—25%

12.5%-25%
Qver the shorter of the term of
the lease, or 12.5%-20%

Office equipment
Motor vehicles

THE GROUP AS LESSEE

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and

16.

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

]% - BB Rk (#F)

REBRHREER  LAWE - BE
RiBER (EEIRERINRTIIF

RUNBREFHRITE -

Tt 0%
HEw L ERE
T RIEF 5%-10%
A RS 6%—25%
WRERME 12.5%-25%
B VAFR & HAZE12.5%-20%

(A RE)FE

FREEDZREA

EREEE(SHADE  BENMR

equipment) 1#)
Land Leased Motor
rights properties vehicles Total
+ iR HEWME AE HEt
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=%+=A
=+—H
Carrying amount AREE 2,404 513 294 3,211
As at 31 December 2022 R-_B-_—F+=A4
=t+—AH
Carrying amount REE 2,380 856 131 3,367
For the year ended BEz-_E-_=F+=
31 December 2023 B=+—BLEE
Depreciation charge MEEMA - 343 113 456
For the year ended BE-_E-_—F+=
31 December 2022 B=+—HLFE
Depreciation charge WEER - 443 68 511
BERRERBRAT ZE=FFH
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eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

16. WK - BB Bkl ()

THE GROUP AS LESSEE (Cont’d) TREEREEA(E)
2023 2022
—E-=E —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHT
Expense relating to short-term leases BREAGEATRE 2 X 363 397
Total cash outflow for leases HERS TR 864 932
Additions to right-of-use assets NEFRAEEE 282 1,232

For both years, the Group leases various offices and vehicles for
its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of
1 to 3 years (2022: 1 to 3 years). Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for various
offices. At at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases
to which the short-term lease expense disclosed above.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

17. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION

ARRANGEMENTS

The Group through its subsidiaries engaged in the businesses
of wastewater treatment and biomass power in the PRC and
Indonesia and has entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with certain governmental authorities in the PRC
and government-owned corporation in Indonesia, respectively,
on a BOT basis in respect of its business. These service
concession arrangements generally involve the Group as an
operator to (i) design and construct wastewater treatment facility
and biomass power plant (the “Facilities”); and (i) operate and
maintain the Facilities at a specified level of serviceability on
behalf of the grantors for periods ranging from 20 to 25 years
(2022: 20 to 25 years) (the “Service Concession Periods”),
and the Group has been guaranteed to receive minimum annual
payments in connection with the arrangements. The Facilities
will be transferred to the respective grantors at the end of the
Service Concession Periods for BOT.

The Group is generally entitled to use all the property, plant and
equipment of the Facilities, however, the relevant governmental
authorities or government-owned corporation will control and
regulate the scope of services that the Group provides to the
Facilities and retain the beneficial entitlement to any residual
interest in the Facilities at the end of the terms of the Services
Concession Periods. Each of these service concession
arrangements is governed by a contract and, where applicable,
supplementary agreements entered into between the Group
and the relevant governmental authorities or government-owned
corporation that set out, inter alia, performance standards,
mechanisms for adjusting prices for the service rendered by the
Group, specific obligations levied on the Group to restore the
Facilities to a specified level of serviceability at the end of the
Service Concession Periods, and arrangements for arbitrating
disputes. The service concession arrangements do not
contain renewal options or any termination rights to any of the
contracting parties.

As at 31 December 2023, the biomass power plant is under
construction. In the opinion of directors, it is expected to be
completed in the second quarter of 2024.

17. BREISFFFIERIETRIERIR

AEBFEBHBAREFPRRINEHE
FEKERERAEYEREER  WEH T
HE TR BB #E M ERE A RIF
B 5 BOTREAER] . Z I8 ARG IS AT
ZHE o ZERBIFTELHE—P R
SEEREER()RFT MER5KERE
Rk EMERER([ZERE])
R 205254 (=B = =4 : 20525
FIMHBA(RBESTFHDRERT
ANATETE R A BRFG K- 38 | M e ik
B MAEEEERESREBLHE
AR FE R o ZERMEIFEBOT
RIS SRR EELSENE T
/\ °

AEEBEARERZSFRIENAED
% BB MR AR BAREBTHKE
K EIA QR RHEH R EE RS EE - A
SERREFFFHERBREHRZER
i WARE EN 5% F ik 2 (IR
mZ BN - ZFRIGFAELHZ
AEE A AR HEREE AR ZHE
sh (LR B E USRS « AEEFTRH
PR ERRABEEBIMI L2 A8 R
(i8R ) T R P AR IR - AR BAKE
RS 45F S B A SR B 1S % B AR B IR TE 2 AR
TERISARFMAEZ FEEE - UEH
AAETTIRE 2 Z2BE » IRFS TR HE
TEEEHERES AR 2 ERA
AR IEHE

MR-ZE-_=F+-A=+—H 494"

BERINEEEFR - EFRE BB
RN B FE_FERT o

BERRERERDF ZZZ=FFRH
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eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

17. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 17. BREBFFERBETREIRIE

ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) (#8)
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 3 (2022: 3) service R-EBE-_=F+-A=+—H8 K&EH
concession arrangements and a summary of major terms of BIW(ZE-—%F : 318 RIS FIRE
these arrangements is as follows: ZHE ZELHNEEZBRTHMENT
Designed
Name of company Type of service processing Service concession
as operator Name of facility Location Name of grantor concession equipment capacity period
EREEBNLAAR R AR fig RTAEH BRGTERGEY  RHREED fitech
Rugao Hengfa Water Rugao Hengfa Municipal Rugao Country, ~ Rugao Economic BOT onwastewater 20,000 tonnes 25 years
Treatment Company Limited ~ and Industrial Nantong City, and Technological treatment from 2007 to 2032
(‘Rugao Hengfa’)* Wastewater Treatment  the PRC Development Zone and extended to
Facllity (Phase | Administrative 2035in 2009
Commitiee
MREYTKREARAR  MRBEETHRIZVK PERRTNRE MREERORER  BRIKEEOBOT 2000040 5 L ERLERTE
([meER) AR —5) BZe ZRECERIRCE
ENERRE-ECRE
Rugao Hengfa Rugao Hengfa Municipal Rugao Country,  Rugao Economic BOT onwastewater 20,000 tonnes 20 years
and Industrial Nantong City, and Technological freatment from 2015 o 2035
Wastewater Treatment ~ the PRC Development Zone
Facilty (Phase Il Administrative
Committee
mRE% PREETRRIZTK PERATNRE MREERARER  AEUKERMBOT 200004 05 f-F-RERHE
AR —H) £28 “EoRELE
PT Sentosa Jaya Pumama Sadai 10MW Biomass ~ Bangka, Indonesia  PT PLN (Persero) BOT on biomass 125Megawatls 25 years
('SJP") Power power plant from 2024 to 2049
PT Sentosa JayaPumama ~ PRAMWVENERER HDEHNS DRERENDE  BEENEEEEMBOT 12548 BF f-E-MERHE
([SJP]) ZEMNELE
* The official name of the operator is in Chinese. The English translation - EEENEHARAT AN - BXAH
is for identification purposes only. THEEEHE2E -
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e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

17. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION

ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the service concession agreements, the Group is
granted the rights to use the property, plant and equipment
of the Facilities and certain related land during the Service
Concession Periods. The Group is required to surrender these
assets to the grantors at a specified level of serviceability
at the end of the respective service concession periods. As
at 31 December 2023 and 2022, while some of the related
land has been registered under the names of the relevant
group companies, the title certificates with respect to certain
land use rights of the Facilities to which the Group’s service
concession arrangements relate have not been registered under
the names of the relevant group companies. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the Group is entitled to
the lawful and valid occupation or use of these buildings and
land to which the above-mentioned land use rights during the
respective concession periods for nil consideration for providing
wastewater treatment and biomass power services under the
relevant BOT agreements.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised
interest income of HK$17,293,000 (2022: HK$18,258,000),
waste water treatment facilities operation service revenue
of HK$36,165,000 (2022: HK$52,126,000) and biomass
power construction service revenue of HK$41,943,000 (2022:
HK$114,389,000).

17. BRIFFIFFIERIETRIRIRIR

(#%)

REBERG RS AREEEER
IRISAFFF AR MR EREDE - M
R EEANETHE L - AKEA
A% ARG T A A SR 1 — T AT HR AR
BRFRZEEEBRIETA - RZF
T=FERTECCF+-A=1+—H"
BRAAKERGH L HNZERIE
ME T L MM EREFEEALRET
RIEEEERRINA T - D HER L
HWIABEEERRIBEERL - AQF
MEFERS - REEBEBOTHZ - A%
BB N RS AL U5 KR
MAEMBEEBERBUATRESEZBRE
FAS(E ez F 8 bl -3 A
AZEET R M -

HE_T-_=F+-A=+—HLF
B NEBE®ERF B A17,293,000
BT (—F = — 4 : 18,258,000 i
TT)  SEIKEE IR R i @H&ﬁ%**%ﬂ&z
A 36,165,000 L ( =T = —
52,126,000/ 7T ) R Y E HEES H&
TEeZEU A 41,943,000 L (-2 - —
114,389,000/ 7T) °

BERREREBRLE ZBI=ZFFRK
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eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

17. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 17. BREBFFERBETREIRIE

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

The Group’s receivables under service concession

(#)

SR B RIS A PR L B T B0 R IGRIR 10

arrangements are as follows: T
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET

Receivables under service concession  ARFGAFFHE L HE B IR IA

arrangements 364,781 326,825
Less: portion classified as current assets i : D48 AR EEENZD (28,182) (28,327)
Portion classified as non-current assets fEAIEREEENE D 336,599 298,498

The following is an aged analysis of receivables under service
concession arrangements, presented based on the invoice

REBEEZAH2IE R HELTET
B EUGIRR BRER DT AT

date:
2023 2022
—EC-=fF . ——
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHEIT
Billed within 3 months SEARNE AR 13,777 14,147
Billed between 4 to 6 months 4ZeE A RARE 4,503 4,648
Unbilled (note) AR AEZE(ME) 346,501 308,030
364,781 326,825

Note: The balance included contract assets from construction contracts as
the rights to considerations have not yet to be unconditional.

As at 1 January 2022, receivables under service concession
arrangements from contracts with customers amounted to

HK$338,753,000.

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in note 33.

2023 Annual Report
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e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

DEBT INSTRUMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

18. BBEMEEBRRLAREHE
HRHEIR

2023 2022
—EC_=HF T _F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Investment in listed bond, with fixed BERBE LT LEMES
interest of 6.13% and maturity TEXRAEG13% ' MEHEA-Z
date on 21 February 2024 listed —WE—_A=Z+—H
in Hong Kong 81 583

The above investment is held by the Group within a business
model whose objective is both to collect their contractual cash
flows which are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding and to sell the financial asset.
Hence, the investment is classified as at FVTOCI.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 33.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED
COST

AEEFA LR ENEKENAR
RUENERARNI N AR REERE
ZHEMmanReREREEZE S
BEESBRE - Hit - ZREDER
FEEMEEREEAAETIE -

BAERHE A IBE IR K FESS ©
190. BRBMRFHENHMEMETE

2023 2022

—EBE-=F T F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHBT FET

Bank deposits (note) RITFER(MEE) 2,556 2,523
2,556 2,523
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (2,556) (2,523)

Note: These represent two deposits of approximately HK$2,051,000 and
HK$505,000 (2022: HK$2,025,000 and HK$498,000) placed with
Koperasi Simpan Pinjam Indosurya Cipta (“KSPIC”), which is in the
process of debt restructuring. Based on the Jakarta District court
order, KSPIC is required to return the deposits to the Group, by
60-month instalments and 48-month instalments starting from June
2021 and January 2021, respectively. The bank deposits are interest-
free.

M ZERITEREMEINANR
2,051,000 /8 T & 505,000/ 70 ( = &
— — 4 : 2,025,000 JT & 498,000 %
TO)MER - FERRIEEETEBRE
4 Ry Koperasi Simpan Pinjam Indosurya
Cipta([KSPIC)  #REEFEINE L T7 7B
#%  KSPICEEZZ=—F ARKR=
T -—F— A9 RILA601E A F481E A
B B R AR ER BT - iR
TFERRTEE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND

20. BHEBHRE « AARAREM

OTHER RECEIVABLES s RIA
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT T
(restated)
(&=&75)
Trade receivables B 5 WA 3,670 414
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE - —
3,670 414
Other receivables H b e W HOR 4,475 4,059
Advance to a third party (note) M—R&E=FEHeRR(FE) 3,521 3,618
Prepayments for BOT construction BOTER AT IR 608 3,970
Prepaid expenses TR 1,430 2,332
VAT recoverable EERE Y 3,404 4,926
Consideration receivable for disposal of HEME AR 2 EUWKRE
a subsidiary (note 36) (FftzE36) 17,243 63,193
30,681 82,098
Less: Allowance for credit losses on S M RE=ZHERBR
advance to a third party EEEERE (1,301) (1,309
29,380 80,789
33,050 81,203
Analysed as: D=
Non-current JETRED 316 312
Current &) 32,734 80,891
33,050 81,203

Note: The advance bears interest of 10% per annum, is repayable on
demand and secured by pledge of 40% equity interest in a private
company incorporated in the PRC.

As at 1 January 2022, trade receivables from contract with
customers amounted to HK$73,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND

21.

OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

The Group had a policy of allowing a credit period of 30-60
days. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at
the end of reporting period presented based on the invoice
date:

20. BHEBHRE « AARAREM

FENRIR (#7)

REBNBE AIEIOZ60HEE
H - RREHANE Z KRG IBILE
ZEHEYIRZBRESITOT ¢

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET TET

0-60 days 0%260H 3,663 407
Over 60 days 608 A = 7 7
3,670 414

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 33.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the restricted bank deposits
represents:

()  demand deposits of HK$5,474,000 (2022: HK$5,405,000)
in relation to a service agreement signed by SJP with an
independent third party for building and operating a power
plant in Indonesia with maturity of 3 to 5 months (2022: 8
to 11 months) from the end of the reporting period; and

(i)  pledged deposits of HK$22,006,000 (2022: Nil) to secure
bank borrowings to the Group and will be released upon
the settlement of relevant bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2023, restricted bank deposits carry
interest at market rates which range from 2.25% to 4.7% (2022:
4%).

21.

B ERHE ISR N HIFESS -

ZRFABITERRAGRASF
B

R-ZE-_=F+-"A=+—8  ZEH
RITFERIE

() EHITF 5474008t (= F
— T4 :5,405,000/7T) © ESJP
H— 2BV E A RAREE SR
N BB BB MRS s
B WS HIREIESEA (=
T —F:8E1@EAAR)EIE &

(i) BEIFFF22,008,000/8T(=F
TZF ) ERRAEERHE
IRITHERAER - WAENEER
BRI TIE R AR AR o

RNRZEBE-_=F+-A=+—H IR

ISR ITIFERUIL2.25% 24 7%(ZE - =
F 1 4%)NMSFRETB -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

21. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND 21. ZXRFIETERRREEEBA&E
CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont’d) EBY(#E)

R-E-_=ZF+-_A=+—H B&K
ReSEYREAREASEBEEHE
CHAENERERREHER 25
TFRIR0.001%E0.25% (=T = — 4 :

As at 31 December 2023, cash and cash equivalents include
demand deposits and short term deposits for the purpose of
mesting the Group’s short term cash commitments, which carry
interest at market rates range from 0.001% to 0.25% (2022:

0.001% to 0.25%).
Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 33.

22. TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented

0.001%%0.25% ) T 5 FI K51 & -

FAERH S A B RN KT FESS ©

22, BHEMRIE

B 5 RN ER AR 2Rk

based on the invoice date: o -
2023 2022
—EC-=H —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
0-60 days 0Z60H 2,398 5,036
61-90 days 61%290H 102 3
Over 90 days Q0B A E 470 427
2,970 5,466

The average credit period granted on purchase of goods and
services is 30 days.

23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

AEERMLRERENFHEERS

30H -

23. HftFEFRIARERA

2023 2022

—EC-=HE —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Trade deposit received BB SES 5,896 -
Other payables HAnFEI IR 2,056 3,271
Accruals JEFtE A 6,834 6,855
14,786 10,126
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

24. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

24. EFTRBHRIR

2023 2022
—E—-= —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Non-trading in nature: FEHME -
A related company —fEE R A 33,631 32,440
A close family member of a shareholder —Z IR AR 20,244 20,920
Close family members of directors EERIAE 21,840 52,184
A shareholder — AW 26,350 —
102,065 105,544
Less: Amount that is expected to S FEHARM 2B AR £ E W H1E
settle after 12 months shown EMENBE IR
under non-current liabilities (70,389) (14,567)
Amount that is expected to settle TEERRA12(E A RS E WS 1ERED
within 12 months shown under BfEzIE
current liabilities 31,676 90,977

The amount due to a related company, which is wholly owned
by a substantial shareholder of the Company, is unsecured,
interest-bearing at 6% to 8% (2022: 6% to 8%) per annum and
repayable within 2 years (2022: 1 year).

The amount due to a close family member of a shareholder is
unsecured, interest-bearing at 6% to 8% (2022: 6% to 8%) per
annum and repayable within 2 years (2022: 1 year).

The amount due to close family members of directors is
unsecured, interest-bearing at 8% (2022: 8%) per annum, and
repayable within 1 year (2022: 2 years).

The amount due to a shareholder is secured by the legal charge
on 14% equity interest of the Company held by a shareholder,
interest-bearing at 6% (2022: Nil) per annum and repayable
within 3 years (2022: Nil).

R —EEE AR (AARR—REE
R EHEA 2 AR )NFIEAER
o BERNEE%EEN(ZE ==
6%E8% )t EMER2E(ZZT ==
FAF)NEE -

e — R IRE AL 2 OB A EER
RERREUEBU( - T - —F : 6%2
8%)stE - MAR2E(ZZ % 1
FINEE -

BN E R FNRIEAEKR - REH
RB%( - —F : 8%)itE - NAR
1F(CT - —F 2 )NEE -

JIE < — 2 B BR Y R 0B A — B IR R P AR
NAN4%RIEREEIREIERER « 1R
FREW(ZE_—_F  #E)FT B &
ANE(ZTE-—F  \|)NEE -

BERREREBRLE ZBI=ZFFRK
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 —FE -~ =4+ _HA=+—HIFZ

25. BORROWINGS 25. f&®
2023 2022
—=E_= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHT
Bank borrowings (note (a)) RITIER (T (@) 58,200 38,000
Other borrowings (note (b)) E b ER (D) 23,867 23,867
82,067 61,867
Notes: FfaE -
(@ Bank borrowings of approximately HK$18,000,000 (2022: (@  #918,000,000 % jt (=& = =

HK$18,000,000) are secured by personal guarantee of an executive
director, Mr. Chan Kwan and unlimited corporate guarantee of the
Company.

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$20,000,000 (2022:
HK$20,000,000) are secured by mortgage of a leasehold property of
a beneficial owner and personal guarantee of Mr. Chan Kwan.

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$20,200,000 (2022: Nil) are
secured by term deposits of approximately HK$22,006,000 (see note
21).

Other borrowings of approximately HK$14,867,000 (2022:
HK$14,867,000) are secured by personal guarantee of a close family
member of a director.

Bank borrowings

18,000,000 7T ) MR 7T 5 mEEiJM%
ERESCERMMNEABEBREARRBN
IR A RIE(RVEIRIR ©

49 20,000,000 L ( =T = = F
20,000, 0008 7T) MERITIERA —RE
A ANMERIE KRR ST ERERN

EAFERIEEA -

#)20,200,0008 L (=T =4 : #)K)
iﬁfﬂéﬁkﬂaéﬁzz,ooe,ooofﬁﬁﬁﬁi,ﬁﬂﬁ
FIEE(RFIFE21) ©

4714,867,000 % L ( Z T = = F :

14,867,000 70 ) W E MG RH —BE
BRI FIRHAEAERERR -

Other borrowings

RITER HAnfE™R
2023 2022 2023 2022
—ED=f T4 ZBZ= B F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FET FAT
The carrying amounts of LI ERAREE
the above borrowings are AP DA T EARR
repayable: BiE :
On demand or within one BBk —FR
year 40,200 18,000 23,867 23,867
Within a period of more than BB —FET
one year but not exceeding BB R FE R
two years BRI A 18,000 2,000 - —
Within a period of more FBBRFE
than two years but not HBilRAFH
exceeding five years HARIA - 18,000 - —
58,200 38,000 23,867 23,867
Less: Amounts due within one 3§ : —E R EEIIF
year shown under FIERENE
current liabilities (=P (40,200) (18,000) (23,867) (23,867)
Amounts shown under non-  FI{EIERBIAEZ
current liabilities IE 18,000 20,000 — —
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mEMBERRME
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF
25. BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 25. BR(#F)
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings are as follows: AREEEROMONT
2023 2022
—E-=F T F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Fixed-rate borrowings & 7E FI =& 23,867 23,867
Variable-rate borrowings XN RSN 58,200 38,000
82,067 61,867

The Group’s variable-rate borrowings of HK$38,200,000 (2022:
HK$18,000,000) carrying interest at Hong Kong Inter-bank
Offered Rate plus a premium and HK$20,000,000 (2022:
HK$20,000,000) carrying interest rate at Hong Kong Dollar
prime rate deduct 2%, respectively. Interest is reset each
month.

The ranges of effective interests (which are also equal to
contractual interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as
follows:

AEBRNIZIHANEERD B A
38,200,000 B ;L ( = T = = :
18,000,000 % 7T ) & 20,000,000 % 7T
(ZZ == : 20,000,000/7T) * D5l
BREBRITRERBINGETE BT
HEBFER2%:TE - FISFAEK -

7R 5= B A8 SR ) B R R R (R B A0 S ) =R
GEIEDENE NN

2023 2022
—EC-=HF T F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Effective interest rate: BERAI=
Fixed-rate borrowings & F |J3‘;{ B 8% 8%
Variable-rate borrowings SFENFI RS 3.79%-5.65% 1.79%-3.05%

As at 31 December 2023 borrowings of approximately
HK$9,867,000 (2022: HK$9,867,000) were dominated in
United States dollars (‘US$”), while the remaining balance was
dominated in HKS.

RZTEZ=F+=A=+—8 " UET
([ &) sHEME R4 59,867,000/%5
T(ZZF =4 :9,867,000/87T) * &
%EJ//{/%TEE-I—TE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

26. LEASE LIABILITIES 6. HEAE
2023 2022
—EC=H —E-_F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FH&T
Lease liabilities payable: ENHERE
Within one year —FR 451 438
Within a period of more than one year ~ f2iB—F{BNBBEMF 2 HifEA
but not exceeding two years 253 381
Within a period of more than two years BB BT BB FF 2 HE A
but not exceeding five years 37 176
741 995
Less: Amount due for settlement A PA12(8 AR BB E I HIE
within 12 months shown under MEBBEZFIR
current liabilities (451) (438)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 B & BI BB E 0 51 1
12 months shown under EMEBBEREZRIA
non-current liabilities 290 557
27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES . RERIAEE

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

MBI RENME - ETERE
MBEENBEE THEE - WTAEY
B2WMA T EETHIBERDT -

2023 2022

—E-=5F B F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET TET

Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEERE 24,963 22,891

250 ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2023 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Cont’d) 27. RERARRE)
The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) N TERRAFEIBEFERRNEE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and EERIEEE(BE) REEZE
prior years:
Temporary
difference
related to ECL
Provision service Retirement provision
formajor  concession  Withholding benefit of other
overhauls arrangements taxes obligation  receivables Total
SRHeTE HitEdsE
ZHEBN HBHEE

EXRERE  ERMES BB BUBAERR it i a5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL

At1 January 2022 W-E--£-f-R 4745 (£0545) (1,085) 8 257 (36,620)
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (k&) Ba 738 (4,082 23 3 9 (3016)
Disposal of a subsidiary note 36) it ERB AR (R3136) (1,751) 15,439 - - - 13,688
Bxchange adjustments EH AR (399) 3,395 79 (1) 2 3,057

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 W=E-Z%+-F=1—H

R=E-=F-F-H 3,339 (25,79) (174) 10 327 (22,891)
(Cherged)/credited to proft or loss (Mkg)/ 5 Ba 521 (3.011) (203) 2 12 (2552)
Exchange adjustments R AZ 93 559 23 - 9 480
At 31 December 2023 R-B-zE+-Az+-F 3773 108.245) 1%4) 33 130 24,96
As at 31 December 2023, the Group has unused tax losses RZE_=F+_-_A=+—8 &€
of approximately HK$100,592,000 (2022: HK$95,314,000) B AR BT IEEE £100,592,000/% 7T
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset (ZZE == : 95,314,000/ 7T ) A] FA1E
has been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due to ARG A o B EETRIAR K AE
the unpredictability of the future profit streams. The tax losses T O pE R B) R B IE S IR R RR (]
could be carried forward for a maximum of five years. EERIBEE - BB ERZAER
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF
27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$6,886,000 (2022:
HK$6,037,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate of 5% may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in the PRC in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

28. PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS

27. BERBRRARHF)

RZEBEZ=F+=—A=+—8H ' &~&E
B A R B 1 2= 58 496,886,00078 7T
(—Z— —4 :6,037,000/87C) - AR
BE A PR AR e M T o] AR DA S T 408
B ZRE 2 AT REET K - B B RS
AT SR =R EREERIBEE -

REBEHBEGEMERE - EPBIKIZA
SNE R ERINER B ETIRABUE B
M10%EFEI - ZREB —FTF/\
F-A—HBER  ERAN_TTLF
TZA=1T—BZRESHNEF - fiHh
Bz FINEREEMERDEER AR
RIS RAY - R AR BIE R R 5% B4
B - At - AEBEARZERTE
BB ARE —TEN\F—A—H
FEFTS B M 20k RS BURTRFORL

28. EXBERE

2023 2022

—E-=F T F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FERT T

At 1 January n—H—H 13,352 18,978

Additional provision in the year IS N 1,325 1,868
Increase in discounted amounts arising BB # MAE A BLIR & 58

from the passage of time (note 8) (P EES) 785 1,082

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 36) HENE AR (H:E36) - (7,003)

Exchange adjustments P A A% (374) (1,573)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 15,088 13,352
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the service concession agreements entered
into by the Group, the Group has contractual obligations to
maintain the wastewater treatment facilities to a specified
level of serviceability and/or to restore the facilities to a
specified condition before they are handed over to the relevant
governmental authorities at the end of the Service Concession
Periods. These contractual obligations to maintain or restore
the facilities, except for any upgrade element, are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 37, i.e., at the best
estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
future expenditure on these maintenance and restoration costs
are collectively referred to as “major overhauls”. The estimation
basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revised where
appropriate.

As at 31 December 2023, no provision for major overhauls
(2022: Nil) has been made for biomass power facilities as it is
under construction.

28. EXHERME &)

BIEREBATR] M RIS -
REEBEAEAYVEL  MRESKE
M - BREME — T O REARBK
TR, MR RS RS RS - TEHSRR
FEEEE T A BT RT - BSHEER
BEAN o RELEER ma’] HEMT
(BrF A EBDIN) BB B G TR FE37
SET AR RETE - ?ﬁmz R
KETREETAERYMREGRTE
IR - BEZSRERBEEBANEK
RAXZFEAE EAR m mﬂg RS
BRI WHAEE RS

RZZE_=F+-HA=+—H HER
IDEEZP A E R BREAIEAR
(EatiERE( =T ——F : &)

Details of service concession agreements are set out in note 17. BRI R AT RE R O SF 1B S P BRE1 7 ©
SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 29. XATFKRE
Number of Share
shares capital
RHEE [N
‘000 HK$’'000
Tz FAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each R E(E0.0001 8 T H) T A%
Authorised JETE
At 1 January 2022, 31 December RZTEZZF—H— El —=E-=
2022, 1 January 2023 and F+-_A=+—RH ZZT-_=F
31 December 2023 —A—ARZZE_=F+_H
=t+—H 3,800,000 380
Issued and fully paid BETREE
At 1 January 2022, 31 December RZEZ=ZF—H— EI —ZE-—
2022, 1 January 2023 and F+A=+—H ZF=F
31 December 2023 —A—BEk=ZE=_=%+=H
=+—H 1,107,300 111

BERREREBRLE ZBI=ZFFRK
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF
30. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(A) OTHER RESERVE

Other reserve comprises HK$113,780,000 debit reserve
resulting from the share swap pursuant to the Group
reorganisation and HK$82,304,000 credit reserve resulting
from capitalisation of shareholders’ loans during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

(B) GENERAL RESERVE

The transfers from retained earnings to the general
reserve were made in accordance with the relevant PRC
rules and regulations and the articles of association of the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC.
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RAFEIMBEFE  AEBFEHE

SLgEa

REZHZIINGAMREDE -

(A)

(B)

H o G

Hih@EeRREAEBEAN
WD B EE A H9113,780,00058 7T
HEFEREZE-_Z—NE+=
A=+—HLEFEBREERER
b A4 8982,304,00078 T 12 B
-

— % i

RIBEABEPBERASOERA KA
R AR B R S BO BT B A ey A
BERANBRERNECS—
ARt o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

e T RRME
PPy

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 31. MBEFHEEZARYIE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TREFYVRME ESEL T NEFE EE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash 8 - BN S NIERSEE o EEE)
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for EXCBEBENEHERSREAKIRS
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in mERNAERGESESRERTNES
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows MEEHEEANIRERE °
from financing activities.
Amounts
due to
related Lease Interest
parties Borrowings liabilities payables Total
FEfERm S
HE R HEEE EAFIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET THT THL
At 1 January 2022 W-ZE--%—A—H 39,207 35,107 472 143 74,929
Financing cash flows BERSRE 69,661 17,760 (535) (2,521) 84,365
Lease modification MHEER - - (191) - (191)
New leases entered WEIEE - - 1,232 - 1,232
Transfer b (9,000) 9,000 - - -
Exchange adjustments B i R - - ®) - (5)
Interest expenses FIBHY 5,676 — 22 2,518 8,216
At 31 December 2022 and N
1 January 2023 +-A=+-Hk
—E-=F—Hf—H 105,544 61,867 995 140 168,546
Financing cash flows RMERER=E (11,134) 20,200 (501) (4,244) 4,321
New leases entered HEIE - - 226 - 226
Exchange adjustments B 5 3% - - ®) - (5)
Interest expenses FIBRX 7,655 - 26 4,244 11,925
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=F+=f
=1+—H 102,065 82,067 741 140 185,013
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

32.

33.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the amounts due to related parties, borrowings and
lease liabilities as disclosed in notes 24, 25 and 26 respectively,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The management reviews the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the management considers the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the management, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

32.

33.

BEEREER

REEEBAEEAUBRRAEEETE
BRI RS EEERE [
iy 25 BE U B M 2 PR AR )
EIFHZEAML - NEB R RAKEEF

AEBMEREEBIEERFE - EF
BIED BRI M FE24 « 25 26 R HY IE
NEE S ROE - BREEEAE - 0k
RERBFSFEEE RARRHEE AR
s (BIEEBEITRARERE) -

B EE PR EARE o FRREH
—8n  ERBEREANKANEER
BERBENER - RIFEEEHEER
& AEESEEIRMRE  BITHK
o KRB - ARBEITHERSLED
RAEGBHFEOEBBEANRE -

&MTR

(A) &RTARER

2023 2022
—E== —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
(restated)
(&=&E75)
Financial assets sREE
Financial assets at amortised cost 1B AT 2SR EE 449,944 436,816
Debt instrument at FVTOCI BEEMEARGSEARBEITEDN
(V= 81 583
450,025 437,399
Financial liabilities cRIBE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost & R AT ER SR A& 202,629 183,998
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
receivables under service concession arrangements, debt
instrument at FVTOCI, other financial assets at amortised
cost, trade receivables, other receivables, restricted bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables,
other payables and accruals, amounts due to related
parties, borrowings and lease liabilities. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
of the Group manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely
and effective manner.

MARKET RISK

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial
risks of changes in currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk. There has been no change to the Group’s
exposure to market risk or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risk.

() Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the holding of foreign
currency assets and liabilities will affect the Group’s
position as a result of a change in foreign currency
exchange rates.

Individual companies in the PRC and Indonesia
within the Group have limited foreign currency risk
as most of the transactions are denominated in the
functional currency of the operations in which they
relate. However, as the principal subsidiaries mainly
carried out transactions in RMB and IDR, therefore
any appreciation or depreciation of HK$ against
RMB and IDR will affect the Group’s consolidated
financial position and be reflected in the exchange
reserve.

33. &#MTR(#)

(B)

ERRFRERBERAT

SREMBEEHRRBE

AEEFZeRMTIABERES
AP BE TR BIGIR ~ BRE
o 2 ER S IE R A ERF ERER
TR REHEKATENEGLS
BMEE  BEHRWFHIRA - HfE
WRoR - XRBIRITHER - R
EREEEY BHRENFA -
HiENRBAREAER - BN
FARE D IR AR ERE -
BT AZHBENEME
B - BZEFSRTAARENE
BREETERAR(EERE - FiX
R & EmERRE) - FERR
EnEETREE - TXHIIER
WKL FRBREOBCR - NEEE
BEEERERZFRAR AR
ek AERERBEEREE

™5

AEBLRB<HT ZEHEINEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

() Currency risk (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2023, individual companies in
the Cayman Islands and Hong Kong within the Group
have foreign currency exposure because certain
debt instruments of approximately HK$81,000
(2022: HK$583,000), cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$232,000 (2022: HK$199,000),
amounts due to related parties of approximately
HK$62,786,000 (2022: HK$81,642,000) and
borrowings of approximately HK9,867,000 (2022:
HK$9,867,000) were denominated in US$ and
other receivables of approximately HK$17,243,000
(2022: HK$63,193,000) were denominated in RMB.
The Group considers that the currency exposures
in relation to the US$ are insignificant as HK$ is
pegged to the US$. Therefore, these balances are

excluded from the sensitivity analysis.

The Group’s sensitivity is a 5% (2022: 5%) increase
and decrease in Hong Kong dollars against RMB. 5%
(2022: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. A decrease of approximately
HK$862,000 in pre-tax profit (2022: HK$3,160,000)
where Hong Kong dollars strengthen 5% (2022: 5%)
against RMB. For a 5% (2022: 5%) weakening of
Hong Kong dollars against RMB, there would be an

equal and opposite impact of the loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to amounts due to related parties (see
note 24), fixed-rate borrowings (see note 25) and
lease liabilities (see note 26). The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
the variable-rate bank balances (see note 21) and
variable-rate borrowings (see note 25). The Group
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on fluctuation of interest rates on borrowings. The
Group manages its interest rate exposures by
assessing the potential impact arising from any
interest rate movements based on interest rate
level and outlook. The management will review the
proportion of borrowings in fixed and variable rates
and ensure they are within reasonable range.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

(i) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

33. &@MTIA(HF)

(B) &BEBREEBHRBRHE)

™SR (&)

()

Total interest revenue/income from financial assets
that are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI is

as follows:

VS AC-D,

RE KA S R E MR E
WRRARBEAENESHE
ERFSWAWas B FEan
T

2023 2022
—EC=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&IT
Interest revenue FLBWA
Financial assets at amortised cost R ENAGTER
TREE 17,293 18,258
Other income and net other gains E A A A R B s K
— and losses B8 F R
Financial assets at amortised cost RSB AT 2R
THEE 799 1,293
Debt instrument at FVTOCI FREMEEREER
REFENEBIA - 190
18,092 19,741

Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured

WIREBERRAREFNE

at FVTPL: HNERBENTERX
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost ~ IEES4RL AN ST 2 &)
SREE 11,925 8,216
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2022: 50
basis points) increase or decrease in variable-
rate borrowings is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. Bank
balances are excluded from sensitivity analysis as
the management considers that the exposure of
cash flow interest rate risk arising from variable-rate
bank balances is insignificant.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2022: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2023 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$291,000 (2022:
HK$190,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate borrowings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

(i)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to debt securities price
risk through its investments in debt instrument at
FVTOCI. The management of the Group manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The Group’s other
price risk is mainly concentrated on debt instrument
operating in property sector quoted in the Stock
Exchange.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to debt securities price risks
at the reporting date.

If the price of the respective debt instrument
had been 5% (2022: 5%) higher/lower, the other
comprehensive expense would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$4,000 (2022: HK$29,000) for
the Group as a result of the change in fair value of
debt instrument at FVTOCI.

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures
are primarily attributable to receivables under service
concession arrangements, trade receivables, other
receivables, debt instrument at FVTOCI, other financial
assets at amortised cost, restricted bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Cont’d)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has
established policies and systems for the monitoring and
control of credit risk. The management has delegated
different departments responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
processes to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. The Board has overall
responsibility for the Group’s credit policies and oversees
the credit quality of the Group’s asset portfolio. In this
regard, management considers that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial
assets under ECL model. Information about the Group’s
credit risk management, maximum credit risk exposures
and the related impairment assessment is summarised as
below:

Receivables under service concession arrangements

The Group has individually assessed allowance for credit
losses for its receivables under service concession
arrangements at the end of the reporting period based
on internal credit rating, their ageing, historical observed
default rates over the expected life of receivables
and adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. In the opinion of
the directors, these customers are local governmental
authorities in the PRC and government-owned corporation
in Indonesia, which are financially sound and accordingly
no loss allowance was recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Cont’d)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at
lifetime ECL. The ECL on trade receivables are assessed
individually, based on the past default experience of the
debtor, general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort at the end of each
year.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals. Before
accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Other monitoring procedures are in place to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the management
of the Group considers the credit risk arising from trade
receivables is insignificant and no loss allowance was
recognised.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s debt instrument
at FVTOCI portfolio represents a listed bond issued by
Shimao Property Holding Limited (now known as Shimao
Group Holdings Limited, a company listed at the Stock
Exchange) which operates in the property sector in the
PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Cont’d)

Debt instrument at FVTOCI (Cont’d)

The listed bond has been defaulted subsequent to the
year end since the maturity date of 21 February 2024. The
Group closely monitors the changes in the credit ratings
of the issuer, and follows its market news for taking
immediate actions if there is any indication of deterioration
of the repayment ability of the issuer.

The Group determines whether the debt instrument held
by the Group has suffered from significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition by comparing the credit
rating and other qualitative benchmarks that affect the
credit quality of the debt instruments at initial recognition
and at the end of the reporting period. On the basis
of prevailing market conditions in respect of property
developers in the PRC, the credit rating of the debt
instrument issued by the issuer was withdrawn by the
rating agencies and the credit risk of the debt instrument
held by the Group has increased significantly since initial
recognition, as such, lifetime ECL on the debt instruments
has been assessed at 31 December 2023. As the issuer of
the debt instrument has suffered from significant financial
difficulty, including defaulted in payments for its other debt
instruments and other liabilities, the debt instrument held
by the Group is therefore considered as credit-impaired at
31 December 2023.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Cont’d)

Debt instrument at FVTOCI (Cont’d)

The Group had engaged an independent qualified valuer
to perform ECL assessment on the debt instruments
by taking into consideration the historical data from
an international credit rating agency. The Company’s
management works closely with the independent qualified
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. In making the evaluation, the
Group assesses ECL for debt instrument at FVTOCI
by reference to the probability of default and loss given
default of the debt instruments. The Group also takes into
account forward-looking information that is reasonably
and supportably available to the Group without undue
cost or effort.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the ECL on
debt instrument at FVTOCI amounting to HK$997,000
(2022: HK$2,381,000) was recognised in profit or loss.

Other receivables

The Group has assessed the allowance for credit losses
of advance to a third party with reference to the historical
past due information, default rate, the financial position
of the counterparties as well as the fair value of collateral
pledged by the counterparty. During the year ended 31
December 2023, loss allowances of HK$26,000 (2022:
HK$374,000) was recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 33. &MIRAE)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) &REBETERERKE&)

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Cont’d)

Other receivables (Cont’d)

For consideration receivable for disposal of a subsidiary,
the directors of the Company makes periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability based on past
settlement records and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. In the opinion of the directors, the
debtor is stated-owned corporation in the PRC which is
financially sound and accordingly no loss allowance was
recognised.

For the remaining other receivables, the management
believes that there is no significant increase in credit risk
of these amounts since initial recognition and thus no loss
allowance was recognised.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The Group has assessed on the recoverability of other
financial assets at amortised cost by reference to
probability of default and loss given default of the bank.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, no loss
allowance (2022: HK$17,000) was recognised in profit or
loss.

Restricted bank deposits and bank balances

The credit risks on restricted bank deposits and bank
balances are limited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.
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eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 33. &MIRAE)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

(Cont’d)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

(B) &MERETEERRBIE &)

EERE

KR ER L ()

$$ . W_LB{_\_EH N\/\&)Djlj ﬂ¥1ﬁ@

AT R

Other financial assets/

Internal credit rating Description Trade receivables other items
A ERTAR i g5 BKFE HiteMEE HER
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
default and does not have any past- — not credit-impaired
due amounts
iVENA REHFHENRREE - BYE L HREBEERR 12EABREESE
{E B HA T ~AEEGENE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
dates but usually settle in full — not credit-impaired
BReE BEEACERIARRENERE T HREBEERR REAEHEERE
2HEE - REEEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
in credit risk since initial recognition — not credit-impaired — not credit-impaired
through information developed
internally or external resources
2= FERREMEHEAARBEEN(E 2HRBEEER L HRBEERR
BRI ERAE 2 EE) - REEEERE —-AEEGENE
Loss There is evidence indicating the assetis  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired — credit-impaired — credit-impaired
B FEBETRUAECRAGERNE ZHEHEERE L HRBEERR
-BEEEERE -BEEEENE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off Amount is written off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
i AREBETEBABARENI G miEEwEeSE miEEEESE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 33. EMTIRAI#EF)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) £MBRREEHERBE (&)
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT EER M RRER L (&)
(Cont’d)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of REBSMEENEZEERM MO
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL (ZBETEHREEEBRTM)FB
assessment: o
2023 2022
Gross Gross
External Internal 12mor carrying carmying
Notes  credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount amount
12873 ZRIZE i Sl
i MBEETR AEETR 2HRHEEER BEAE REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tin
(restated)
(ImE5))

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
BREMZANERAAEFENERIE

Investment in listed bond” 18 N/A[note 1) Loss Lifetime ECL — 81 583
credit-mpaired

FhEREE MER (M) BB 2ERBEEEE-
EREEERHE

Financial assets at amortised cost

RERRTENEREE

Trade receivables 20 NA Lowrisk (note 2) Lifetime ECL — 3,670 414
not credit-mpaired

B AR e R (F32) %ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@é—
AEEEERE

Receivables under senvice concession amangements 17 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 364,781 326,825

kTR T RRENGIR TER [EER 12ERRREEEE

* REBEEEEFGEmE - &

The Group considers the aggregate of the gross principal

amount and the related contractual interests of the SEEREBIANETSRTE
debt instrument for the purpose of ECL assessment, at REBEOMNERE R
31 December 2023, such gross amount amounted to Z=F+-R=+—H ZBE
HK$3,502,000 (2022 HK$3,502,000). 53,502,000/ 70 ( Z T = Z 4

3,502,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 33.

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

eMTR(#E)
(B) £MEMIREREBMRRBUR &)

EEE R RRER L (F)

(Cont’d)
2023 2022
Gross Gross
External Internal 12mor carrying carmying
Notes  credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount amount
12875 Ik S5 i S
i ABEETR ABEETR 2HRERERR LS REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
(restated)
(&E51)
Other financial assets at amortised cost 19 NA Loss Lifetime ECL — 2,556 2,523
credit-mpaired
BESNAH RN ERAR R BB 2HRBEEEE-
BREEEHE
QOther receivables 20 NA Low risk 12m ECL 21,118 67,252
EftfelEE NER Rk 12ERRSEEEE
Doubtiul Lifetime ECL — 3,521 3,618
not credit-mpaired
it ERSEABA-
REEREHE
Restricted bank deposits 21 BBBtoBaa2 N/A 12m ECL 21,480 5,406
RRHE TR BBBZBaa? NER PERRSHEERE
Bank balances 21 BBB+toAA- N/A 12mECL 30,075 34,611
HiTgh BBB+ZAA- NER 1ERRHEEEE
Notes: M -
1. The bond issuer has chosen to stop participating in the 1. BEHEBRTABREELZLHEIR

rating process; therefore the international rating agency
has withdrawn the rating of the bond issuer as sufficient
information to maintain the rating no longer exist.

2. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified

approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

(Cont’d)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowance
that have been recognised for debt instrument at FVTOCI,
financial assets at amortised cost and other receivables:

33. @MTR(#F)
(B) &MERETEERRBIE &)

EERBNRERG(E)

TRIREREBE M EE K
BAREBEAENEHTAR  KH#
HERAHENEREENEME
WOk E R < R B < 18R

Other
financial
Debt assets at
instrument amortised Other
at FVTOCI cost receivables
Lifetime Lifetime Lifetime
ECL- ECL- ECL-
credit- credit- not credit-
impaired impaired impaired Total
EBRAMZE RE#HEA
KERAAE THENEM
THENEBIR tREE  HtEREE
2HEH SRS 2HRH
REEE- BEFE- BEFE-
CREGERNE CREGEAE RBLECEWE by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tix Tir TR TEL
At1 January 2022 RZE_—%—f—H - 2,259 1,027 3,286
Impalrment losses recognised EBEED 2,381 17 374 2,772
Exchange adjustments fE R % - 247 92) 155
At 31 December 2022 and A2 ZF+ZR=1-BR
1 January 2023 “Z-=%-f-H 2,381 2,523 1,309 6,213
Impairment losses recognised REEBRR 997 - 26 1,023
Exchange adjustments A% - 33 (34) (1)
At 31 December 2023 NZE-=F+-A=1+—H 3,378 2,556 1,301 7,235
BRRRIEREBRLAGE —ZT=FFH
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eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
LIQUIDITY RISK

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The management of the Group monitors
the utilisation of amounts due to related parties and bank
and other borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on amounts due to related parties (see
note 24) and bank and other borrowings (see note 25)
as a significance source of liquidity. As at 31 December
2023, the Group has available unutilised facilities of
HK$28,674,000 (2022: HK$4,874,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specially, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

LIQUIDITY RISK (Cont’d)
The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves

33. &#MTR(#)

(B) &MERETEERRBIE &)

RBESRR(E)

ZREFAANBEARERHER
B -AENERERZIENER

T REGR S BIEWE HRF X

at the end of the reporting period. H&sTE -
Liquidity tables HEE R K
Weighted ~ On demand Total Carrying
average  or 3months undiscounted ~ amount at
interest rate orless  3-6months  6-12months 1-5years  cashflows 31122023
W-8zzf
EEYE AR tZR=t-A
METHRE  SEAIUR 3%6F  6Z128A 1258 RERELE WEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TR TR TR TER TR TR
202 ZEBIzE
Trade payables EREfE - 2910 - - - 2970 2970
Other payables and accruals EHERTER
2R - 14,786 - - - 14,786 14,786
Borrowings X 1.21% 15,836 20,978 29911 18,518 85,243 82,067
Lease fabilties HERR 540% 134 118 218 27 767 4
Amounts dus to related partes BB A 3E 7.02% 5,214 o, 10,321 14,952 12319 102,065
39,000 42,868 40,450 93,767 216,085 202,629
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 33. EMIARGHE)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) £MRMEEEERRBE(HF)
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Cont’d) REESRM(E)
Liquidiity tables (Cont’d) RBE K (&)
Weighted ~ On demand Totd Carmying
average  or3months undiscounted amount at
interest rate orless  3-Bmonths  6-12 months 1-5years cashfows — 31.12.2022
e S—
EPe] AR tZA=1-R

MEFSHE  3EAAUR 3E6[EF  6212ER 1555 BenesE NERE
% HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000
% Tin TEL TEr AL TEr THTL

2022 CE-CE
Trade payables 25 EfTE - 5,466 - - - 5,466 5,466
Other payables andacoruls ~—~ EfERZER

EtER - 10,126 - - - 10,126 10,126
Borrowings B 5.88% 33,306 332 9,606 21019 64,263 61,867
Lease liabilties fzak 352% 15 115 229 566 1,025 9%
Amounts due o related parties TR AEE 7.55% 14817 28721 54,738 14,634 107910 105,544

63,830 24,168 64,573 36,219 188,790 183,99

The amounts included above for variable interest rate 2B F) 2= B Eh B A SR HA R &5
instruments are subject to change if changes in variable THIFERGEAR - B i Fra
interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates EEFHFNETESBEIEHFE -

determined at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —F — =+ - H=+—HIFF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

()

33. &#MTR(#)

(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL (C) &MIAMARERE
INSTRUMENTS
Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured MPBREMS @ AEELHE
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating MTEEAARBEFE - NEBEF
the fair value, the Group uses market-observable data to B al ABRS 2 Thi5 Al B ER 8 (4
the extent it is available. FFARE ©
FAIR VALUE OF THE GROUP’S FINANCIAL (1) BEEEMEER N RER
ASSETS THAT ARE MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE ExAEEEREEZAR
ON A RECURRING BASIS &
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured REREHAR - FXEELH
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The ERMEEERARNBEFE T
following table gives information about how the fair RREREEBEUANETEZES
values of these financial assets are determined (in MEEZ ANAEZENF
particular, the valuation technique and inputs used). B2 BT PR A (B BT B 3 A28
®) o
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R 1 F=R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAET FAT TAT
At 31 December 2023 R-B=-=%+=A
=+-H
Debt instrument at FVTOCI & @ E i 2 T e ik
NREFENES
TR
Investment in listed bond &SR E 81 - - 81
At 31 December 2022 R-—ZBE-_—%+—A
=t+—H
Debt instrument at FVTOC| & i@ E i 2 IR
AREFENER
TA
Investment in listed bond FHEEFRE 583 — — 583
BRRREREBRAR E_=FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

()  FAIR VALUE OF THE GROUP’S FINANCIAL
ASSETS THAT ARE MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
ON A RECURRING BASIS (Cont’d)

Fair value as at
31 December

33. &@MTIA(HF)

(C) &MIAMLREEH)

RIBEEMHEEZ QD AER
BAEBERMEEZAR
E(#&)

R+=-A=+—H2Z2AARE Farvalue Valuation technique(s)

Debt instrument at FVTOCI 2023 2022  hierarchy and key input(s)
FERHM2EKRR ZEBZZH kSl AREZER FERNTRERRBARE

AREFENEEIA HK$’000 HK$'000

THER TAET
Investment in listed bond 81 583 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active
market

FHEFRE £—R ERTISMREANE

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3
fair value during both the current and prior years.

(I FAIR VALUE OF THE GROUP’S FINANCIAL
ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES THAT
ARE NOT MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE ON A
RECURRING BASIS

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (“Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 5 September 2014 for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees. Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number
of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options
granted and may be granted to any individual in any one year
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.

The limit on the total number of Company’s shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other Schemes
of our Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the Shares
in issue from time to time. The maximum number of Shares
in respect of which options under the Scheme and any other
Schemes of our Company may be granted is 10% of the Shares
in issue immediately upon completion of the share offer, being
80,000,000 Shares, excluding for this purpose the number
of shares which would be issued on the exercise in full of the
options granted under the Scheme or any other schemes of our
Company but not cancelled, lapsed or exercised; the number
of Shares which have been allotted and issued pursuant to the
exercise of any options granted under the Scheme or any other
schemes of our Company; and the number of cancelled Shares.

34. FRRRiEETE

ARRBRER -_F-NF LA BRB
HYR B ZE R E A RT3 ([ Zat8)) -
IEEHEAREERAERESR - RIE
Zatd > ARREFARAERERR
HEERE - HRBEARALENB L
AINES - URBARRID °

EREARABBRELAEZBERT
REBZA B 2 BIRMEPTS 2 B D 42
A REARKENMFBEAARD %
1IN 210% ° TEAREAR R AR EL
HEZBRT - REA—FEEEEA
ERTRAER T 2BREMSI 2B
BITRATRITZBOHBE NSHBBEAR
NEPMEAIRF AR BTN Z21%

BIEZTE AR BRI EMZTEIE
B EARITE 2 A RITEE R EE
TSR] FEIT 2 AR BIRDBEE 1
ER - RERERNSEATRE T
B& 1D 2 30% ° IRIFEZAT 8 RARRE
AT E M RZ AT B AT RE 2 H R B IR FT 8 &
MO ER=EE AEERNDEBEETNE
BT H10% » B180,000,000 %
f&fm 0 stk s - NEIEREZATEI
AN BV E A ET B85 A9 B AR (A
WS - KRAHETTFEE BR)ER
HITER A REBRITRRMOEE BT
BIEZATEI SR G R HAbET 85
R B A T B2 B 38 MBS T TR IR 19 X
B REFFEROZEE -
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eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF
34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates
is required to be approved by the independent non-executive
directors (excluding any independent non-executive director
who is the grantee of the options). If the Board determines
to offer to grant options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director or any of their respective
associates which will result in the number of shares issued and
to be issued in excess of 0.1% of the issued shares or with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000 within any 12-month
period is subject to approval by shareholders of the Company in
general meeting.

The subscription price for the Company’s shares on the
exercise of options under Scheme shall be at least the highest
of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (c) the nominal value of the share.

No share option was granted or remained outstanding under

the Scheme during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(A)

(B)

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN
OPERATING IN HONG KONG

The Group operates a MPF Scheme established under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in
Hong Kong for employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustee. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. There are no forfeited
contributions that may be used by the Group to reduce
the existing level of contributions.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN
OPERATING IN THE PRC

The employees of the Group’s operations in the PRC
are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal governments, the assets
of which are held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions are made by the Group based on a
percentage of the participating employees’ salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension schemes.
The employer contributions vest fully once made. There
are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the
Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.

35. [RFiRFIRE

(A)

(B)

BERRREREBRLA

RERBRTZR EHRENE

g

AEE BRI ERE S 8K
PIRaERSEREENE
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AERAIES R B RS o
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eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d) 35. BiRFIREHE)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN

OPERATING IN INDONESIA

Under the Indonesia Labour Law, companies are required
to pay separation, appreciation and compensation benefits
to their employees if the conditions specified in the
Indonesia Labour Law are met. The Group’s subsidiaries
in Indonesia, estimates its liability for employee service
entitlement benefits in order to meet and cover the
minimum benefits requirement to be paid to employees
under the Indonesia Labour Law. The post-employment
benefits are unfunded.

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as
interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

INTEREST RATE RISK

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan
liability.

LONGEVITY RISK

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability
is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and after their
employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN

OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d)
SALARY RISK

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is
calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value
of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31
December 2023 by Kautor Konsultan Aktuaria Steven
& Mourits, an independent actuarial consulting firm
in Indonesia. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation, and the related current service cost and past
service cost, were measured using the projected unit
credit method.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the
actuarial valuations were as follows:

35. BkEFIRIEM)

(C) MEPREITZREEFUIENKET

Bl(#w)
FEmE

RERMABAENRETL2E
AEIZEANRRF MR ©
it - FHEIZEAFH S LTS
EtEIRE -

ATRMETREROZBER
ByAREE —HEBLBEERMN
A Al Kautor Konsultan Aktuaria
Steven & Mourits ® — & — = 4
+ZA=+—H#ETT - RERF
EERERABN B B REK A
MBE R A IZIETEMER
JERTE ©

RBEMEMAEIZMRAT

2023 2022

—EBE-=F T F

Discount rate BLIR X 6.86% 7.29%

Expected rate of salary increase ~ TEHA¥ & 18 5% 5%
The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of BEHERET  FrEEENTE
plan assets was nil (2022: Nil) and that the actuarial value RE(ZTZZF: %) ZFE

of these assets represented 0% (2022: 0%) of the benefits
that had accrued to members.

BERRREREBRLA

ERNRBEBENKEETEFN
0%(—Z-—F :0%) °

—Eo=EEH
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eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &t F —E - =4+ - H=+—HIFFE
35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN
OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d)

SALARY RISK (Cont’d)

Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect

35. BkEFIRIEM)

(C) MEPREITZREEFUIENKET
Bl(#)

HE Rk (&)

FLTE B A ET BN 2 U R R

of the defined benefit plan are as follows: HEFENAT -
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
Service cost: ARTEACA -
— Current service cost — B BIBRAE A AR 353 282
— Past service cost and gain — B RS K
from settlements EE W (80) (309)
Net interest expense A B HeE 54 40
Components of defined benefit RIERERN T BT AH
costs recognised in profit or #REE
loss 327 13
Remeasurement on the net BT ERATEMNAE
defined benefit liability: HEE
— Actuarial gains and losses —BREREBEEZ
arising from changes in BE W N EE
financial assumptions 27 (27)
— Actuarial gains and losses —KEBRPARFES
arising from experience W K EE
adjustments (22) (1)
Components of defined benefit REM 2 E R R
costs recognised in other RERFIKAH]
comprehensive income HERER D 5 (28)
Total HEt 332 (15)

Of the expenses for the year, HK$327,000 (2022:
HK$13,000) has been included in administrative expenses.

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is
included in other comprehensive income.

282 ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2023 Annual Report

RAFERIH - 327,000 7T
(ZZT 4 : 13,000/87T) 25t
ATTHFY

RERMNBEFEIENER
AEMEERE
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e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d) 35. RREFIHE(#F)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN (C) MENRETZRERFIRFE
OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d) Bl(#E)
The amount included in the consolidated statement of AEBRERTEATENET
financial position arising from the Group’s obligation in EEMNGAGZETBERRIERNS
respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows: BEAOE :
2023 2022
—EC=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH&T FHT
Present value of funded defined ;3 & A FEENETRE
benefit obligations 1,144 929
Fair value of plan assets FFEIEERNARE - -

Net liability arising from defined ATFENETEENEEFRE
benefit obligations 1,144 929
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eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d) 35. BiRFIREHE)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN (C) MENRETZREMRFEWFE

OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d) Bl(#m)
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit AEEANETRERAEENE
obligations in the current year were as follows: E N
2023 2022
—E-=5F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Opening defined benefit FYRERMEAR
obligations 929 1,065
Service cost: ARTEACA
— Current service cost — B BIARFE A AR 353 282
— Past service cost and gain from  — @7 RIGHK A N & E s
settlements (80) (309)
Interest cost FIER AR 54 40
Remeasurement losses/(gains): B EEE1E,(ES)
— Actuarial gains and losses — B RREBES S
arising from changes in fEE W Kk Es1E
financial assumptions 27 (27)
— Actuarial gains and losses —EHRABRFELE CBERER
arising from experience B8
adjustments (22) 1
Exchange differences on foreign /G5 NETEIME H 2= %8
plans 9 (90)
Benefits paid B S & F) (126) (31)
Closing defined benefit obligations £ R R & H & F 1,144 929

BEGBE S A ERR
SEBEF LMD -

There was no change in the methods and assumptions
used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

AETRAMETNMEFHEHR A
18.55F (ZFE-—F : 136F) -

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit
obligation is 18.55 years (2022: 13 years).

The Group does not expect to make a contribution (2022: AEEBBHITIER T —BBFE
Nil) to the defined benefit plan during the next financial mAERHNGFEHER(ZT ==
year. FE)o
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e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d)

35. BkEFIRIEM)

would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis,
the present value of the defined benefit obligation has
been calculated using the projected unit credit method at
the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that
applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

BERRREREBRLA

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN (C) RENEETZRERFIRAR
OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d) gl(#E)
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination ETATEEZERBERE
of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected EEEET&?EHH%? ST © LAT@&Z
rate of salary increase. The sensitivity analysis below has BRESNBERNRERRSERE
been determined based on reasonably possible changes ﬁfﬁ/\f@ REE B M EMmERER g
of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of BIEmEE -
the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions
constant.
(Decrease)/ Increase/
increase (decrease)
in net in net
defined defined
Increase benefit Decrease in benefit
inrate obligations rate obligations
RERH RERFA
ERFE ERFE
FELH (BD)/ B FETRE Em/ (H)
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
% THET % THL
At 31 December 2023 AZBEZ=F+=A=1+-H
Discount rate AR K 1 (70) 1 78
Expected rate of salary increase BHF S AR 1 85 1 (78)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—#+=-F=+-H
Discount rate BRE X 1 (55) 1 61
Expected rate of salary increase BHF L AR 1 68 1 62)
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be B EE SRR Al g B FERE & -
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit — 7 _LTEJ JEE T KA RE ;%E
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions A F2HSEREES TR —ERENR

RATRNEEZERES) -

dEAh » REFI A EBEE DT
B AEEMECZRENRRS
%Xuﬁﬁﬁu“*ﬁﬁi’ﬁ
JE AR T BERE MR KR AT
RZAERANEBEXTABZH AR
Al o

—Eo=EEH
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eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

36. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 36. HEMBLAT
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group disposed REZE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIt
of its entire 70% equity interest in a subsidiary, Haian Hengfa, FE  AEBHENSTEE(HEBA
which operates wastewater treatment facilities in the PRC. The Bl R REE S KRIERE)NES
net assets of Haian Hengfa at the date of disposal were as T0% M - BREZEREEAHNEE
follows: FET
HK$’'000
FAT
Consideration receivable: PEWRARAE :
Cash received BYERE —
Deferred cash consideration EERENE
(restated (see note 3.2)) (eEY| (R FIFE3.2)) 62,364
Total consideration KRB 62,364
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which ¥tk EiE4|ENEEREBN DT :
control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 507
Receivables under service concession BRIS T RE L HE T Y FE U IR
arrangements 98,228
Inventories e 44
Prepayments and other receivables TE S FRIE I E At R U R IE 753
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 37,269
Trade payables B S IE IR (1,213)
Other payables and accruals Hitn e RIB R ETER (573)
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIBAE (13,688)
Provision for major overheads BARRIEHEE (7,003)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 114,324
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e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

36. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Cont’d) 36. HEMBLAT (&)

HK$’'000
FET
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HERBATNERS :
Consideration receivable FEU AR E
(restated (see note 3.2)) (ge=5 (R HIFES.2)) 62,364
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (114,324)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR 34,207
Reclassification of cumulative translation HEBREEENRATREREBEN
reserve upon disposal of Haian Hengfa to DIFEEER
profit or loss 3,693
Loss on disposal (restated) HEREE(EES) (14,060)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEELENREREFE
Cash consideration ReRE —
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of i : EHERS LIRS EEY (37,269)
(37,269)
37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. BXKiE
2023 2022
—EC-=HE —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Capital expenditure in respect of service BOTHEEIE N AT T LMERALR
concession arrangement under BOT BB SRR R B B PR S R A
basis contracted for but not provided in ~ ZHFHEARNFI
the consolidated financial statements 12,923 36,202
BERRERBRAT ZE=FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF
38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(A) Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group has following transactions

38.

ABA XS

(A) BRZSHEAMBRESERE
S+ AEE BB S HUTRS

and balances with related parties: R#Ees
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Nature of transactions and HEB A RN 5
balances with related (E=PNET
companies:
Rental expense* Mem* 268 146
Administrative service expense*™ (TR R+ 2,147 2,343
Interest expenses on lease HESRENFERX
liabilities 16 17
Lease liabilities™* HEBE™ 523 862

* During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, rental
expense was paid to a related company over which a director
of the Company has significant influence to operate, monitor
and maintain the two power plants of the Group.

> The Group entered into an administrative service sharing
agreement with a related party, a company controlled by
certain executive directors and their close family members,
in connection with the sharing of administrative services on a
cost basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(A) Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group has following transactions
and balances with related parties: (Cont’d)

*kk

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered
a sub-lease agreement with Dragonfield Management Limited,
a company controlled by certain executive directors and
their close family members, to sub-lease the office premise.
The sub-lease has a term of three years from 20 November
2019 to 19 November 2022 at a rent of HK$47,800 per
month. At the commencement date of the sub-lease, the
Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease liability of
HK$1,629,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the existing sub-
lease was early terminated and the Group entered into another
sub-lease agreement for the reallocation of office premise.
The new sub-lease agreement has a term of three years
from 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2025 at a rent of HK$29,536
per month. At the commencement date of the sub-lease, the
Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease liability of
HK$1,029,000.

(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

38. FMABKAXR (M)

(A)

(B)

BRZFREVHREASERE
S AEEEBB T EATRS
Ko fsen - ()

REE-ZZE-—NF+-_A=+—HLF
B AEBERHARLAETHERE
BAERAR(BBETHITES NEAR
BHB QDRI 2 MBS o D W
AP=F(B=FT—hh&F+—A=+H
2-FT-_—F+—A+hB) AfA
47,8008 7T - WG HE - ANER
BREAEEEMEESEE,629,000
BT

REE-_ZT-_F+-A=+—HILF
B BEABSHEERAKE  MAEE
EREHOEMAEZEMEI LS —HH
Hinz - FofAmRAR=-F(BZE
T+ A—REZE-_RERA=T
H) - Af 429,536/ T - Ko MRE
A AEERACAEEEREES
E1,029,000/8 7T °

FEEERARNHTH

RERNEEFRTIZEREHMA
SR

2023 2022

—EC-=F T F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FAT

Short-term employee benefits EEEERET 3,018 4,872
Post-employment benefits BEER1E A 48 128
3,066 5,000

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.
Further details of compensation of directors’ emoluments
are included in note 11.

BERRREREBRLA

BEERTETRAB ZHMEH

MEEeLERFEARIEA LTS
DRET ESFTMNOE—D
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eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. FATFMMBIAE

COMPANY

2023 2022
—EB-=F T F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRRMIEE 164,259 163,090
Debt instrument at FVTOCI HEEMEEMBEEAREFTEN
B ITHE - 583
164,259 163,673
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TE T FRIE I E At FE YR IR 163 375
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGB 320,780 292,979
Debt instrument at FVOCI FRAEMEAWNEZE AR EFED
B TH 81 —
Cash and cash equivalents ReKFSEEY 5,745 1,764
326,769 295,118
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBERE
Other payables and accruals HibpEE L ERHE B 1,160 1,406
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERE R RF0E 124,618 92,232
Amounts due to related parties FE{S BB 5 A 31,676 90,977
Borrowings EEN 46,067 23,867
203,521 208,482
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 123,248 86,636
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAR
LIABILITIES 287,507 250,309
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital &N 111 111
Reserves & 199,007 215,631
TOTAL EQUITY AR 199,118 215,742
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Amounts due to related parties JE 1~} B RS 75 k1B 70,389 14,667
Borrowings (EEN 18,000 20,000
88,389 34,567
287,507 250,309
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e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —F — =+ - H=+—HIFF

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. EATFIMMBERAR(HF)
COMPANY (Cont’d)

MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY’S CAPITAL AND EAFEX R iR EE
RESERVES
Investment
Share Share  revaluation Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
& ROGGE REERREE bR o

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL AL TR AL

At1 January 2022 WoE-—E-f-F 111 391,851 (1152 (153,469) 237,341
Loss for the year ERER - - - (22,551) (22,551)
Net fair value loss on debt instruments at~ EBEM2ENERAL EFE

fair value through other comprehensive ~ BYERTAHAA BEEEFE

income - - (1,429) - (1,429)
Impairment loss on debtinstrumentat  EBEMEZEANER AL B E

fair value through other comprehensive  MIET T ARVRESE

income - - 2,381 - 2,381

Total comprenensive (expense)/income N2 E (B /zs
for the year B8 - - 952 (22,551) (21,599)

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 R=ZE=-F+-A=+-AK-%
—=&-f-H 111 391,851 (200) (176,020) 215,742

Loss for the year FRER - - - (17,119) (17,119)
Net fair value loss on debtinstrumentat  FBEMEERERAL B E

fair value through other comprehensive MK T ANAL EFEFE

income - - (502) - (502)

Impairment loss on debt instrumentat BB EM2 AR AL B E

fair value through other comprehensive  KJER T AR EEE

income - - 997 - 997
Total comprenensive (expense)/ ER2A(ER)/ RS

income for the year - - 495 (17,119 (16,624
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=F+-A=1-H 111 391,851 295 (193,139) 199,118
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eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 40. T EMBLA TN
THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 RZEBE =K _F__F+_H
December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: =+—H  ARAEEWNBARIME
LU
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and paid  Proportion of ownership
registration/ up share capital/ interest held by the
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Company Principal activities
R/t BETRAR RAFREN
MELRER EEBY R /ERER RERERLY IEED
2023 2022
ZEZZE —T_CF
% %
% %
Rugao Hengfa (notes a & b) PRC US$10,880,000 100 100 Wastewater treatment
meEE(ftakn) i 10,880,000 T KRR
Shanghai Taihuan Environmental PRC HK$400,000 100 100 Dormant
Technology Limited (notes a & b)
FEFRRRRBARAR (iakb) el 400,000 BEXH
Rugao Tahuan Environmental PRC US$1,000,000 n/a 100 Dormant
Technology Limited (notes a, b & ¢)
MEFRRRMRARAR (Mita bke)  FE 1,000,000% 7 TER TEXH
ELL Environmental Limited BVI US$100 100 100 Investment holding
EERAES 100%7T RERR
Everbest Water Treatment Development Hong Kong HK$82,304,273 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited
EEKBERARAR 6 82,304,278/t REZKR
@Grand Target Holdings Limited BVl US$100 100 100 Investment holding
EERAES 100%7T REAR
Greatcorp International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding
ARERERAT 3 10087 RERR
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e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF  40.
THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

FLFERMBLAFIRIFRF)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (Cont’d)

RIE_ZFE_FT-_—_F+_-A8
=t+—H  KARTEHBRARKNERE
R (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and paid  Proportion of ownership
registration/ up share capital/ interest held by the
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Company Principal activities
R/ BRTRAR RAFREN
MELARER EEBY R /EmER REREZLY IEED
2023 2022
ZEZZE —T--F
% %
% %
Eternity Time Group Limited BVl US$100 100 100 Investment holding
EERAES 100%7T REAR
Weal Union Limited Hong Kong HK$250 100 100 Investment holding
REERAR & 2507 REER
Absolute Praise Limited BVl US$100 100 100 Dormant
EERAES 100%7T LEEH
Winwood Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Dormant
XEEEARAA £ 1007 TEEK
RPSL Indonesia IDR230,900 million 95 95 Manufacturing and sale of
biofuel and provision of
information technology
services
il 230900E EFEE EEREEENERBUR
RAEEARERS
SJP Indonesia IDR25,000 million 95 95 Biomass power plant
construction
flfe 25,0008 EHEfE ENEEERER
PT ELL Environmental Limited Indonesia IDR2,500 million 99 99 Provision of administration and
management services to
group companies
flfe 250088HRRE AEERRRETHERRS

BERREREBRLE ZBI=ZFFRK
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eI RRAE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % —FE — =%+ _-H=+—HI FZ

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

41.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (Cont’d)

Notes:

(@) These entities are registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprises
under the laws of PRC.

(b) The English names of these entities represent management’s best
effort at translating their Chinese names as these entities did not
register any official English names.

() This entity is deregistered during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Except for ELL Environmental Limited, Absolute Praise Limited
and Eternity Time Group Limited, all subsidiaries are indirectly
held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results of the
year or constitute a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

ARBITRATION

On 5 February 2024, the Group has commenced arbitration
proceedings to recover the consideration receivable for disposal
of a subsidiary in the amount of RMB13,633,200 (equivalent
to HK$15,000,000) which is past due and is included in trade
receivables, prepayments and other receivables as at 31
December 2023. Based on the advice from the Company’s
independent legal advisors, the arbitration is still in its preliminary
stage and hence the final outcome is unable to be determined
at this stage.

2023 Annual Report

40. FRFERME L FIRFR(F)

41.

NZEZ=FR _TE-_—_F+_f
=t—H AR EHNBARNFEE
T (4E)

BE

@ ZSEEREBTREZIMAIGEE
-

() ERZETERWAREMEEE T RE
W ZEERNAXEEIHEEESR

s
0 HEBREE-_Z-_=F+-A=1+-—
Bk 2

FRELL Environmental Limited * Absolute
Praise Limited X Eternity Time Group
Limited 5l - P78 Mf B A &l B AN 2 7] A
BREA -

FRINTEEARIBREFEREN
BRASEEEFEZEBZRD ZAR
B AT - EERR - REEMHNE
RAZFBETREBNITE

sk

RZZE-NFE-ARAE REBEBHRM
HEF  LWREHE—FHRNB AR/
HApE UL AR (B A R #513,633,200 T (FHE
#15,000,000/ 7T ) + s B AR =
T-=—F+-F=+—HNBIEWK
I - FENFIE R EMEREIE - REAR
RABDEARBENER - HEINER
FIPBEER - I PATRBE B A RETE & 4R

+
;fﬁlil °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —E - =%+ _—H=+—HIFF

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 15 March 2024, RPSL (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company) and PT Indorama Eco Viridian (the “Purchaser”)
entered into the framework agreement, pursuant to which
RPSL has conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchaser has
conditionally agreed to acquire the wood pellet production
business currently operated and managed by RPSL at the total
consideration of IDR60.0 billion (equivalent to approximately
HK$30.0 million) (the “Disposal”). Upon completion of the
Disposal, the Group’s equity interest in the wood pellet
production business will be reduced from 95% to 20%.

Further details of the Disposal have been disclosed in the
company’s announcement dated 15 March 2024.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the prior year adjustment (see note 3.2), certain
comparative figures have been restated. In addition, certain
comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the
current year’s presentation.
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BREMESER

RZEBE-WNMF=A+HAB  XREH
JEEE M E A 7] RPSLEAPT Indorama
Eco Viridian([ B 77 J) ] (L fEZE 5% -
Bt RPSLBEKRHREHERER B
G E EUEE B AT RPSLE & N B 18
BI/RFERLAEEE TS - 4B R6001EED
BERERHB30.0E8E L) ([HESE
H]) - RHEEFIETKE - AEEAE
KA 728 SE TS ) AR 1S BB 95 % % /20% ©

HEFHNE - FFIRERERARTR]
HER—Z_NMF=A+HBEHNRE -

LEEEF

BMRETBEFERE(RMES2)
ETHBBRFEEEY - 1o BTH
RBFEETHRUFAAFENE
5l] o

BERREREBRLE ZBI=ZFFRK
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Five-Year Financial Summary

T FMBEHBE
RESULTS #lla
Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=1+—BLEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—E-NF ZE-TF —E-o—F —T-—F ZEI=HF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000
T FHEIT FHEIT FHEIT FHBxT
(restated)
(#=E7)
Revenue BEWA 77,473 59,017 103,136 203,659 113,279
Profit before tax BRI AT & A 17,038 5,096 22,900 163 700
Income tax expenses Fri5FiF (7,438) (6,581) (11,394) (15,335) (8,818)
Profit/(loss) for the year &R K, (E518) 9,600 (1,485) 11,506 (15,172) (8,118)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BHE  ARRFEERES
INTERESTS
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—8
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—E-NF ZE-TF —E-—F —B--F ZBI=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000
T T FHEIT FHEIT F#BxT
(restated)
(&=&E7)
Total assets BB E 479,926 477,381 528,771 517,173 526,101
Total liabilities wafE (102,210)  (102,217)  (145,708)  (227,251)  (247,201)
Non-controlling interests ~ 3FiE &t s (31,892 (30,028) (30,200) 5,608 5,483
345,824 345,136 352,865 295,530 284,383
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